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C.banner International Holdings Limited

T B MR A R A

Vision To be a leading international integrated retailer and
branded group of mid-to-premium ladies’ footwear in
China

Brand Values Elegance, Charm, Fashionable

CORPORATE PROFILE

C.banner International Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “C.banner”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is the leading international
integrated retailer and retailer of mid-to-premium women’s formal and

casual footwear in the PRC.

The Group distributes self-developed brands and licensed brands products
through department stores and independent retail stores in different cities,
ranging from first-tier to third-tier cities in the PRC, and is also proactive in
developing online business as to further expand its customer base as well as
sales and distribution network. In addition, the Group also acts as an OEM
or ODM manufacturer for international shoes companies dealing in export

markets.

Striving to be the leading branded group of mid-to-premium ladies’ footwear
in the PRC, the Group upholds a diversified brand strategy and product
portfolio as to diversify its footwear offerings and enter diversified market
segments. The Group is popular for its brand values of elegance, charm and
fashionable in the market, and operates self-developed brands, including
C.banner, EBLAN, sundance, MIO, Badgley Mischka and natursun, and
licensed brands, including ASH, JC Collezione, United Nude and Steve
Madden.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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SELF-DEVELOPED BRANDS

Cherrer=sx

7EBLAN @

rﬁ—

BADGLEY
MISCHKA.

K
natursun

is one of the leading brands in the mid-to-premium
formal and casual segment in the PRC, offers a
range of mid-to-premium fashion, business and

business casual footwear.

is comparatively more youthful, colorful and

energetic in its designs.

is the most casual in appearance, in line with its

younger customer profile.

offers a range of trendy and high-quality ladies

footwear for most young female customers.

is a well-known fashion brand, offers fashion

ladies footwear to be worn in important occasions.

is committed to comfort technology research
for the creation of comfortable and fashionable

footwear targeted at office ladies in China.

LICENSED BRANDS

*

JC COLLEZIONE

LIM uNITED NUDE ™

STEVE MADDEN

comes from Italy and targeting a fashion conscious
generation of men and women who always setting

trends, never following them.

offers comfortable and tasted high-class lady’s

shoes.

Its simple, elegant and creative style is no

substitute.

is a US-based trendy footwear brand with a wide
coverage of footwear, socks, handbags, and

accessories of avant-garde style.

Corporate Profile
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INTRODUCTION OF LEADING WORLD
RENOWNED TOY RETAILER BRAND —
HAMLEYS

In October 2015, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of
Hamleys Global Holdings Limited. Hamleys is one of the largest toys
retailers in the world. It owns the retail store with the world’s highest sales

and Hamleys brand with a brand history of over 250 years.

The first Hamleys China flagship store was successfully opened in Nanjing in
October 2016. Through the introduction of Hamleys brand, the Group aims to
expand its business with a focus on retail premises such as department stores
to further implement the global branding strategy. The Group will leverage
on its retail platforms to further develop the Hamleys brand and at the same
time expand the product offerings through the addition of toys and children’s
products to strengthen its competitive advantages of retail channels and
diversify its businesses, thus shaping C.banner as an international integrated

retailer with multi-brands portfolio.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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ESTABLISHMENT OF A JOINT VENTURE
(“JV”?) COMPANY TO DISTRIBUTE “STEVE
MADDEN” PRODUCTS

In June 2017, Xuzhou C.banner, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the JV Agreement with Madden Asia for the
establishment of the JV Company. The JV Company is principally engaged
in the business of promoting, marketing, sales and distribution of products
bearing the Marks of “STEVE MADDEN?” in the PRC. The JV Company will
promote, distribute and sell the products under the Marks through integration
of both online and offline channels. Based on the current business plan, it
is expected that the JV Company will open around 150 points of sale for
“STEVE MADDEN?” products in the PRC by end of 2020. In addition, the JV
Company will sell the “STEVE MADDEN” products through multiple online
sales platforms, including the brand’s official website and online platforms

operated by third parties.

Corporate Profile
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Yixi (Chairman)

Mr. Zhao Wei (President)

Mr. Huo Li

Mr. Yuan Zhenhua

(appointed as Chief Financial Officer
with effect from 2 June 2017)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Miao Bingwen

Mr. Wu Guangze

(resigned with effect from 4 April 2018)
Mr. Ngan Wing Ho

(re-designated from executive Director to
non-executive Director on 2 June 2017

and resigned with effect from 4 April 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Li Xindan

Mr. Zhang Zhiyong

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Huo Li

Ms. Mok Ming Wai

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (Chairman)

Mr. Miao Bingwen
Mr. Li Xindan

Mr. Zhang Zhiyong
Mr. Zheng Hongliang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Li Xindan (Chairman)

Mr. Miao Bingwen

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
Mr. Zhang Zhiyong

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Chen Yixi (Chairman)

Mr. Li Xindan

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Zhang Zhiyong

Mr. Wu Guangze

(resigned with effect from 4 April 2018)
Mr. Zheng Hongliang
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Mok Ming Wai

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 2904, 29th Floor

Far East Finance Center
16 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1028

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.cbanner.com.cn

LEGAL ADVISER
Sidley Austin

Level 39
Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central, Hong Kong

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

SHARE REGISTRARS

Principal Share Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited

Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Agricultural Bank of China, Nanjing Xinjiekou sub-branch

DBS (Bank) Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
China Merchants Bank, Nanjing Chengxi sub-branch

Bank of China, Nanjing Economic Development Zone sub-branch
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Financial Highlights

A B

Revenue

Gross profit

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Net profit for the year

Net profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Gross profit margin
Operating profit margin
Net profit margin

Earnings per share
— Basic (RMB cents)

— Diluted (RMB cents)

Bank balances and cash
Borrowings

Liquidity ratio
Gearing ratio

Average inventory turnover period
Average receivables turnover period
Average payable turnover period

e ik

TH

FRAE il aE A1)

P A B 5

AR

AR AR A A
A A 2

SEGIIES
BEMER
R AREES

Rt A
— A (NRHES)

— i AR )

SATAEER B
5

B R
HEAMRILE

SHAF R
S R R TE A
S AT R T A

Note: Liquidity ratio = current assets/current liabilities; gearing ratio = notes payable

and bank loans/total assets
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Year ended 31 December

BE12 H31 HILEE

2017 2016

20174 2016 4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHTE AR¥Tt

3,063,524 3,206,562

1,863,207 1,935,672

80,906 278,729
(64,215) (73,296)

16,691 205,433

20,492 206,253

% %

60.8 60.4

2.6 8.7

0.5 6.4

1.00 10.01

1.00 10.01

540,059 629,299

1,146,098 703,218

% %

153.6 312.8

28.9 20.7

Days Days

H# H#%

2453 233.9

46.3 46.1

54.9 53.4
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Chairman’s Statement

N

‘Implement global branding strategy
and build creative integrated retail

platform.

[ EAT R ERSRNE - B RIPIE G F 8

T o

Dear sharcholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company, [ am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2017.

During the year, the Company saw lots of encouraging developments, one
of which is the grand opening of the third Hamleys flagship store in China
in Wangfujin, Beijing last December, which is the largest Hamleys store in
the world. Together with our brand-new store format in shopping centers-
Banner Plus which offers one-stop shopping for branded men’s, women’s
and children’s footwears as well as an extensive range of accessories under
the banner of “A Joyful Shoe Store for the Whole Family”, C.banner is well
positioned to take advantage of the growth opportunities arising from the

current global economic environment.

In 2017, a steady global economic growth, low inflation and accommodative
monetary policies all pointed to positive signs of recovery. At the same time,
almost all the world’s major economies were in some phrase of recovery
and expansion, leading to the most synchronized upswing in recent years.
In particular, the US and global equity markets have registered double-
digit gains, the highest since 2008 financial crisis while China has also seen
strong growth in consumer and service sectors thanks to its supply-side
reform, strong Renminbi performance and the generally encouraging global
economic environment. These favorable developments provided strong

impetus to the growth of retail sector.
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Notwithstanding such positive trend, the footwear industry faced tremendous
challenges during the past year as the market scale of footwear retail stores
continued to shrink due to increasing competition from e-commerce, which
accelerated the shifting of consumption activities from physical stores to
online purchase. Shopping malls and department stores were losing traffic
and more underperforming physical stores were closed to reduce operating
costs. Under such backdrop, major women’s footwear brands were facing
increasingly intense pricing competition from newly emerging online stores
and had to resort to heavy retail discounting to clear inventory. However,
China remains a promising market for consumer goods due to increasing
average disposable income, accelerating urbanization and gradually
improving consumer sentiment and it is expected that mid-to-premium
brands with reputable and quality, like C.banner, will benefit most and

emerge as front runners in this intense competition.

With respect to the toys industry, major markets around the world are
struggling amidst a slowdown in global toys sales as children are now
spending more and more time on smartphones, tablets and other electronic
devices. However, there is an emerging toys market in China owing to the
rising birth rate after the full implementation of the two-child policy under
the 13th Five-Year Plan in 2016. According to an analysis report of the toys
industry, China’s toys market entered into a new cycle of rapid growth in
2015, far outperforming the growth rate of the global toys market and is
expected to reach RMBS80 billion in 2018, accounting for nearly one-third of
the total global volume. The global toys retail market is growing at a rate of
approximately 3% annually and with the rising educational level, the demand
for educational and recreational products of Chinese children will continue

to be on the rise.

While the market offers encouraging prospects for future development, the
Company, on its part, will endeavour to implement a wide range of strategies
to sharpen its competitive edge. With respect to its footwear business, key
focus will be placed on constructing a seamless sales system, which could
fully integrate the offline channels, including shops in the department stores
and shopping malls as well as outlet stores, and online channels, including
official websites, Apps, Wechat Shop, Tmall and other third-party platforms.
As part of our global branding strategy, the Company has set up a joint
venture company with Madden Asia Holding Limited to promote, market,
sell and distribute products bearing “STEVE MADDEN”, a renowned US
shoes and fashion brand, in the PRC through both the Company’s online and

offline channels.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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In terms of the toys business, the Company continued to expand the
operations of Hamleys flagship stores in China’s first and second-tier cities
to create more sales and enhance its brand awareness. During the year,
the second Hamleys flagship store in China was opened in Xuzhou. As a
partner of many world-famous toy brands, Hamleys would certainly be a
great complement to our wide range of products and services. In fact, the
Hamleys flagship stores in Nanjing and Xuzhou have started to contribute
revenue while the Beijing store, being the largest Hamleys flagship store in
the world, also shows strong growth potential. These encouraging business
developments laid a solid foundation for the Company to replicate Hamleys’
unique in-store experience with interactive playtime, events and special

demonstrations in other populous cities in China to gain more market share.

Looking ahead, China’s economy will continue to undergo structural reform
toward a consumption-driven growth path. At the same time, it is expected
that the footwear industry will continue to experience restructuring in the
coming year and will face various challenges before recovery. However,
the rising average disposable income, improving consumer sentiment and
accelerating urbanization all bode well for the growth prospects of the
industry in 2018. As for the toys market, booming growth is tipped for the
coming year due to several factors, such as the full implementation of two-
child policy, increasing disposable income and the trend of upgrading to
more expensive products. However, the wider opportunities imply more
intense competition and it is therefore crucial for industry players to target
at provinces with promising growth potential and identify target parent
segments so as to maximize profit by reaching parents with a variety of

marketing and sales channels.

Setting its sight on developing into a leading international integrated
retailer, the Company will continue to introduce and implement a range of
strategies to spur its growth. As for branding, the Company will adhere to
the global branding strategy and consolidate C.banner’s image as a leading
international integrated retailer which in turn would help building a more
comprehensive integrated retail platform. The Company will also continue
to implement multi-brands strategy to diversify brand and product portfolio
which targets various segmented markets. Besides continuing to develop
genes and identities of each brand to strengthen its competitive edges, the
Company will also introduce new brands or new licensed brands to cater for
the personalized needs of consumers, enlarge brands’ influences and add

synergy to business.
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Furthermore, the Company will implement mixed marketing strategy,
utilizing O20 integration strategy to launch marketing activities with an
aim to enhancing brand exposure and influence and further expanding
distribution and retail network. Strenuous efforts will be made in improving
supply chain management to uplift product quality and consumer
shopping experience. In addition to enhancing cost control and closing
underperforming stores, the Company will endeavour to improve same
store sales growth of self-developed brands stores. Building on its in-depth
collaborative relationship with department stores, the Company will further
develop Hamleys brand and expand its product portfolio by introducing
toys and children products to strengthen its retail channels. While looking
for opportunities to acquire valuable corporations with good brand value,
the Company will take full advantage of C.banner’s extensive experience
in China’s retailing industry and comprehensive retail network to rapidly
expand Hamleys’ business across the mainland with an aim to creating new

growth drivers for the Group.

The Company’s achievements depend on the valuable contribution of
different stakeholders, on behalf of the Board, I would like to express
my sincere gratitude to our management, staff, business partners and our
shareholders for their solid support throughout the year. We look forward
to further developing our business and creating greater value for our

shareholders in the coming year.

CHEN Yixi

Chairman

PRC, 29 March 2018
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial

statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
is set out in the “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 10, pages 12 to 16 and

pages 35 to 48 respectively of this annual report.

A description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can
be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 12 to 16 and note 4 to the
financial statements on pages 111 to 113 of this annual report. An analysis
using financial key performance indicators can be found in the Financial
Highlights on page 10 and Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 35
to 48 of this annual report.

The Group committed to enhancing governance, promoting employee benefits
and development, protecting the environment and giving back to society in
order to fulfill social responsibility and achieve sustainable growth. Discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies and performance, compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group and

relationships with key stakeholders are provided below.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises the importance of good environmental stewardship
and endeavours to increase its utilization rate of energy, water and materials.
In the meantime, the Group minimises the use of natural resources and
optimises its production process while enhancing efficiency and reducing the
use of energy and chemicals of every unit of products. It also adopts various
environmental measures and promotes waste reduction as well as recycling

and reuse.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is mainly engaged in mid-to-premium ladies footwear brands in
the PRC. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has complied with
all relevant laws and regulations concerning labour rights, environmental
protection, product safety and health, information privacy and regulatory

requirements that have significant impacts on the Company.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY
STAKEHOLDERS

Employees

The Group considers its employees as important and valuable assets, and
is committed to providing a pleasant working environment and promoting
work-life balance. It also offers competitive remuneration packages and
provides a harmonious working environment to its staff members so
as to maintain a high retention rate. In addition, the Group organises a
comprehensive training programme to enhance employees’ capability and

efficiency in daily operation.

Customers

The Group considers customers as a major stakeholder and is committed to
providing comprehensive and high quality customer services. The Group
has established good relationship with many renowned international brands
so as to provide customers with the best services and high-quality and safe

products.

Suppliers

The Group prudently selects its suppliers and builds long business
relationship with numbers of suppliers. Such suppliers have to meet certain
assessment criteria of the Group and comply with anti-bribery policies

launched by the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

on page 75 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 26
June 2018 to Friday, 29 June 2018, both days inclusive, in order to determine
the identity of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) who are
entitled to attend the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on Friday, 29 June 2018. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712- 1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 25 June 2018.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING
The net proceeds from the listing of the Company on 23 September 2011

(after deducting underwriting fees and related expenses) amounted to
approximately RMB535.7 million. The use of proceeds as set out in the
prospectus (the “Prospectus”) of the Company dated 12 September 2011 was
as follows: (i) approximately 40% of the net proceeds for expansion of the
retail network; (ii) approximately 25% for expansion and maintenance of
the production facilities as well as construction of offices and warehousing
facilities; (iii) approximately 20% for selective acquisition of footwear
businesses; (iv) approximately 10% for repayment of bank loan; and (v)

approximately 5% for expansion of the online sales through the internet.

Up to 31 December 2017, the net proceeds were applied in accordance with

the allocation as set out in the Prospectus.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s five largest suppliers

accounted for 36.9% (2016: 27.7%) of the Group’s total purchases and the
Group’s largest supplier accounted for 17.8% (2016: 14.8%) of the Group’s

total purchases.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s sale to its five largest
customers accounted for 6.2% (2016: 9.1%) of the Group’s total sale and the
Group’s largest customer accounted for 1.7% (2016: 3.0%) of the Group’s

total sale.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest

customers and suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2017.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 13 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital and share options of the Company
during the year are set out in note 34 and note 36 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to approximately RMB631.3 million (as at 31 December 2016:
RMB668.0 million).
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HPEFRNE
DIRECTORS HE
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were: N REBEARRE A EE S
# Y Executive Directors: PATES -
’ :’ Mr. Chen Yixi (Chairman) B 25 BESEAE ()
i&\ Mr. Zhao Wei (President) AR SR ()
\ > Mr. Huo Li Tk
? Mr. Yuan Zhenhua IR A
5
s (appointed as Chief Financial Officer on 2 June 2017) (A 20174F6 A 2 HEZAT 1 M%)
‘\\3 Non-executive Directors: JFHATESR :
\ Mr. Miao Bingwen B S se A

SN TP

Mr. Wu Guangze (resigned with effect from 4 April 2018)
Mr. Ngan Wing Ho (re-designated from executive Director to
non-executive Director on 2 June 2017

and resigned with effect from 4 April 2018)

SRR (A 20184F 4 H 4 FEEHT)

BUKZEE (R 2017486 A 2 H U T
AR L IERATE S - WA 20184F4 14 H
ELFHT)

Independent non-executive Directors: BorEPATHF -
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson T ARAE A
Mr. Li Xindan 0 FHEA
Mr. Zhang Zhiyong R 5 A
Mr. Zheng Hongliang ISt

ARIEA LN FIA0 A (TR0 R D) 55 99 > BRZEER e
A~ By Sl Bk AR B S AR o R i
FORFR G L (RURAE - B4 s Sl e
AL S o

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”), Mr. Chen Yixi, Mr. Huo Li and Mr. Zhang Zhiyong will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,

being eligible, had offered themselves for re-election as Directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group are

P R R L

A [ S R A B 2 B R R A AR
W64 B 68 H o

set out on pages 64 to 68 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence pursuant

w2 S JE AT T

AT EE A AL BT T AR T
25 A B R ([ A Rl 22 i 1) s o5 i Al
(BRI D) 565 3,13 0k  th 2 4 S 28 57 T Afe 2
o ANFIRBEEE R BT -

to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) from each of the independent non-executive Directors and

=
g the Company considers such Directors to be independent.
L |
|
=
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisting

during or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2017.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year ended 31 December 2017.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance of the Directors and senior management and

comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme and a share award scheme
as incentive to eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out in the

sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” below.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid individuals

are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT
OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the changes in Directors’
information are set out below:

Mr. Zhang Zhiyong, an independent non-executive Director, has been
appointed as the executive director and chief executive officer of China
Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 3818), with effect from 10 October 2017.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2017, there
was no change to information which is required to be disclosed by Directors
pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’

liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered into the register maintained by the Company, or
(iii) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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Approximate

Total number of percentage of

shares/underlying interest in

Name of Director Nature of interest shares held the Company

B et A< 2y wRE i

HEWH il i kBT 1 T30 e 473 48 88 BEZIE 2 ke

Mr. Chen Yixi (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 750,000,000 36.11%
BRZE BSR4 (BRFEE 1) A E R A (long position)
()

Mr. Miao Bingwen (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 80,000,000 3.85%
B (ME2) A B A (long position)
()

Beneficial owner 20,000,000 0.96%
JEE 7 ZEDN (long position)
()

Mr. Wu Guangze (Note 3) Interest in a controlled corporation 48,000,000 2.31%
SREERSEA (H5E3) A ) 1 AR A (long position)
()

Beneficial owner 16,600,000 0.80%
Ha A A (long position)
()

Mr. Huo Li Beneficial owner 979,000 0.05%
EIIE J-EX XN (long position)
()

Mr. Zhao Wei Beneficial owner 520,000 0.03%
AR R J-EE ZEDN (long position)
()

~w
FHRERBRRARAT % LEERHS 23



'
B

Y

i

_

Tn

AN

LY
V%

*

NI 2

S\

%
'y’

Report of the Directors
B

Notes:

1. Mr. Chen Yixi is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of Hongguo
International Group Limited (“Hongguo™) which holds 750,000,000 shares of the
Company in long position, among which Hongguo has charged 370,000,000 shares
and 272,000,000 shares in favour of Timely Assets Global Limited and Cheer Hope
Holdings Limited, respectively.

2. Mr. Miao Bingwen is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of Sure
Manage Investments Limited (“Sure Manage™) which holds 80,000,000 shares of the
Company in long position.

3. Mr. Wu Guangze holds 90% shareholding in China Consumer Capital Partners IT
Limited, the holding company of China Consumer Capital Fund II, L.P. which is
interested in 48,000,000 shares of the Company in long position. Mr. Wu Guangze
resigned as a director of the Company with effect from 4 April 2018.

Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short position in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would be required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
would be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or otherwise notified to the Company and the

Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no time during the year
ended 31 December 2017 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective spouse
or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES
As at 31 December 2017, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the

following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Approximate \
Total number of percentage of \
shares/underlying interest in SN
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest shares held the Company =
Firse it/ i 2 A ?
RIS/ SR E R B 4251 R oNEp e ?
Hongguo Beneficial owner 750,000,000 36.11% ,«'é
Hongguo A A (long position) /
(Note 1) ’
(HR) -
(WFEED)
Central Huijin Investment Ltd (Note 2) Person having a security interest in shares 302,000,000 14.54%
PRI EH REEA A (HaE2) HRA A R A (long position)
(r&)
Interest in a controlled corporation 108,963,585 5.25%
SR A (long position)
()
China Construction Bank Corporation (Note 2) Person having a security interest in shares 302,000,000 14.54%
R RS TIR A R A (FFE2) ERAOEA B (long position)
()
Interest in a controlled corporation 108,963,585 5.25%
TR (long position)
(&)
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (Note 2) Person having a security interest in shares 302,000,000 14.54%
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (Fff7E2) HRRFEA RE R AN (long position)
(8
Beneficial owner 108,963,585 5.25%
g E 2N (long position) =
(##H)
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (Note 3) Interest in a controlled corporation 535,000,000 25.76% j"_,j
o e A A TR A PR A 7D (FfFE3) AR B 4 (long position) |
() %
82,500,000 3.97% =
(short position) %
() (22
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Approximate
Total number of percentage of
shares/underlying interest in
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest shares held the Company
Fir b et/ fli A2 sl B4
[y SR E B £ 850 L FoNEp e
Timely Assets Global Limited (Note 3) Person having a security interest in shares 370,000,000 17.81%
Timely Assets Global Limited (FffzE3) BRI R A (long position)
()
Beneficial owner 165,000,000 7.94%
B2 ZEUN (long position)
(k)
82,500,000 3.97%
(short position)
(RA)

Notes:

Hongguo has charged 370,000,000 shares and 272,000,000 shares in favour of Timely
Assets Global Limited and Cheer Hope Holdings Limited, respectively.

Cheer Hope Holdings Limited has a security interest in 302,000,000 shares of the
Company and interest in 108,963,585 underlying shares of the Company which may
be issued by the Company upon conversion of the convertible bonds in the principal
amount of US$50 million issued by the Company. Central Huijin Investment
Ltd. holds 57.11% shareholding in China Construction Bank Corporation. China
Construction Bank Corporation holds 100% shareholding in CCB International
Group Holdings Limited, which in turn holds 100% shareholding in CCB Financial
Holdings Limited. CCB Financial Holdings Limited holds 100% shareholding in
CCB International (Holdings) Limited, which in turn holds 100% shareholding in
CCBI Investments Limited. CCBI Investments Limited holds 100% shareholding
in Cheer Hope Holdings Limited. Therefore, the above entities are deemed to be
interested in 302,000,000 shares and 108,963,585 underlying shares of the Company,
in which Cheer Hope Holdings Limited is interested.

Timely Assets Global Limited has a security interest in 370,000,000 shares of
the Company and is the beneficial owner of 165,000,000 shares of the Company
in long position and 82,500,000 shares of the Company in short position. Timely
Assets Global Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Huarong International
Holdings Limited. China Huarong International Holdings Limited is owned as
to 88.10% and 11.90% by Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Huarong Zhiyuan
Investment & Management Co., Ltd. respectively, which are both wholly owned by
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd.. China Huarong Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. is owned as to 63.36% by Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China.
Therefore, the above entities are deemed to be interested in 535,000,000 shares of the
Company in long position and 82,500,000 shares of the Company in short position in
which Timely Assets Global Limited is interested.
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370,000,000 [ J1 173 H 45 A7 £ 78 HE £ S 23 AR /A
165,000,000 i & £ i £ 12 82,500,000 H 1% 77 ik
YA E 2 B A A © Timely Assets Global Limited
/& China Huarong International Holdings Limited
2 2 G E /AT - China Huarong International
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Co., Ltd. #A H 88.10% S 11.90% HES - 1 130t /iy
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors were not
aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section

336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

LISTED SECURITIES
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Review Period”), neither the

Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of

the Company’s listed securities during the Review Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the laws
of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to

existing Shareholders.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Directors (including our independent non-executive
Directors) believe that the related party transactions set out in the note 44 to
the consolidated financial statements are carried out in the ordinary course of

business and on normal commercial terms.

During the year under review, save for the lease agreement between the
Group and Hongguo Industry Group Corporation which is an associate of
certain Directors, no other transaction listed in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transaction under the above lease agreement is exempt from the relevant
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’

approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING
Each of Mr. Chen Yixi and Hongguo (the “Substantial Shareholders”) has

executed a deed of non-competition through which they have irrevocably and
unconditionally warranted and undertaken to the Company not to, directly
or indirectly engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any
services to or otherwise be involved in any business in competition with or
likely to be in competition with the business of design, manufacture and sale
of footwear and other businesses as conducted by the Group; or take any
action which constitutes an interference with or a disruption to the business
activities of the Group including, but not limited to, solicitation of customers,

suppliers or personnel of the Group.

The Substantial Shareholders have confirmed to the Company of their
compliance with the deed of non-competition during the year under review

for disclosure in this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of
compliance and confirmed the Substantial Shareholders’ compliance of the

deed of non-competition.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND NOTES

Convertible bonds and notes issued in August 2017

On 4 August 2017, the Company completed the issue of convertible bonds
and notes, each with a principal amount of US$50 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$390,235,000) to Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (the
“Subscriber”). Each of the convertible bonds and the notes shall bear interest
from and including the date of issue of the convertible bonds and notes until
the date of redemption at the rate of four (4)% per annum on the outstanding

principal thereof, payable every six (6) months from the issue date in arrears.
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The conversion right attaching to the convertible bonds can be exercised,
at the option of the holder thereof, to convert all or any part of an integral
multiple of US$500,000 of the principal amount of the convertible bonds at
an initial conversion price of HK$3.57 per share (subject to adjustment) at
any time from and including the issue date of the convertible bonds up to the
close of business on the maturity date of the convertible bonds. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, there were no conversion of the convertible
bonds. As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible bonds was US$50 million. Based on the conversion price
of the convertible bonds as at 31 December 2017, a maximum number
of 108,963,585 Shares would be allotted and issued upon exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the outstanding convertible bonds in full,
which represent approximately 5.25% of the then existing issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2017, and approximately 4.98%
of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the issue of the
Shares. The shareholding of the controlling shareholder of the Company,
Hongguo which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Yixi, will be diluted from
approximately 36.11% to 34.31% if the conversion rights attaching to
the convertible bonds are exercised in full at the initial conversion price
of HK$3.57 per Share. Subsequent to the reporting period, the Company
redeemed convertible bonds in the principal amount of US$10 million
in January 2018, after which the principal amount of the outstanding
convertible bonds amounted to US$40 million, which are convertible into

87,170,868 shares of the Company.

Mr. Chen Yixi has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed to the
Subscriber the punctual discharge by the Company of its obligations of
whatever nature under the subscription agreement in relation to the issue
of the convertible bonds and the notes and other ancillary transaction
documents and promised to pay on demand each sum (together with interest
on such sum accrued both before and after the date of demand until the
date of payment) which the Company is liable to pay under the subscription
agreement and other ancillary transaction documents. Pursuant to the
subscription agreement, the bond instrument and the note instrument, it shall
be an event of default if Mr. Chen Yixi ceases to (i) be beneficially interested
(directly or indirectly) in at least 30% of the issued Shares of the Company
and the single largest Shareholder of the Company; or (ii) be the chairman
and executive Director of the Company. If an event of default under the
subscription agreement occurs, the convertible bonds and the notes are, and

they shall become, immediately due and repayable.
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Each of the net proceeds arising from the issue of the convertible bonds and notes, after
deduction of expenses, amounted to approximately HK$389,455,000 respectively,
which shall be applied to replenish the working capital of the Company and cater for
potential desirable acquisitions. Up to 31 December 2017, out of the total net proceeds
of HK$778.9 million received from the issue of the convertible bonds and notes,
approximately HK$619.8 million had been applied towards paying the consideration
for the acquisition of 45.78% of the share capital in EtonKids Education Group
Limited, and approximately HK$159.1 million had been utilised as general working
capital. The approval for the listing of, and the permission to deal in, the 108,963,585
conversion shares upon conversion of the convertible bonds has been granted by the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Details of the completion of issue of the convertible

bonds are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 4 August 2017.

Convertible bonds and notes issued in January 2018

On 29 September 2017, the Company and OCI Capital Limited entered into a
subscription agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed
to issue, and the subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, (i) the
convertible bonds which may be converted into the Shares pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the convertible bonds and (ii) the notes, each in the principal
amount of US$10 million (equivalent to approximately HK$78,083,000). Each
of the net proceeds arising from the issue of the convertible bonds and the notes,
after deduction of expenses, amounted to approximately HK$77,768,000 and
HK$76,987,000 respectively, which shall be applied to refinance certain existing
indebtedness of the Group and raise funds to replenish its working capital.
Completion of the issue of convertible bonds and notes took place subsequent
to the reporting period on 17 January 2018. For details, please refer to the

Company’s announcements dated 29 September 2017 and 17 January 2018.

The convertible bonds and the notes shall bear interest from and including
the date of issue of the convertible bonds and notes to the maturity date at the
rate of five (5)% and seven (7)% per annum respectively on the outstanding

principal thereof, payable every six (6) months from the issue date in arrears.

The conversion right attaching to the convertible bonds can be exercised, at the
option of the holder thereof, to convert all or any part in the lots of US$500,000
of the principal amount of the convertible bonds at an initial conversion price of
HKS$3.57 per share (subject to adjustment) at any time from and including the issue
date of the convertible bonds up to the close of business on the maturity date of
the convertible bonds. Based on the initial conversion price, a total of 21,792,717

Shares will be allotted and issued upon full conversion of the convertible bonds.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement, it shall be an event of default if Mr. Chen
Yixi ceases to (i) be beneficially interested (directly or indirectly) in at least 30%
of the issued Shares of the Company and the single largest Shareholder of the
Company; or (ii) be the chairman and executive Director of the Company. If an
event of default under the subscription agreement occurs, the convertible bonds

and the notes are, and they shall become, immediately due and repayable.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
on 26 August 2011 which has become effective upon the Company’s listing
on 23 September 2011. Subject to early termination by the Company in
general meeting or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and

effective for a period of 10 years commencing on 26 August 2011.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on-going business relationship with the eligible persons whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group;
and to motivate the eligible persons to optimize their performance efficiency

for the benefit of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer
to grant an option to any employees, executives, officers, directors (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, any advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and agents and related entities who, in the sole opinion of the

Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group.

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares on the date of the grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of the shares.

The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the respective share options must be
made within 30 days from the date of grant with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1.00 from each grantee. An option may be exercised at any time during
a period to be determined by the Board, which shall not in any event exceed
ten years from the date of grant. The Share Option Scheme does not specify
any minimum holding period but the Board has the authority to determine the
minimum period for which a share option in respect of some or all of the shares

forming the subject of the share options must be held before it can be exercised.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme must not exceed 30% of the total issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of commencement of the listing of the shares on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. The Company may seek approval of the Shareholders in general
meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the Share Option Scheme save
that the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme under the limit as
refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the

date of approval of the limit.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the date of grant. Where any further grant of options to a
participant would result in the total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all the options granted and to be granted to such person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the total number of shares in issue, such further grant
must be separately approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with

such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

Since the effective date of the Share Option Scheme, no share options had
been granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme and there was no outstanding share option under the Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2017. As at the date of this annual report, the
number of securities of the Company available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 200,000,000, representing approximately 9.63% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME
On 31 August 2015, the Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share

Award Scheme”) to recognize the contribution of certain employees of the
Group and to provide them with incentives in order to retain them for the
continual operation and development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group. A summary of the Share

Award Scheme is as follows:

(a)  Duration: Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board pursuant to the rules to the Share Award Scheme, the Share
Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten (10) years

commencing on 31 August 2015;

(b) Maximum aggregate nominal value of shares to be awarded to a
selected employee: Shall not exceed one (1) percent of the issued share

capital of the Company from time to time; and

(c)  Limit: The Board shall not make any further award of shares which
will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded by the Board
under the Share Award Scheme exceeding ten (10) percent of the

issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 31 August 2015 and 19 October 2015. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, no awarded shares has been granted (2016:
400,000) to selected employees.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares, or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares, were entered into by the Company during or at the end of the Review

Period.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management and
external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group

and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
Appendix 10 — Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) under the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry
has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they

had complied with such code of conduct during the Review Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on

pages 49 to 63 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share

capital was held by the public at all times during the Review Period.
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Report of the Directors
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has acted as auditor of the Company for the year

ended 31 December 2017.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu shall retire in the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Completion of Issue of Convertible Bonds and Notes

On 17 January 2018, the Company completed the issue of convertible bonds
and notes, each with a principal amount of US$10 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$78,083,000) to the subscriber. Each of the net
proceeds arising from the issue of the convertible bonds and notes, after
deduction of expenses, amounted to approximately HK$77,768,000 and
HK$76,987,000 respectively, which shall be applied to refinance certain
existing indebtedness of the Group and raise funds to replenish its working
capital. The approval for the listing of, and the permission to deal in, the
21,792,717 conversion shares upon conversion of the convertible bonds has
been granted by the Stock Exchange. Details of the completion of issue of
the convertible bonds and notes are set out in the Company’s announcement

dated 17 January 2018.

Disposal of Interest in a Company Engaged in the Operation of
Kindergartens in the PRC

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements dated 29 December
2017 and 15 March 2018 in relation to the disposal (the “Disposal”) of the
Company’s interest in EtonKids Educational Group Limited, a company
engaged in the operation of kindergartens in the PRC. As additional time is
required for certain of the conditions precedent under the relevant sale and
purchase agreements in respect of the Disposal to be fulfilled or satisfied, the
parties thereto have agreed to extend the long-stop date to 30 April 2018. As

at the date of this report, the Disposal has not yet been completed.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chen Yixi

Chairman

PRC, 29 March 2018

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

A% B i
T80 BB AT HAE A2 AR 2017

FE12 A 31 B IRAEE 2 BT

TEE « BB BT @R AT AR 2 ) e B
AR EIRAL - WA B MR E AL - &
HTISAT T « B BCBRTT G at fids 2 A 28w
fili 2 PRk S A M S e OB A R g EAR 2 -

et W12 2500

S EEAT VB0 I B SR IR

W20184F 1 A 17 H » AR A 56 U T AR G B 25
B %5 10,000,000 2% It (%755 jit 78,083,000 #5 7T
AT 3 A 2 B SRR T R BN o BEAT TR R A
J5 BOIRHE 2 T AT AR AR (0B B A% ) 43l
#1245 77,768,000 # JC & 76,987,000 % IC > A%
WA T BUA T RS R E S A
HAEE Ay o T3 T L AR A S ] HR R
121,792,717 B 5030 B b7 SR B E o 58t
AT R4 T A 5 B SR 2 W SO A 2 B B 4
201841 H17HZ A -

A — TR 7E rb i 2 &) G I 2R 1 2 W) 2

PN FH WA 20174F 12 A 29 H % 2018
3115 HA BA A R B A 2w A i
BE A PRA T (— R P B 2 4 5 4
BWA ) 2 MR ([HERIE ] MAE o did
T B 2 I [ 2 T A gk o T Y AR R
BRI T 2 SE AT > T4 ] AR %
BIEHE20184F4 A30 H o AR HE »
HEE S IE R SRR

xREFE

L
Bl ZS B e A

FEY 5 201843 A 29 H



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

2017 remained challenging but also offered promising opportunities.
While major economies around the world were in some phase of recovery,
China’s economy progressed steadily and achieved GDP growth of 6.9%
last year with the support of various economic stimulus measures from the
central government. Among various sectors, the consumption and service
segment reported a particularly strong growth. According to the Ministry
of Commerce, China’s major retail sales enterprises enjoyed strong sales in
2017 as the country’s stabilizing economy spurred consumption. The total
sales volume of 2,700 major retail enterprises surveyed rose 4.6% year on
year in 2017, 3.0% higher than that of 2016 and indicates a positive outlook

for retailers like C.banner.

Of the two major business segments where we operate, the footwear business
continued to face severe challenges mainly due to increasing competition
from international brands and cross-border e-commerce. However, China
remains as a promising market for footwear industry due to the increasing
disposable income, accelerating urbanization and improving living
standards, and this is especially so in China’s lower-tier cities and rural areas
which have seen remarkable rise in purchasing power and in turn demand
for retail products. Looking forward, it is expected that lower-tier cities will
be the major driving forces for the retail market in China as higher-tier cities

have already reached a greater level of saturation.

As for the toys industry, the latest two-child policy, progress in urbanization,
rising disposable income and increasing willingness of consumers to
purchase higher quality products are all expected to benefit the industry. The
full implementation of the two-child policy is set to add huge momentum to
the development of the toys industry. According to a research conducted by
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, two-child parents give more
weight to “place of origin” than one-child parents and although imported
brands of toys are more expensive, parents would still prefer them due
to their guaranteed quality. In addition, the 2017 Chinese Infant Product
Industry Report issued by Nielsen also pointed out that the new generation of
Chinese mothers are willing to pay a higher price for quality products. This
market trend is especially favorable to C.banner considering the Group’s
strategic acquisition of Hamleys, which is a renowned UK toys retailer

boasting a brand history of over 250 years.
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However, the above positive trend is accompanied by challenging operating
environment. In response, the Group has and will continue to undertake a
series of strategies. One key focus is branding and the Group will reinforce
its elegant and fashionable brand image and promote its brand positioning
as a leading and innovative international integrated retailer. Going forward,
C.banner will further optimize its brand portfolio, focusing on improving
product quality and design to meet the needs of customers. Building on
its strong alliances with international brands, C.banner will continue to
identify new potential licensed brands based on consumers’ preference to
further implement its global branding strategy as well as enhancing its brand

popularity and recognition in both Greater China and overseas.

In terms of marketing, the Company will further strengthen the construction
of a seamless sales system between offline stores and online sales
platforms, as its core part to widen its consumer base. With respect to store
management, the Company will continue to adopt a cautious approach in
store expansion and focus on optimizing proprietary outlets and third-party
retail outlets. Strenuous efforts will also be made in enhancing consumption

experience in offline stores and improving same store sales growth.
Hamleys as a Key Growth Driver

Acquired in 2015, Hamleys now forms an integral part of the Group’s
strategic plan. Hamleys operates in 23 countries across the globe and
recorded a 38% increase in international sales (excluding the UK) during
2017. During the year, Hamleys opened 34 new stores globally, comprising
6 proprietary stores and 28 franchised stores. As the majority of these new
stores are operated by international franchise partners, capital outlay required
for the expansion of retail networks is low. In addition, the Group started
trialling wholesale operations in the last quarter of 2017, whereby Hamleys
branded products were sold to 2 international toy retailers, which sold them

through 4 stores.

During 2017, Hamleys also closed 10 stores, comprising 6 proprietary stores
and 4 franchised stores. These stores were closed as leases expired or where
the stores were loss-making with no prospect of turning them around to be

profitable.
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In the UK, 2017 was one of the most challenging years in UK retail history,
and Hamleys was not immune to the impact of Brexit uncertainty, terrorist
attacks, macro-economic pressures and general erosion in UK consumer
confidence. A number of the Hamleys international markets experienced
their own challenges, however Hamleys continued to make tough and
difficult decisions to sustainably improve the business and recognise the
ever-changing trading environment. This included a strategic review of
the Hamleys Group’s estate, resulting in the exit of loss-making stores and
international markets with little prospect of growth or scale which will
result in some exceptional closure and non-cash costs in the UK and Nordics
region. In addition, the Hamleys Group realigned its cost base incurring some
exceptional restructuring costs that will result in lower head office costs
going forward. Despite the various headwinds, Hamleys has continued to
deliver its legendary experience to both domestic and international customer

groups and sustainably increased its global footprint even further.

In China, the second Hamleys flagship store opened in Xuzhou in September
2017. Together with the first flagship store opening in Nanjing in 2016,
both stores have already contributed to the business growth of the Group.
The third flagship store in China opened in December 2017 in Wangfujin,
Beijing, and is the world’s largest Hamleys store. Styled as a traditional
British toy kingdom, the new store introduces a wide range of child-related

products and is expected to become a key profit driver in the near future.

The Hamleys Group’s continued focus to improve customer experience
and proposition across all formats, introducing new products and services,
continued overseas growth and entry into new proprietary, franchise and
international wholesale markets has significantly strengthened the future
potential of the Hamleys business. Together with the strategic actions that
have been taken, the Group is confident of an improved performance going

forward.

In view of this improving performance, the Group plans to replicate the
unique Hamleys in-store experience, such as interactive playtime, events and
special demonstrations, in other populous Chinese cities in 2018. Besides
helping the Group to further develop its business in China’s domestic
market, Hamleys will also facilitate the Group’s expansion into new overseas
markets. The Group will also fully leverage on Hamleys’ global branding

strategy and worldwide retail platform to reach new business heights.
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As of 31 December 2017, there were a total of 129 Hamleys stores ~ #Z20174£12 731 A > Hamleys 33L& 5l 129
comprising 32 proprietary stores and 97 franchised stores. The following  [BJE &l » (3532 3 FEJE Ko7 45 #F 484

table shows the geographic distribution of these stores: JE > RS SR AN 3

Country Proprietary stores Franchised stores Total
DES HEZE)E TR Hgt
United Kingdom ] 25 - 25
Ireland TR 1 — 1
Denmark P12 1 - 1
Sweden Fifg i 1 - 1
Norway 7971 1 - 1
China i 3 - 3
Czech Republic T g SN ] - 1 1
Egypt &% - 3 3
India e - 47 47
Jordan #H - 5 5
Malaysia FEAR PG R - 6 6
Malta 5 HAth - 1 1
Mexico =5 P4 Af - 3 3
Philippines R - 2 2
Poland B - 1 1
Qatar R - 1 1
Russia R - 11 11
Saudi Arabia BT - 1 1
Singapore Bk - 2 2
South Africa [EES - 8 8
Turkey +HIH - 1 1
The United Arab Emirates BT R0 B A P R - 3 3
Vietnam [ - 1 1
Total Bt 32 97 129

g
3 8 C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Extensive Shoes Retail Networks

The Group has an extensive shoes retail network covering the majority of
first, second and third-tier cities with bright sales prospects. The Group’s
self-developed and licensed brands are primarily distributed through a broad
network of proprietary retail outlets in department stores and shopping malls.

It also sells its self-developed brands through authorized distributors.

During the past year, the Group reduced 35 proprietary shoes retail outlets
and 85 third-party shoes retail outlets respectively. As of 31 December 2017,
the Group oversaw a network of 1,662 proprietary retail outlets and 332
third-party retail outlets across China, maintaining a strong presence in over

31 provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions.

The Group continued to further optimize our retail networks comprising both
online and offline stores and strategically cooperated with retailers such as
department stores, shopping malls and outlets to increase market share. Our
goal is to enhance same store sales growth of each offline store and actively

promote online sales.

The following table shows the Group’s geographic distribution of shoes
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Notes:

(1) Northeast region includes Jilin province, Liaoning province and Heilongjiang
province;

2) Beijing region includes Beijing, Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, Zhangjiakou
city and Qinhuangdao city in Hebei province;

3) Tianjin region includes Tianjin, Shandong province and Hebei province (except
Zhangjiakou city and Qinhuangdao city);

4) Northwest region includes Shanxi province, Shaanxi province, Qinghai province,
Gansu province, Henan province, Xinjiang Autonomous Region and Ningxia
Autonomous Region;

(5) Central China region includes Hunan province and Hubei province;

(6) Eastern China region includes Jiangsu province (except Wuxi city and Suzhou city),
Anhui province and Jiangxi province;

(7) Zhejiang region includes Zhejiang province and Wuxi city and Suzhou city in Jiangsu

province;

8) Shanghai region includes Shanghai;

) Southwest region includes Sichuan province, Guizhou province, Yunnan province,

Chonggqing city and Tibet Autonomous Region; and

(10)  Southern China region includes Guangdong province, Hainan province, Guangxi

Autonomous Region and Fujian province.

Diversified and Enriched Brands and Products Portfolio under our

Global Branding Strategy

During the past years, C.banner has been making significant moves toward
the goal of developing into a leading international retail brand. In addition
to the strong-strong alliance with Hamleys, the Company has also set up a
joint venture with Madden Asia Holding Limited to promote, market, sell
and distribute products bearing the “STEVE MADDEN” logo, a renowned
US shoes and fashion brand, in the PRC through both online and offline
channels. These are part of our efforts to continue to shape and diversify the
brand’s DNA and enhance our core competitiveness. In the future, C.banner
will continue to look out for opportunities to acquire companies, both local
and overseas, with attractive brand value to make our already strong brand

become even stronger.
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Creative and Interactive Marketing and Sales Strategies to Bring

Exceptional Consumption Experience

In consideration of the upward trend of e-commerce popularity, the Company
will focus on constructing a seamless sales system, which could fully
integrate the offline channels, including shops in the department stores and
shopping malls as well as outlet stores, and online channels which include
official websites, Apps, Wechat Shop, Tmall and other third-party platforms.
Going forward, C.banner will fully utilize new media platforms such as
WeChat to reach a wider range of consumers. We will also continue to
operate online flagship stores on Tmall.com and JD.com and launch more
attractive online sales promotion to further optimize our O20 business
model. On the offline front, the Group will roll out attractive and diversified
marketing strategies such as VIP membership scheme, sales promotion,
outdoor advertisement and brand-new catalogues and brochures to provide

unique and extraordinary consumption experience to our customers.

Customer-Oriented Research and Design

C.banner always puts customers’ needs first. In order to deliver products
which tailored to the diverse requirements of customers, the Group has
established research and development teams led by experienced brand
directors and design managers. In-house training is provided to our staff to
ensure that they have strong sense and connection to the latest market trend.
In addition, the Company continues to collect, analyse and draw on a wealth
of sales data to get the latest fashion insights and provide quality and trendy

products to our target customers.

Continuous Optimization and Strengthening of Retail Network and

Channels

Through years of efforts, C.banner has built a strategic layout of self-
developed and licensed brands stores in China’s first, second and third-tier
cities across China. In the future, the Company will continue to optimize its
retails network comprising both online and offline stores and strategically
cooperate with third party retailers such as department stores to increase
market share. The Company will also strive to enhance same store sales

growth of off-line stores and actively promote sales of online stores.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW $4 % 1ol A
=
A For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s total revenue decreased #2017 4F 12 A 31 H 1E4F & > A4 [ (1) #0k
| 2] by 4.5% to RMB3,063.5 million, compared to the same period of last year. 75 4% 25 4E[7] M1 38 4 4.5% £ 4 N R %3,063.5 H
Gross profit decreased by 3.7% to RMB1,863.2 million. Profit before tax  #JC » BFIH D 3.7% EH AR 1,863.2 H 4
k decreased by 71% to approximately RMB80.9 million during the year 75 o JARIFAAERE - BRBLHTE Pl 71% 24 A
\ under review. The adjusted profit before tax (excluding operating loss in  F&#80.9 /7 1 0 o &85 %% BB AT % A R €145

Northern Europe, foreign currency exchange gain and share-based payment
expenses) was approximately RMB150.7 million, representing a decrease of
29.0% from approximately RMB212.3 million in 2016. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately RMB20.5 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 90.1% over the last year. The adjusted profit
attributable to owners of the Company (excluding operating loss in Northern
Europe, foreign currency exchange gain and share-based payment expenses)
was approximately RMB90.4 million, representing a decrease of 35.4% from

approximately RMB140.0 million in 2016.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s total revenue decreased
by 4.5% to RMB3,063.5 million, compared to RMB3,206.6 million for the

same period of last year.

The Group’s revenue mix comprises income from Retail and Wholesale of
Shoes, Contract Manufacturing of Shoes and Retail of Toys. The revenue
distribution of Retail and Wholesale of Shoes, Contract Manufacturing of

Shoes and Retail of Toys is set out as follows:

AvRcHb 5 09 58 2 e 18 - S RE R A 2o AR 0 S A
Z B3 #7 NBRHE150.7 B E TG > B20164F4)
NEHE212.3 H E#IC R 429.0% » AN FIHEAR A
JRE Ak v 2 4 T 49 90. 1% 49 AR HE20.5
BT o BAREAN A NN R CRa
FE Al [ Y S e 18 - AP RER AR A DA 93 32
T2 B) #15 NER90.4 H # 0 > #20164F
F NP 140.0 HE T T RER) 35.4% o

W gk

BE20174F12H 31 H LR > AR B Ak 6 1
FAER WD 4.5% 2 N R WE3,063.5 7 5 C
FAERIR A N RH3,206.6 7 # T ©

AR R AL A B AR S B T A S A
B TR | R [ B R 28 | 268 miL
A o AR BB - B A I R R %
B as I DL

For the year ended 31 December
WA 12 H 31 HILAEE

2017
2017 4

2016
20164

% of Total % of Total

-~
= 8

&= RMB (°000) Revenue RMB (’000) Revenue % Growth
> A Bl #5 i B8 2
A R¥ETFI HAL  AR¥TT AL HEEEOW
Retail and Wholesale
of Shoes T Lt 2,290,276 74.8 2,332,464 72.7 -1.8
Contract Manufacturing
~ of Shoes BRI ERE 138,506 4.5 249,312 7.8 -44 4
Retail of Toys DLHRFAE 634,742 20.7 624,786 19.5 1.6
Total st 3,063,524 100 3,206,562 100 45
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The decrease in Retail and Wholesale of Shoes is mainly attributable to the
decrease in same store sales of shoes as compared with last year and the
closure of inefficient shoes outlets; the decrease in Contract Manufacturing
of Shoes is mainly attributable to the reorganisation of the Group’s OEM

production lines.

Profitability

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the gross profit decreased by
3.7% from approximately RMB1,935.7 million in 2016 to approximately
RMB1,863.2 million, the gross profit margin was 60.8%, an increase of 0.4%

from 60.4% in last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, distribution and selling expenses
reached RMB1,583.2 million, an increase of 2.1%, compared to expenses
of RMB1,550.4 million last year, which was primarily attributable to the
closure of certain toy stores operated by Hamleys Nordics by the Group and
the increase in Hamleys’s stores in China. Distribution and selling expenses

accounted for 51.7% of total revenue, compared to 48.3% in last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, administrative and general expenses
amounted to RMB217 million, an increase of RMB25.3 million compared
to the same period of last year. This increase was mainly attributable to the
closure of certain toy stores operated by Hamleys Nordics by the Group
and the increase in Hamleys’s stores in China. Administrative and general

expenses accounted for 7.1% of total revenue, compared to 6.0% in last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s other income and expense
and other gains and losses recorded a net gain of RMB67.4 million, decreased
by RMBS57.6 million as compared to a net gain of RMB125.0 million last
year. Other income and expenses and other gains and losses mainly included
government subsidies, interest income on bank deposits and net foreign
exchange gain. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in net
foreign exchange gain by RMBS55.9 million from RMB66.7 million in the
year of 2016 to RMB10.8 million in the year of 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded finance
costs of RMB65.9 million, increased by RMB28.5 million compared to
RMB37.4 million last year. The increase was mainly attributable to the new

borrowings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s income tax expense
decreased by RMB9.1 million or 12.4% to RMB64.2 million, compared to an
expense of RMB73.3 million last year. The effective tax rate over the year
was 79.4%, an increase of 53.1 percentage points from 26.3% in last year.

The increase was mostly attributable to the decrease in profit before taxation.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s profit attributable to
owners of the Company decreased by 90.1% from approximately RMB206.3
million recorded in 2016 to approximately RMB20.5 million. The adjusted
profit attributable to owners of the Company (excluding operating loss in
Northern Europe, foreign currency exchange gain and share-based payment
expenses) was approximately RMB90.4 million, representing a decrease of

35.4% from approximately RMB140.0 million in 2016.
Liquid Assets, Financial Resources and Capital Expenditure

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had bank balances and cash of
RMB540.1 million, compared to RMB629.3 million at the end of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, net cash generated from operating
activities was RMB114.5 million, a decrease of RMB131.3 million as

compared to RMB245.8 million as of the end of last year.

The Group recorded a net cash outflow of RMB631.9 million from investing
activities for the year of 2017, compared to an inflow of RMB40.9 million
in 2016. The outflow was primarily due to the investment in an associate

subsequently treated as assets classified as held for sale.

Net cash generated from financing activities was RMB449.1 million in 2017,
compared to a net cash used in financing activities of RMB93.6 million in
2016. This was mostly attributable to the issuance of other borrowings and

notes in 2017 offset by the repayment of bank borrowings.
As of 31 December 2017, the net current assets of the Group were RMB872.4

million, compared to RMB1,329.2 million at the end of last year, a decrease

of 34.4% or RMB456.8 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 4 August 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds and notes, each
in the principal amount of US$50 million, to Cheer Hope Holdings Limited,
which are guaranteed by Mr. Chen Yixi, the chairman of the Group. Each
of the net proceeds of approximately HK$389 million arising from the issue
of the convertible bonds and notes respectively shall be applied to replenish
the working capital of the Company and cater for potential desirable
acquisitions. For the year ended 31 December 2017, no convertible bonds
issued had been converted into shares of the Company. Subsequent to the
reporting period, the Company redeemed convertible bonds in the principal
amount of US$10 million in January 2018, after which the principal amount
of the outstanding convertible bonds amounted to US$40 million, which are
convertible into 87,170,868 shares of the Company at a conversion price of
HKS$3.57 per share. Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 20

July 2017, 26 July 2017 and 4 August 2017 for further details.

Gearing ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio, computed by dividing total loans and borrowings
by total assets, was 28.9% as at 31 December 2017 compared with 20.7% as
at 31 December 2016.

Capital structure

The Group’s operations were financed mainly by shareholder’s equity, bank
facilities available to the Group and internal resources. The Group will
continue to adopt its treasury policy of placing its cash and cash equivalent
as interest bearing deposits. The Group’s loans and cash and cash equivalents
were mainly denominated in RMB, Hong Kong dollars, GBP and USD. The
Group’s bank borrowings denominated in USD as at 31 December 2017
amounted to RMB1,117.1 million.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s equity interest in Nanjing

Mayflower, Dongguan Mayflower, Nanjing Soft and Xuzhou C.banner have

been pledged to secure the bank borrowings of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any substantial or contingent liabilities as of 31

December 2017.
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Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s sales are mainly denominated in RMB, while its Contract
Manufacturing of Shoes is mainly denominated in USD and its Retail of
Toys is mainly denominated in GBP. The Contract Manufacturing of Shoes
accounted for 4.5% of total revenue, while the Retail of Toys accounted for
20.7% of total revenue. Nevertheless, the Board will keep monitoring the
impact of the exchange rate on our business closely and take appropriate

measures to mitigate the impact where necessary.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a RMB10.8
million gain from currency exchange, compared to a RMB66.7 million gain
last year. The Group did not hold any derivative instruments for hedging

against foreign exchange risk.
Human Resources

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had 10,457 employees (31 December
2016: 11,347 employees). The Group provides its employees with
competitive remuneration packages including mandatory pension funds,
insurance and medical benefits. In addition, the Group pays discretionary
bonuses to qualified employees according to the business performance and

their individual work performance.
Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year

ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).
Investment

On 21 July 2017, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with independent third parties (the “Sellers”), pursuant to which the Sellers
conditionally agreed to sell, and the Company conditionally agreed to
purchase, 5,669,931 A series preference shares of US$0.001 each and
649,889 A-1 series preference shares of US$0.001 each of EtonKids
Educational Group Limited (the “Target Company”), all of which would
be simultaneously converted into ordinary shares of US$0.001 each of
the Target Company upon completion (the “Sale Shares™) for a cash
consideration of US$79,408,705, representing 45.78% of the issued share
capital of the Target Company. Completion of the sale and purchase of the
Sale Shares took place on 11 August 2017, after which the Company held
45.78% of the issued share capital of the Target Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 29 December 2017, the Company entered into sale and purchase
agreements with Allied Way International Enterprise Limited and Hongkong
Hongxing Investment Management Limited (the “Purchasers”), pursuant
to which the Company conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchasers
conditionally agreed to purchase, the Sale Shares for an aggregate cash
consideration of US$89,499,900 (the “Disposal”). As at the date of this
report, the Disposal has not yet been completed. For details, please refer
to the Company’s announcements dated 29 December 2017 and 15 March

2018.

Outlook

China’s economy will continue to develop steadily with the support of a
series of government policies such as “One Belt One Road” and “Made
in China 2025”. In the long term, China’s structural reform will drive its
economy toward a consumption-driven market, which will give substantial
growth momentum to the retail industry where the Company operates.
Among our two major retail businesses, the footwear market will continue
to undergo restructuring and face various challenges before recovery in
2018. However, the accelerating urbanization, rising disposable income and
the growing middle-income class in China all point to a generally positive
outlook for the industry, especially for mid-to-premium brands which well
met the needs of the increasingly sophisticated Chinese consumer base. As
for the toys industry, the two-child policy in China will give a strong boost
to the consumption demand for child products and services and the mid-to-
high-end toys market, the primary market of Hamleys, is set to benefit the
most from the policy as parents are more willing to pay higher prices for

quality educational products.

In order to grasp the opportunities arising from these positive development
trend, C.banner will continue to establish Hamleys-themed shopping malls
and replicate the unique in-store experience of Hamleys in populous cities in
China to add synergy to our business and diversify our products and services.
The Company will also leverage on Steve Madden brand to upgrade its brand
image and diversify its business and brand portfolio. The joint venture with
Madden Asia Holding Limited will further consolidate the Group’s position

in the mid-to-high-end footwear market in the PRC.
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We will also give strenuous effort to implement our creative seamless
sales system to boost sales and enhance brand influence. While making all-
out efforts to improve consumption experience in offline stores, such as
upgrading the high-end customized 3D foot scanning services in selected
stores, we will also redirect sales from offline stores to online platforms
to achieve full online-offline integration. On the operation level, the
Company will rebuild the production line to increase production flexibility
and efficiency in order to meet the needs of small-batch and customized
production. The Group understands well that price alone is not a sustainable
business practice and will therefore adhere to rational discounting policy to
ensure the Group’s profitability. Instead, the Group will take other measures
such as improving inventory control, enhancing operation efficiency and
strengthening supply chain and stores management as solid steps toward the

goal of developing C.banner into a globally renowned brand.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the

annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions under the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules during the Review Period. The Company will continue to
review and enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, overseeing
the Group’s strategic decisions and monitoring the Group’s business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established three Board committees including the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board
has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their

respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the

Company and its Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the
Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance

coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board Composition

During the Review Period, the Board comprised four executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen Yixi, Mr. Zhao Wei, Mr. Huo Li and Mr. Yuan Zhenhua,
three non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Miao Bingwen, Mr. Wu Guangze
and Mr. Ngan Wing Ho, and four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson, Mr. Li Xindan, Mr. Zhang Zhiyong and
Mr. Zheng Hongliang. Mr. Ngan Wing Ho was re-designated from executive
Director to non-executive Director with effect from 2 June 2017. Subsequent
to the Review Period, Mr. Wu Guangze and Mr. Ngan Wing Ho resigned
as non-executive Directors with effect from 4 April 2018. The biographies
of the Directors are set out under the section headed “Directors and Senior

Management” of this annual report.

Relationships (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships), if any, among members of the Board are also
disclosed. There was no such relationship as between the chairman of the

Board (the “Chairman”) and the CEO during the Review Period.

Pursuant the code provision A.5.6 of the CG code, listed issuers are required
to adopt a board diversity policy. The Board has adopted the board diversity
policy and the summary of the board diversity policy is set out under “Board

Committees — Nomination Committee” below.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence

guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit

Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to the
issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company

in a timely manner.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals. During the Review Period, Mr. Chen Yixi was the Chairman
and Mr. Zhao Wei was the CEO. Mr. Chen Yixi is responsible for charting
the business strategy and has played a determining role in establishing the
Group’s presence in the PRC women’s footwear industry. Mr. Zhao Wei
was responsible for overseeing the operations (including brand and product
development), finance and human resource management of the Group during
the Review Period. As described above, there is a clear distinction between
the Chairman’s responsibility for providing leadership for the Board and the
CEO’s responsibility for managing the day-to-day operations of the Group’s

business.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

All executive Directors have entered into service contracts with the Company
for a specific term of two years or three years. In addition, all non-executive
Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company for a specific term of one year or

three years.

In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG Code, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Furthermore, pursuant to the bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-third
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation. The retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at any general

meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the vacated offices.
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In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG Code, all
Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
Shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment. By virtue of
the bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-laws, the Board shall have power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board but so that the number of Directors
so appointed shall not exceed the maximum number determined from time
to time by the Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general

meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are set out in the Bye-laws. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing the Board composition, monitoring the

appointment, re-election and succession planning of Directors.

Induction and Continuing Development of Directors

Each newly appointed Director shall receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the

Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors will be continuously updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Briefing and professional development for Directors will be

arranged where necessary.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During
the year of 2017, all Directors, namely Mr. Chen Yixi, Mr. Zhao Wei,
Mr. Huo Li, Mr. Ngan Wing Ho (re-designated from executive Director
to non-executive Director on 2 June 2017), Mr. Yuan Zhenhua (appointed
as the Chief Financial Officer on 2 June 2017), Mr. Miao Bingwen, Mr.
Wu Guangze, Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson, Mr. Li Xindan, Mr. Zhang
Zhiyong and Mr. Zheng Hongliang, participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills by ways of
attending trainings and reading materials which are relevant to the Group’s
business or to directors’ duties and responsibilities. In addition, the company
secretary of the Company from time to time updates and provides written
training material relating to the roles, functions and duties of a director and
all the aforesaid Directors study such materials and they are asked to submit

a signed training record to the Company on annual basis.

Board Meetings and General Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding board meetings regularly, at
least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of
not less than fourteen days are given for all regular board meetings to provide
all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and
given an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the

meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are recorded in
sufficient detail of the matters considered by the Board and the committees
and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the
Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the

meeting is held.
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For the Review Period, four Board meetings and an annual general meeting
were held and the attendance of the individual Directors at these meetings is

set out in the table below:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Board Meetings General Meeting

Mr. Chen Yixi 4/4 1/1
Mr. Huo Li 4/4 1/1
Mr. Zhao Wei 4/4 1/1
Mr. Ngan Wing Ho 2/4 0/1

(re-designated from executive
Director to non-executive
Director on 2 June 2017)
Mr. Yuan Zhenhua 4/4 1/1
(appointed as the Chief Financial

Officer on 2 June 2017)
Mr. Miao Bingwen 2/4 0/1
Mr. Wu Guangze 3/4 0/1
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 4/4 1/1
Mr. Li Xindan 3/4 0/1
Mr. Zhang Zhiyong 4/4 1/1
Mr. Zheng Hongliang 4/4 0/1

During the Review Period, the Chairman held a meeting with the non-
executive Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)

without the executive Directors present on 31 March 2017.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific enquiry has been made
of all the Directors and each of the Directors has confirmed that he has

complied with the Model Code throughout the Review Period.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors could have resources to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s

senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by

the management.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprised four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson, Mr. Li Xindan, Mr. Zhang
Zhiyong and Mr. Zheng Hongliang, and one non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Miao Bingwen. Therefore, the majority of members of the Audit
Committee are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Kwong Wai Sun
Wilson currently is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The main duties of

the Audit Committee include the following:

. To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the internal audit division or

external auditor before submission to the Board

. To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to the
work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,

reappointment and removal of external auditor

. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system

and associated procedures
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During the Review Period, two meetings of the Audit Committee were held
and the attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set out in the

table below:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 2/2
Mr. Miao Bingwen 2/2
Mr. Li Xindan 2/2
Mr. Zhang Zhiyong 2/2
Mr. Zheng Hongliang 2/2

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Review Period to review
the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2017,
the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the Company’s internal
control and risk management systems and processes (including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting

functions), and the re-appointment of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the corporate

governance duties, including:

. To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance

. To review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management

. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors

. To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

R R > 2 e O R T -
B B i B 2 BTk IOn Tk

#wH R BT
Ji A5 ek 2/2
BRI 2/2
ZEIL A 2/2
TR T A 22
LIt 2/2

FEAL T B o] A TR AT W R gk o AR
KRB E 2016412 H 31 H IM4FEEZ AR
A RAREREE 20174F6 A 30 H1EAEA Z
OSSR - IS AR AR AR Z N
0 B e T o A AR A R T (R A A T oy
Fh s R X AR IR B - B L&
e R Ae B~ KRRl R R A BEA R G AL A
T o3 2 0 A% i

FHZE B G AREATREER AL > 6

o HE RFEEAR N T 2 A R EOR R

B

. Tt e B 46 HE o S AR BN B 5
LR AR SR

« R REEREAN R T A AR B
EEOR 2 BOR X H

. R ~ Mt KA A R R B R 2
A7 557 R A BT ()

RTINS L2
TR o 2 B



Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprised four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Xindan, Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson,
Mr. Zhang Zhiyong and Mr. Zheng Hongliang, and one non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Miao Bingwen. Therefore, the majority of members of
the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.

Li Xindan currently is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the operation model
where it performs an advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining
the final authority to approve the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for formulating
such remuneration policy and structure and to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the

individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Review Period
to review and consider the existing terms of remuneration of the Directors
and senior management with reference to the prevailing market conditions,
a Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and fees paid by the

comparable companies.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2017 is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of individuals

RMB1,200,001 to RMB1,600,000 1
More than RMB1,600,000 2

Further particulars relating to Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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During the Review Period, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee was
held and the attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members is

set out as follows:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Li Xindan 1/1
Mr. Miao Bingwen 1/1
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 1/1
Mr. Zhang Zhiyong 1/1
Mr. Zheng Hongliang 1/1

Nomination Committee

During the Review Period, the Nomination Committee comprised one
executive Director, namely Mr. Chen Yixi, one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Wu Guangze, and four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson, Mr. Li Xindan, Mr. Zhang Zhiyong and
Mr. Zheng Hongliang. Therefore, the majority of members of the Nomination
Committee were independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Chen Yixi
currently is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. Subsequent to the
Review Period, Mr. Wu Guangze ceased to be a member of the Nomination

Committee with effect from 4 April 2018.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

. To review the structure, size and composition of the Board and make

recommendations regarding any proposed changes

. To identify suitable candidates for appointment as Directors

. To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or

reappointment of and succession planning for Directors

. To assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors

The Nomination Committee considered and resolved that all the existing
Directors shall be recommended to be retained by the Company.
Furthermore, in accordance with the Bye-laws and as resolved by the
Nomination Committee, Mr. Chen Yixi, Mr. Huo Li and Mr. Zhang Zhiyong
shall retire by rotation, and being eligible, offered themselves for re-election

at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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The Company adopted the board diversity policy with measurable objectives.
The Nomination Committee evaluates the balance and blend of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives of the Board. Selection of candidates
is based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to age,
cultural and educational background, professional and industry experience,
skills, knowledge, ethnicity and other qualities essential to the Company’s
business, and merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Board has reviewed such measurable objectives in March
2017 to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards

achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Review Period.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set out as

follows:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Chen Yixi 1/1
Mr. Li Xindan 1/1
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 1/1
Mr. Zhang Zhiyong 1/1
Mr. Wu Guangze 1/1
Mr. Zheng Honliang 1/1

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Group’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 which give a true
and fair view of the affairs of the Group and of the Group’s results and cash

flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. During the Review Period, the Company provided all
members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,

position and prospects.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets and

reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an annual basis.

The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal
audit department are reviewing the financial condition and internal control
of the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all branches and

subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considered the
risk management and internal control systems to be effective and adequate

during the Review Period.

The Group has embedded its risk management and internal control systems
into the core operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis, it will
review and assess the status of potential risks which may impact on their
ability to achieve the business objectives of the Group. This review process
includes assessment as to whether the existing systems of risk management
and internal controls continue to remain relevant, adequately addresses
potential risks, and/or should be supplemented. The results of these reviews
are reported to the senior management and the Board periodically and
regularly. However, the mechanism under the risk management and internal
control systems reasonably but not absolutely ensures the non-occurrence
of significant error, loss or fraud and it is designed to manage, rather than

eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Group has also adopted procedures to regulate the handling and
dissemination of inside information, ensuring the inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and

consistently made.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Annual audit fees of the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 payable to the external auditor are approximately
RMB1.75 million and the auditors did not provide any non-audit services for

the Group.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of the Group’s
business, performance and strategies. The Company also recognises the
importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of information, which
will enable Shareholders and investors to make the informed investment

decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.cbanner.com.cn, where up-to-date information on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information, corporate

governance practices and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each issue at Shareholders’ meetings, including the election of

individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in a timely

manner after each Shareholders’ meeting.

CONVENING OF SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)

months after the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state clearly the name of the Shareholder(s)
concerned, his/her/their shareholding, the purposes of the general meeting,
signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of several

documents in like form, each signed by one or more of those Shareholders.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionists or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration

of three (3) months from the said date.
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Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to the
requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so repaid shall be retained by
the Company out of any sums due or to become due from the Company by
way of fees or other remuneration in respect of their services to such directors

as were in default.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

The Company holds an annual general meeting (“AGM”) every year, and
may hold a general meeting known as a special general meeting whenever

necessary.

Any one or more Shareholders holding (i) not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all Shareholders having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 Shareholders, can submit a written request
stating the resolution intended to be moved at the AGM or a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed

resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s)
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered office and its principal
office not less than six weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the general

meeting in the case of any other requisition.

The written request will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Board should (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the
AGM; or (ii) circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided that
the Shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum of money reasonably
determined by the Board sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in serving the notice of the resolution and/ or circulating the statement
submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the statutory

requirements to all the registered Shareholders.

PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures are

available on the website of the Company.
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ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company

to the Board could email their enquiries to info@cbanner.com.cn.

COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company engages Ms. Mandy Mok Ming Wali, director of TMF Hong

Kong Limited, (a company secretarial service provider) as its company
secretary. Its primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Huo

Li, an executive Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Ms. Mok has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29

of the Listing Rules.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Review Period, there is no significant change in constitutional

documents of the Company.
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Executive Directors

Chen Yixi (BEZ58E), aged 51, is the Chairman, an executive Director and
the chairman of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Chen founded Nanjing
Mayflower Footwear Corporation (7 5% 3% FEHE #: 2 A R 2 A]) (“Mayflower
Footwear”) in 1995 and is a co-founder of the Group. Mr. Chen is responsible
for charting the business strategy of the Group and has played a determining
role in establishing the Group’s presence in the PRC women’s footwear
industry. Mr. Chen was honored by the People’s Government of Jiangsu
Province and the People’s Government of Nanjing as an Outstanding
Entrepreneur of Non-Stateowned Companies (7 R %¥%K) and is
currently the Vice Chairman of Nanjing Federation of Industry & Commerce
(P T LRI %W 5 ) and Vice President of Nanjing Enterprise Directors
Association (B TH&ZEZK ). Mr. Chen graduated from Nanjing
Normal University with a Bachelor’s Degree in News Propagation in 1988
and obtained a Master of Business Administration Degree from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in 2007. He served with the news
publications department of Jiangsu Chinese Communist Party Council from
1988 to 1995 before co-founding Mayflower Footwear with other partners.
Mr. Chen has not been a director of any other listed company in the three

years immediately preceding the date of this annual report.

Zhao Wei (#1#), aged 51, is an executive Director and the president of the
Group, responsible for overseeing the Group’s overall operation. He was a
former executive Director for the period from 2 February 2004 to 15 June
2012, responsible for the Group’s expansion strategies and wholesale. Mr.
Zhao joined the Group in December 1995 as a sales manager. Mr. Zhao
graduated from Jilin Agricultural University in 1990. He also obtained
a Master of Business Administration Degree from Singapore Nanyang
Technological University in 2008. Mr. Zhao has not been a director of any
other listed company in the three years immediately preceding the date of this

annual report.

Huo Li (% 1), aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director in 2001 and
has been the vice president of the Group since 2008, primarily responsible
for evaluating opportunities of, and formatting plans for, mergers and
acquisitions as well as international cooperation. Mr. Huo joined the Group
as an investment manager in 2001 and is responsible for the external
investments, international cooperation of the Group. In 1988, Mr. Huo
graduated from Fudan University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics.
From 1988 to 2001, he held various positions in the Bank of China, including
that of deputy general manager of the bank’s Changzhou Branch. Mr.
Huo has not been a director of any other listed company in the three years

immediately preceding the date of this annual report.
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Yuan Zhenhua (Z#&#), aged 36, is an executive Director and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Group and a board member of Hamleys Global
Holdings Limited. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting from
Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics in 2005. Mr. Yuan is
currently a non-practicing member of the PRC Certified Public Accountant
Association. From 2005 to 2015, he held various positions in the Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP, Nanjing Branch,
including being senior manager of the Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified

Public Accountants LLP, Nanjing Branch.

Non-executive Directors

Miao Bingwen (i 3(), aged 50, is a non-executive Director and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Miao is a co-
founder of the Group who served as an executive Director from 1995 to 2007,
overseeing the sales and business planning of the Group. With effect from
1 March 2007, Mr. Miao was re-designated as the non-executive Director.
Mr. Miao obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Chemistry and a Master of
Business Administration Degree from Nanjing University in 1988 and 2005,
respectively. He worked in Nanjing University Technology Development
Limited (F 5t KEBHYE BIEEA F]) from 1988 to 1991 and served as the
Nanjing market supervisor from 1991 to 1995, before co-founding Mayflower
Footwear with other partners. Mr. Miao has not been a director of any other
listed company in the three years immediately preceding the date of this annual

report.

Wu Guangze (%), aged 40, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director on 15 June 2012. He is also a member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Wu is the partner of China Consumer Capital Partners
Limited. Mr. Wu received a Master of Science degree from the University of
Reading and a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hertfordshire.
Mr. Wu has not been a director of any other listed company in the three
years immediately preceding the date of this annual report. Mr. Wu resigned
as a non-executive Director and ceased to be a member of the Nomination

Committee on 4 April 2018.

Ngan Wing Ho (Bi7K %), aged 43, is a non-executive Director and a board
member of Hamleys Global Holdings Limited. He has 16 years of experience
in corporate finance and equity capital markets, providing capital financing
and M&A financing solutions to corporates and financial investors across
Asia. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ngan held senior management positions
at global investment banks where he was a Managing Director and Head
of Equity Capital Markets at Huatai Financial Holdings, Head of Taiwan
Equity Capital Markets at UBS and Head of Asia Equity Syndicate &
Block Origination at ABN AMRO/RBS. He has received a Master’s Degree
in Accounting and Finance from the University of Southampton, United

Kingdom. Mr. Ngan resigned as a non-executive Director on 4 April 2018.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (BFf#{%), aged 52, is an independent non-
executive Director. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Kwong has been appointed as an executive director of China Metal
Resources Utilization Limited, a manufacturer of recycled copper products
in China and a listed company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with
effect from 16 August 2013. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Shunfeng International Clean Energy Limited, China Outfitters
Holdings Limited and China New Higher Education Group Limited, all of
which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Kwong graduated
from Cambridge University, England with a Degree of Bachelor of Arts
in 1987 and is currently an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong, who previously worked at a number of
investment banks in Hong Kong, has 13 years of experience in corporate
finance and equity capital markets in Asia. From 2002 to 2003, Mr. Kwong
was the head of equity capital markets for Cazenove Asia Limited. From
2004 to 2006, he was a managing director of investment banking and head
of Hong Kong and China equity capital market of CLSA Equity Capital
Markets Limited. From 2008 to August 2013, he was the President of Gushan
Environmental Energy Limited, a leading biodiesel and related products

producer in China formerly listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

Li Xindan (Z=0 /), aged 51, is an independent non-executive Director.
He is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Li currently
holds several positions with Nanjing University, including the director of
the Academic Committee and the Anzhong Chair Professor of the School
of Management and Engineering of Nanjing University, the director of the
Financial Engineering Research Center and the executive director of the
Venture Capital Research and Development Center of the university. Mr.
Li graduated from Fudan University in 1988 with a Bachelor’s Degree in
Management Science as well as a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics. He
further obtained a Doctor’s Degree in Finance from Fudan University in
1999. Mr. Li joined the Southeast University as an assistant professor in 1988
and was promoted to an associate professor and a professor in 1993 and 1999,
respectively. Then Mr. Li joined Nanjing University as a professor in 2001.
Mr. Li is currently an independent non-executive director of Holly Futures
Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
3678) and was an independent director of NARI Technology Co., Ltd. (&
I PHE B A PR 7)), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 600406) until 31 March 2015.
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Zhang Zhiyong (iR& %), aged 50, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 15 October 2012. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Zhang has been appointed as the executive director and chief executive
officer of China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3818), with effect from 10
October 2017. Mr. Zhang was the former Chief Executive Officer of Li Ning
Company Limited (“Li Ning”), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 2331) for the period from June 2004 to July 2012.
Mr. Zhang was also an executive director of Li Ning from 5 June 2004 to 27
June 2014 and a non-executive director of Li Ning from 28 June 2014 to 6
October 2014. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree of economics (%8
ELEL1-EL{) from Capital University of Economics and Business (7 #5487
& %K) (formerly known as Beijing College of Economics (b5t #8775 &%
[%)) in 1991 and an executive master degree in business administration (/5
SR HEN B TR S BEAE 4224 ) from Guanghua School of Management of
Peking University (3650 KRG MELET) in 2006.

Zheng Hongliang (¥4L5%), aged 59, is an independent non-executive
Director. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Zheng is currently a
professor of the Institute of Economics Chinese Academy of Social Science
(B AL BB B £E PR F 5T 9T ). Mr. Zheng is also the executive vice-
editor-in-chief of editorial office of Economic Research Journal ({&&¥5if
%)), which is a PRC journal in economic theory research published by the
Institute of Economics of Chinese Academy of Social Science. Mr. Zheng’s
field of research mainly covers the areas in respect of microeconomics,
comparative study of corporate system, theory of corporate governance, and
revolution of state enterprises. Mr. Zheng graduated from the Department of
Economic of Renmin University of China with a Master Degree in 1987. Mr.
Zheng is currently an independent non-executive director of Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 8025), a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

S N A P

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Wan Xianghua (##:3), aged 49, is the vice president of the Group. Mr.

Wan joined the Group in 1996, and is currently responsible for the operation
of natursun brand and the design, research and development and procurement
of MIO brand. Mr. Wan has served as a committee member of the National
Technical Committee on Footwear of Standardization Administration
of China ([ il A% #E {25 5 &) since 2008 and has been a professor
specializing in footwear manufacturing at Guangling Institute of Yangzhou

University (#5 /1 /& [ 52 BE) since 2010.

Wu Weiming (34 W), aged 46, is the vice president of the Group. Mr.
Wu joined the Group in 2000, and is currently responsible for the retail
operations of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu had served with
Shenzhen Zhen Xing Footwear Company (ZEYIIZ2 BLEEZE /S F]) since 1997
and was the general manager of East China Branch of the company when he

left the company in 2000.

Gong Lungui (#ffi#), aged 44, is the vice president of the Group. Mr.
Gong joined the Group in 2002, and is currently responsible for the technical
development, manufacturing, outsourcing and supply chain management of

self-developed brands.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF C.BANNER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.banner
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 75 to 175
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board
(“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

P S A B

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

Impairment on brand with indefinite useful life and goodwill

We identified the impairment on brand with
indefinite useful life and goodwill as a key
audit matter due to its nature involving key
estimation made by the management of the
Company and the significant balances of
brand with indefinite useful life and goodwill
as at 31 December 2017.

As disclosed in Notes 15, 16 and 17 to
the consolidated financial statements,
as at 31 December 2017, the brand
with indefinite useful life was valued at
RMB811,996,000 and goodwill was valued
at RMB156,712,000, which were both
related to the acquisition of Hamleys Global
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries in
2015.

The management of the Company are
required to make estimation of the
recoverable amount of the cash generating
units (CGUS), which is the higher of the
value in use or fair value less costs of
disposal, in assessing whether there is
any impairment of brand with indefinite
useful life and goodwill. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU and the suitable discount rate in

order to calculate the present value.

Our procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment on brand with

indefinite useful life and goodwill included:

- Obtaining an understanding of
the management controls over the
impairment assessment of brand with

indefinite useful life and goodwill;

- Examining the determination of
recoverable amounts which are the
value in use of the CGU to which
brand with indefinite useful life
and goodwill have been allocated
and obtaining an understanding
of financial positions and future
prospects of the CGU;

= Challenging the reasonableness of
key inputs and assumptions used by
the management in estimations of
value in use, including projections of
cash flows, growth rates and weighted
average cost of capital (discount rate)

applied;

- Testing the inputs into the cash
flow forecasts against historical
performance and in comparison to the
Group’s strategic plans in respect of
the CGU;

- Comparing the growth rates used
to historical growth rates for the
business of the CGU; and

- Checking the mathematical accuracy

of the calculation of value in use.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter
Allowance of Inventories obsolescence

We identified the allowance of inventories
obsolescence as a key audit matter due to
its nature involving key estimation made
by the management of the Company and its

significant balance as at 31 December 2017.

As disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 December
2017, the gross value of inventory,
mostly finished goods, held by the Group
was RMB907,099,000 and allowance
of inventories obsolescence was
RMB76,968,000. Inventories were carried
in the financial consolidated statements at
the lower of cost and net realisable value
(“NRV”).

The management of the Company are
required to make estimation of NRV of the
inventory based on various factors including
inventory aging and predicted future unit

selling prices.

OTHER INFORMATION

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

Our procedures in relation to the allowance of

inventories obsolescence included:

- Understanding how the inventory
provision is estimated by the

management;

- Testing the aging analysis of the
inventories, on a sample basis, to
the source documents including

warehouse and production records;

- Challenging the NRV estimated by
the management by comparing the
historical unit market selling prices
with predicted future unit selling

prices; and

- Assessing the reasonableness
and accuracy of the provisioning
methodology with reference to the
selling prices, physical conditions,
aging analysis and subsequent usage

and sales of inventories.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The

other information comprises the information included in the annual report,

but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,

our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the

Independent Auditor’s Report
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consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with [FRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

cerror.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but

to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s

report is Lo Kin Cheong.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
A TR A B H A A i M A 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HAE 20174F 12 H 31 H L4

2017 2016
2017 4% 2016 4F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BEGE UNEH S T ANRHET T
Revenue Wi 4 5 3,063,524 3,206,562
Cost of sales PR A (1,200,317) (1,270,890)
Gross profit EH 1,863,207 1,935,672
Other income and expenses and At A K BH 7 DA
other gains and losses N HoA i 25 K e 18 6 67,350 125,020
Distribution and selling expenses 340 B2 8 BH 32 (1,583,154) (1,550,370)
Administrative and general expenses ATBU R — R BH = (216,982) (191,699)
Share of profit (loss) of associates A3 Ak B A 7 ik A (1) 14,615 (3,626)
Share of profit of joint ventures G0 B v ik ) 1,775 1,168
Finance costs B A 7 (65,905) (37,436)
Profit before taxation I3 . AT ¥4 A 80,906 278,729
Income tax expense T 1575 B 52 8 (64,215) (73,296)
Profit for the year GRONN 9 16,691 205,433
Other comprehensive expenses, At 2 i B %
net of income tax MERBLIH
Item that may be reclassified ] GERE 1% B 3 4 K
subsequently to profit or loss: EHw A :
Exchange differences arising on translation {28 4 A4 (1)
of foreign operations [T 5, 25 (5,841) (32,121)
Total comprehensive income for the year #F [N 4 i 8 2 10,850 173,312
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to T 713 BEAG4E P} i Al (fi518)
Owners of the Company ANFEEA N 20,492 206,253
Non-controlling interests FEHE I 47 (3,801) (820)
16,691 205,433
Total comprehensive income (expenses) I 5135 HEA4E N
for the year attributable to: i ks (B %) «
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE 7 ZE DN 15,356 174,185
Non-controlling interests FE ¥ Rt 45 (4,506) (873)
10,850 173,312
Earnings per share 2 A
— Basic (RMB cents) —HAE (NR¥) 12 1.00 10.01
— Diluted (RMB cents) o T AUNET: 50 12 1.00 10.01
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

IR TN S

At 31 December 2017
*20174E12 H 31 H

2017 2016
2017 4F 2016 4F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
By AR¥T 70 ANRHET T
Non-current assets T B
Property, plant and equipment W2 - W SR 13 270,185 275,797
Prepaid lease payments T4 14 13,019 13,416
Other intangible assets HoAth TR 15 859,122 860,956
Goodwill [k 16 162,437 166,458
Interest in an associate RRE A 7 2 HEa 18 20,242 19,210
Interest in joint ventures WEE AT Z R 19 16,693 -
Available-for-sale investment At ERE 20 10,765 -
Deferred tax assets JESER TE A 22 86,645 83,176
Long-term deposits R 21,703 20,860
1,460,811 1,439,873
Current assets T &
Inventories ety 23 830,131 783,506
Trade receivables & 5 REWSURIE 24 392,273 384,464
Other receivables and prepayments A JRE A T % TELA K 25 175,025 150,630
Interest in joint ventures WNEEA R Z 19 5,231 6,013
Other financial assets HoAth 4 7l 5 7 26 10,000 =
Bank balances and cash SRATHE R B 4 27 540,059 629,299
1,952,719 1,953,912
Assets classified as held for sale SRR G 21 546,300 -
Current liabilities T A
Trade payables B 5y WEA 3 IE 28 183,263 177,726
Other payables A A 3T 29 289,675 209,907
Income tax liabilities Fr S A A 25,178 37,406
Borrowings liEpss 30 1,045,221 141,150
Deferred revenue ARAEUR 5 31 30,563 16,912
Obligations under finance leases — due Pl FEL S TH N AT
within one year — R4 R E 32 6,444 6,164
Provisions i) 33 17,269 =
Bank overdrafts SRATI5 L 30 29,001 35,470
1,626,614 624,735
Net current assets it B TR E 872,405 1,329,177
Total assets less current liabilities A Yok B 2,333,216 2,769,050

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

IR E R EIRDLAR

At 31 December 2017

2017412 A 31 H

2017 2016
2017 4% 2016 4F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 51 ARW¥FE ANRHET T
Non-current liabilities I Ui B
Deferred tax liabilities ARSI A fi 22 159,496 155,645
Borrowings — due after one year fEE—R — 4R3I 30 71,876 526,598
Obligations under finance leases — due B H B N AT
after one year — AR R 32 3,872 4,856
Deferred revenue PR AU 25 31 11,579 6,408
246,823 693,507
Net assets & TE 2,086,393 2,075,543
Capital and reserves AR it
Share capital A 34 209,097 209,097
Reserves it i 1,822,698 1,807,342
Total equity attributable to AN EIHEA N FEAG AR 25
owners of the Company 2,031,795 2,016,439
Non-controlling interests FEFE e 4 54,598 59,104
2,086,393 2,075,543

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 175 were approved

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2018 and are

signed on its behalf by: fRFEE
Huo Li Yuan Zhenhua B
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR HH

T H BB B A PR A F

EISENTS HZ 45 A MH KD 3 3 g i
201843 H 29 HHLE KAz HESE T30 i DA A+
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

22 A ARE L L4
oL S E R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
2017412 H 31 A L4

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

LYTEEIN {1 5
Shares held Foreign
under the PRC  Share-based Currency Non-
Share shareaward  statutory compensation Accumulated ~ translation conrolling
Share capital  premium scheme reserve reserve profits reserve  Sub-fofal  interests Total
fseRh IRBr
it L i Fiih
Bk REBER SEERG  redh HERE  RHEN R it i it
RMB'OOD ~ RMB'00  RMB'00D ~ RMB'OO0 ~ RMB'00D ~ RMB'0O0 ~ RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB0O0
MREFE ARMFE ARMFR ARMER ARMTD ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note 3)
(Bt3E3s)
At 1 January 2016 RUNI6ELALH 29615 634477 (50345) 23,119 - 805298 (337 1850827 58338 1909,165
Profit loss) for the year gt (ER) - - - - - 206253 - 206283 (820) 205433
Other comprehensive expenses for the year ERURERX = = = = = - (3068 (32,008) (83) (121
Total comprehensive income (expenses) forthe year  “E M2 (%) - - - - - N6 (2068 T4 6m) 1
Transfer ag - - - 19879 - (19819 - - - -
Acquisiton ofa subsiciary (note 37) LB~ R A (3E37) - - - - - - - - 7 79
Shares repurchased and cancelled (Note 34) R R SH R (B 34) (518 (8459) - - - - N ] -89
Share purchased for the share FARR et ARl
award scheme(note 36) 0ROt at36) - - (591) - - - - (591) - (391)
Equity-settled share award scheme (note 36) DERSENREE
atH (it 30 - - - - i - - il - ]
Transferof awarded shares wpon vesting (Note 36) ~ SHIRFFE AR (it 36) - - 950 - (91) i - - - -
Capita contibuton from non-controlling inerest~~ FEPERC R IE = = = = = = = = 900 900
At 31 December 2016 JR0t6% 12131 R 19007 oo (49986) 251998 - MLes (2405 2016439 104 2075543
Profit (oss) for theyear FREH B - - - - - M 1 A X R (1)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year EhRERY = - - - - - (5,36) (5,136) (705) (5,841)
Total comprehensive ERAmANE L)
income (expenses) for the year - - - - - 20492 (5,136) 15,356 (4,306) 10,850
Transfer g - - - N - () - - - -
At 31 December 2017 ROERA3IR 07 o6 (9986 23S - Mg () 2,031,795 459 2,086,393

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
#AE 2017 4F 12 A 31 H IR4FEE

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWETI8 AT

Operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Share of (profit) loss of associates
Share of profit of a joint venture
Finance costs
Exchange gains
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Share-based payment expense
Reversal for inventory obsolescence
Interest income on bank deposits
Income from other financial assets
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate
Income from held-to-maturity
investments

Impairment loss recognised on goodwill
Impairment loss recognised in respect

of property, plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables
Increase in other receivables
and prepayments
Increase (decrease) in trade payables
Increase (decrease) in other payables
Increase in provisions
(Increase) decrease in long-term deposit

Increase in deferred revenue

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Net cash from operating activities

2?%&{%@3
R i v ) 80,906 278,729
R
Oy IR ) (i 1)) e 8 (14,615) 3,626
I3 G A S i A 1,775) (1,168)
RS AR 65,905 37,436
[T 52, i (10,816) (86,682)
W R TR
63,432 59,905
STV 5 B 19,415 14,480
TE AT HH £ 397 397
DA e 173 o R 14 Sz AT 114 B 52 - 971
Fﬁi%i’a& =g 0] 9,472) (9,963)
TR B A (9,580) (4,255)
E@ﬁmﬂfééﬂ&c}\ (63) (52)
PR A — [ A W) 2 i i (3,551) -
Fr & BB B AR
= (107)
TERNEE Sl i 1,558 =
TERRIIZE ~ W B kMl B s 18
13,444 =
S S E R S SR E
195,185 293,317
8 () B (34,639) 73,166
B 5 FEWSCHRIE (B8 b (7,809) 41,759
HC A JRE WSk T R FEA s
(24,395) (13,760)
B 5y WEAS FIEHE I (kD) 5,537 (23,982)
A A SR IE RS A0 (kD) 55,846 (44,244)
ﬁé‘ﬁ%ﬂéﬁu 17,269 =
W4 () wib (843) 232
RTINS i 1 18,822 6,253
KRB ZETS I A 2 Bl 224,973 332,741
EATFLE (32,863) (28,098)
EAT PR BL (77,564) (58,813)
S B G IR 114,546 245,830

THEBRBEEBRARARE R

4
£
-
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HAEBARER

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HZE 20174F 12 A 31 HIE4F B

2017 2016
2017 4% 2016 4F
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 51 ARW¥FE ANRHET T
Investing activities BB IEE)
Payments for acquisition of property, W ISE - R R
plant and equipment ik (68,958) (71,674)
Payments for acquisition of intangible assets & i HEIE /’éf? (N (7,369) (16,365)
Investment in a joint venture WE—MEEAF (16,693) =
Investment in other financial assets 8 Ho A 4 Rl (10,000) (22,500)
Investment in an associate subsequently TR A ) O3S AR B
treated as assets classified as held for sale 435 /4 3 8 & (529,195) -
Investment in available for sale P AL B 4 il
financial assets (10,765) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, YIS - BRES SR
plant and equipment eS¢ 1,442 3,528
Redemption of held-to-maturity investments H& [543 52 1| JA 4% & 76 H - 3,062
Redemption of investment in other IR [ 7 A < 5
financial assets ZHE = 137,500
Income received from other financial assets . Ui HAth 4 il & g A 63 52
Income received from held-to-maturity E ke 2 3 & TE H Y A
investments - 107
Interest received from bank deposits B SRATAE A B 9,580 4,255
Acquisition of a subsidiary WAL o J A ) 37 - 2,981
Net cash (used in) from investing activities 4% &G 8 (7 ) BT 153 4 {F 4R (631,895) 40,946
Financing activities & 5 )
New borrowings raised FTEERIT R 747,172 5,000
Repayment of borrowings IR (294,707) (82,501)
Payment on repurchase of shares 8 o] 473 ) £ K - (8,953)
Purchase of shares held under the share 1 AR I B2 Jh - )
award scheme FEA B By - (591)
Repayment of obligation under finance lease f3#2 @l &l & & AT (3,316) (7,428)
Capital contribution from non-controlling  FE B HE 4 7 F &
interests - 900
Net cash from (used in) financing activities il & {58 FT 15 (B ) 31 4 40 449,149 (93,573)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and Bl R B4 558 (kb)) 38 i 48
cash equivalents (68,200) 193,203
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning SRR BL4e M Bl SEEHY)
of year 593,829 385,188
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 71 FFE 7 23 5 ) ) g 288 (14,571) 15,438
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ~ 4F#&HH & NI &% EY 511,058 593,829
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year, — FA&H G LB &L EY - B
represented by
bank balances and cash SRAT A R B & 540,059 629,299
bank overdrafts SRATIE L (29,001) (35,470)
511,058 593,829

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

C.banner International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies Act as an exempted
company with limited liability on 26 April 2002. The Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) on 23 September
2011. The addresses of registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information

section to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of branded fashion
footwear and retail of toys. The principal activities of the subsidiaries,
the associate and the joint ventures of the Company are set out in
notes 46, 18 and 19 respectively. The Company and its subsidiaries are

collectively referred to as “the Group”.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

(“RMB?”), which is the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

2.1 Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year
The Group has applied for the first time in the current year the
following amendments to IFRSs:
Amendments to International Disclosure Initiative
Accounting Standards (“[AS”) 7
Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to [FRS 12 As part of Annual Improvements
to [FRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

T H BB B A PR A F

ok o B 5 R T i

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE 2017412 H 31 B IR4ERE

IR

T B R A R A (TAA ] D) i
2002 4F 4 H 26 HARYEA &1 A S sk
BT B M R S A BRA T o AR ] A7
A 20114F9 H 23 HEEA/EF W G282 I
FIRAFE (THFWBE ST £k i o &
48 E) 2w A e e o S S ) b
HEJA AR R 2 T R — B 4

AN T R BCE BT o HIME AR E
A T B e S i RS 1 A % B
TE o ARFIMB AR - BEAFLE
B A SE R E BRSO M EE 46 - 18
Be19 o AN F) J L8 2> F SRR A [ AS
LN

BAEMBEEUARFRZIRERAR
T ARY) 251 -

W& R T 8 I B 5 i < 4 S
([ B ¢ S 5 e o 1 S0 |) % 19

%%%W¢£WZ1J
A A AP IE P I 5

B 2 & 5T

7% B8 [ A A 4 B B U RE A LT [

I F 75k s 4 1) 2 AT

B PR A WGt

B ErHER] )

B8 BT

B T A ws i) 2

F 12552 577 PERIERE
B

I PR I PR T

F1RZET HAI20144E %
2016474112
O

Wk R ST 4l 3 A o A A 4F B E A

5% 5 13 [ P S R A B B 2 B R I

408 35 A A [ AR A 3 RO 1R AR B 2

BB B ROIR W & 8% S AR

S 5 S 2 T SR 2 4 9 L K R
2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 20174F 12 A 31 H IE4FRE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)
2.1 Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the

current year (continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash
flows from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will

be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) the effect
of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iii) changes in fair
values.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in note 43. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart from the
additional disclosure in note 43, the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE 20174F 12 H 31 H ILFJE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

JE FH 0 5T 1 % B i 3 e i)
([ 1 B¢ B 5 i o M H) ) e I e
B S 7 o 4B HI 22 05T () ’

(CONTINUED) o
2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective 2.2 CLAE AR R AR R 2 iR B s
vl 2 A B R o Y
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised S 4 B R HR RO DL 28 A A
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: (EN N O & TN ¥\ s
HS S ER "
7]
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments' AREH SRR SRR
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers MEEREERE 1S5 RARFAAZIG \ R
and the related Amendments!' SRR N
IFRS 16 Lesses? RBEHGCERRI 6% R N
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts* BT RS ERS 1758 RiRAA 5
IFRIC-Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and B BRI e ShiE s R r"
Advance Consideration' ZEe -2k éé
Wk ;ﬁ
IFRIC-Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax BBt e o BB R £
Treatments ZEG-%R N el 7.
F0% 4
Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of B R A A DR Fy BB A i
Share-based Payment Transactions' CVL7a ) RomnE it 3
Amendments to [FRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial PR BB lmEl S ;’ ]
Instruments with IFRS 4 FATE BT A4S R R A%
Insurance Contracts' — (B R PR
REEAE 95
SHTH!
Amendments to [FRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative PR e RA AR
Compensation’ Fouz Bl R AL
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between B A e e NG
and TAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or 10 R G RAEAEZ R
Joint Venture?® BRI 8552 EEHERRAS
il
Amendments to TAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or B P A SRR SEEE
Settlement? F19%2 BT e
Amendments to TAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and B & ah e REEATDRAE
Joint Ventures? FRFE BT MRS 5N
Amendments to IAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to B e B PR T A o ]
IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle! Cwigiva ) 214 Z 20164 =
B R
Amendments to [AS 40 Transfers of Investment Property! B R HREE
F405 2 BT
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to B R e B R S A
IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle? b il 2015420174
B R
o
THREBBERARAT % LR 83
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE 20174F 12 A 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
. INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

W& R T R s B 25 i v e S
([ 1 ¢ S 5 e i Y S0 J) % [
I Bt 5 e o8 Y B 2 16T )

(CONTINUED)
2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective 2.2 LA AE NG R A B B R M R
(continued) w0 B B 7 e o 4 ) ()
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. ! 2018 4F 1 H 1 H a2 1% B i 2 47 2 i
AR
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 2 R 20194F 1 H 1 H 82 1% B i 22 47 B2 i
AR
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be ? TSI T 1 5 1 H A B2 4% B i 2 4
determined. AR
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 4 2021 4F 1 H 1 H 82 1% B i 2 47 B2
AR

I ¢ S0 5 ot SIS 9 9% 2 T
I B 75 A U5 9 SRS | AR
MEE - GMAf - —REhe
A B 4 il R B R 2 0 M
LRt BRE o

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial

assets.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group LA 42 1B A B 2 IR R RS i A e
are: HIZE 9982 FEBUEWFI T -

34

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All
other financial assets are measured at their fair value
at subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income

generally recognised in profit or loss.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)
2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

. In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred

before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the directors of
the Company anticipate the following potential impact on initial
application of IFRS 9.

Classification and measurement:

. Equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at cost less impairment as disclosed
in note 20: these securities are qualified for designation
as measured at FVTOCI under IFRS 9 and the Group
will measure these securities at fair value at the end of
subsequent reporting periods with fair value gains or
losses to be recognised as other comprehensive income

and accumulated in reserves.

. All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same basis as are

currently measured under TAS 39.

2.

Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE 20174F 12 H 31 H ILFJE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE 20174F 12 A 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of IFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at

amortised costs and other items that subject to the impairment

provisions upon application of IFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if
the expected credit loss model were to be applied by the Group,
the accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised
by Group as at 1 January 2018 would be slightly increased as
compared to the accumulated amount recognised under IAS
39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision
on trade receivables. Such further impairment recognised
under expected credit loss model would reduce the opening

accumulated profits and increase the deferred tax assets at 1

January 2018.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will supersede IAS

17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes

effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised

for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases

of low value assets.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2.2

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid
lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands for owned use while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of IFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into
a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as

financing and operating cash flows respectively by the Group.

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a
related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group
is a lessee. The application of IFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the
same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets

would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an

operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

2.

Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE 20174F 12 H 31 H ILFJE

W& R T R s B 25 i v e S
([ 1 ¢ S 5 e i Y S0 J) % [
I Bt 5 e o8 Y B 2 16T )

227

T H BB B A PR A F

A £ fHL 1 A A 8% =2 5T e B8 1
w B e B 5 e o8 4 B (A7)

I S 25 o EV 58 16 SR A £ ()
o7 48 R AR A A R
R AG A (MESZ 7 T AME DL
BR) 980 2 w9 85 Bk (e s 1R A
AL B AR 2 AT ) F B R AR
s - HE R EWPRRHE
A R S AT B 2 BUE R o
Hig - HE A ERAE R
AR BT L a4E) M
BEAE AR o B < U 0 S8
FoOAREMBIR AR A A
i 9 7 S0 TE A AR AT AR R 5 2
BE B S A AT
A3 Bl 2 5 /5 588 Bl e i i o AR
45 1 I A 5 o T DS 16 98 2 B
M A AR A R B A OIS
VAW e o I BN i e
LB &R 25 -

R B R R BR 17 9% AR
Pt A 2 Rl R — T
T % — TE R A B R ot
7 52 [ 7 7R AN B FH 55 - e R
O 28 A B KO o R A I R A S
ot Y B 56 16 5% T AEME EGZ S B
53 bR 2 5 A HE i 1 B AR
1 52 5 A EAR B (R HEAT) /Y
HFREHE N 25 -

SR AL N B w5 27k 8 T
o R B O HE S 16 BER
B T B PR Eh e A AR 17 5E R
A N & BT ik 1 B K A
A SR ALt AL B 2 8
B B A

LSSk o B [ B B o Y S5 16 T
TR RE R Y4588 B0l o

— LA B

87



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 20174F 12 A 31 H IE4FRE

, 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. W AT BB S s e o e B
e INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL ([ 12 B¢ B 85 e oy ¥ B ]) B2
f. REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) PSB85 e o Y B 22 6T ()

o (CONTINUED)
2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective 2.2 CLAEAMH N R A R Z BT B AR g
(continued) w0 B B 7 e o 4 ) ()
A IFRS 16 Leases (continued) 1B 5% A 5 o 4 ) 58 16 SR A B (A
\S As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable B EE 39 B4k i - R 2017 4F 12 1
ir operating lease commitments of RMB2,856,662,000 as 31 H » ARSI R AT Gk 8 A A
disclosed in note 39. A preliminary assessment indicates that EARYE N R H52,856,662,0007T © #
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon H EAG 3 UH 5% 4 L RS AT A B PR
application of IFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use B MBI ES 16 95 TE T AL &
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases FEFE o KR A 4L B A I A
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases. 52 S FEL B e R fe R O E XA B

AR BRaZ A B AT & R(E (X
RIS o

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result We Ak > A BRB B B E E b e
;, in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as FrintE - B8 R R E A ) o

Bz indicated above.

7,

1 Other than disclosed above, the directors of the Company PR bl Ah > AN FEEEL >
anticipate that the application of the other new and revised JRE P EL At s 5T S B8 46 T B R B S
IFRSs will have no material impact on the financial g A B JI I A B ShF A 4B [ G BA S
performance and the financial position of the Group. FRI B A SR Dl s Bl R R o

>
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for IFRS 2
Share-based Payment transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or

value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;
. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included

within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T s S M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the

three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to

control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if

this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the

Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee

Benefits respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition

date (see the accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that

standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on

a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling

interests are measured at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which

cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and

circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified
as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent

reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised

in profit or loss.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about

facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if

known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the

accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes and not larger than an

operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating

units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of

profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing

control.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the associate/joint venture other than profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of loss of an associate or joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinue recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate

or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the

investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of

the investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate
or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognise in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of IAS 39, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest
in the associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint venture
on the same basis as would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or

joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related

to the Group.

3.

THERBEERAERARE =%

fo A s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 2017 4F 12 7 31 HARAFSE

FEEGFEOR (@)

JA Wk O ) e 5 A S AR (4

it A< 4 B 3B W 8 ROk R R B D B
A BN TR LR IR - AR
GUAE B B T R TR RE AR o T A
4 18 R 18 i AR o e AR 4 I i 2
SIS 39 BE 2 i 18 A< 42 B4R B R R
AT G BN T 2 Mds H ik L 5
EMEE > AL ERZHEATE
R OR BERES o T A% A TR BEAR A A 4]
A HERR N Z A FH o RBE AR REE
) 2 B T SELAE e % e A i A o 5 T
BN T A BRI RE i 2 IS R A ST-(E T
AR AR E HEBE AR NG EA
R 2 1850 o BLAh - ASSE B M ST AR
At e AT WA R 5 B ) B N D
PR P S RANR - EHE L2 T
oG A A I R A
2R YEAA ) o PRIBE > W B 8 2 W) S i
A HAth 2 1 WG A TR R 22 Wi 4 B 1R
B R R B R R E T R
Rk o AL EE R & HR o A
Wi O ) B L IR i i e 4
HE it 7R 0 A AR AR (2% o7 40 SR
#) o

B A B A AR M R S
TS (BIneEE ST RUEE) - i
BELUG 5 O R B A AT 3 5 BT AR
4R i A A 4 T A 5 B B R R N R
AT o ) B 7 A 2 7R B A4 [ AT
I ) i 27 PR

AL

| s

r)
F)

SN

S0 BV

95



Z

#

96

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a

completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of an
investment in an associate, the investment that will be disposed of is
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
and the Group discontinues the use of the equity method in relation to
the portion that is classified as held for sale from the time when the

investment is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower

of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates,

discounts, sales related taxes and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the

Group’s activities, as described below.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are

delivered and titles have passed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Sale of goods (continued)

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers under the
Group’s customer loyalty programme are accounted for as multiple
element revenue transactions and the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable is allocated between the goods sold and the
award credits that are earned by the customers. The consideration
allocated to the award credits is measured by reference to the fair value
of the awards for which they could be redeemed. Such consideration
is not recognised as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction-
but is deferred and recognised as revenue when the award credits
are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have been fulfilled. Under
the Group’s customer loyalty programme, customers are entitled to
convert their award credits into cash equivalents upon the fulfilment
of certain criteria as set out in the terms and conditions of the Group’s

customer loyalty programme.

Royalty

Royalty revenue is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with
the substance of the relevant agreement. Royalties determined on
a time basis are recognised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the agreement. Royalty arrangements that are earned based on
a percentage of the sales of franchisee, is recognised on an accrual
basis in the period in which the sales of the franchisee take place, in

accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases wherever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial

position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised
in according with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which

they are incurred.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
lease, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentive is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the

leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When the group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property is accounted as an
operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold land
and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of
the leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the

lease at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis. Prepaid lease payments which are to be amortised

in the next twelve months or less are classified as current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
of the entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated at rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading

of foreign currency translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange

differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets

are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to

them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic

and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and
will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans
are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss in the periods during

which services are rendered by employees.

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the

benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any

amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme and share award
scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled share-based

payments”).

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity

instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined
at the grant date without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting condition is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
compensation reserve). For share awards that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share awards granted is expensed

immediately to profit or loss.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of equity instrument expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with corresponding adjustments to share-based

compensation reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to

accumulated profits.

Where the Company’s employee share trust purchases shares from
the market, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs is presented as “shares held under the share award
scheme” and presented as a deduction against equity attributable to the

Company’s equity holders.

When the awarded shares are transferred to the awardees upon vesting,
the related cost of the awarded shares previously recognised in “shares
held under the share award scheme”, and the related employment
costs of the awarded shares previously recognised in “share-based

compensation reserve” are transferred to accumulated profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary

differences arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, and interest in joint ventures, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interest are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and

they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current or deferred tax for the year is recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings buildings,
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) and freehold land
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes (other than construction as described
below), are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than properties under construction) less their residual values over
their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any change s in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.
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f A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of
the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term

and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful life that are acquired separately are carried at cost less

accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value

at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business combination
with indefinite useful life are carried at cost less any subsequent

accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to

determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for

which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and

whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss

is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary

to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the

time value of money is material).

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group

entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into the following specified
categarie: available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

AF'S financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables,
(b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.
The Group designated investment of unlisted equity securities as AFS
financial assets on initial recognition of the item which is specified in
note 20.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS financial
assets are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period
except for unquoted equity investments whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured. Changes in foreign exchange rates are recognised
in profit or loss. Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of reserves. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously

accumulated in the reserves is reclassified to profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of

each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FBE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables and other receivables, other financial assets and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy

on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivable and other financial assets where the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been affected.
For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be objective

evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:
e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest

or principal payments; orit becoming probable that the borrower

will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

. disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 60 days, observable changes in national or

local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income

are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of

investments revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FBE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s

own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised costs

Financial liabilities at amortised costs (including trade payables,
other payables, borrowings, obligation under finance leases and bank
overdrafts) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred assets, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of brand with indefinite useful life and goodwill

Determining whether brand with indefinite useful life and goodwill
are impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating units to which brand with indefinite useful life and
goodwill have been allocated, which is the higher of the value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation
requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, or changes in facts and circumstances which results
in downward revision of future cash, a material impairment loss or

further impairment loss may arise.

The carrying amount of brand with indefinite useful life and
goodwill at 31 December 2017 were RMB811,996,000 and
RMB162,437,000 respectively (31 December 2016: RMB805,182,000
and RMB166,458,000). No impairment loss was recognised on brand
with indefinite useful life during 2017 (2016: nil). An impairment of
RMBI1,558,000 has been recorded during 2017 (2016: nil). Details of

the impairment calculation are set out in note 17.

Allowance of inventories obsolescence

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Also, the Group regularly inspects and reviews its inventories to
identify slow-moving and obsolete inventories. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between inventories’

cost and net realised value.

The identification of impairment of inventories requires the
use of judgement and estimate of expected net realised value.
Where the net realised value is lower than the carrying amount,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2017,
the carrying amount of inventories was RMBg830,131,000
(2016: RMB783,506,000), net of write-down of inventories of
RMB76,968,000 (2016: RMB86,366,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Revenue recognition in relation to the award credits earned by the
customers under the Group’s customer loyalty program

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policy, sales of goods
that result in award credits for customers under the Group’s customer
loyalty program are accounted for as multiple element revenue
transactions and the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable is allocated between the goods sold and the award credits
that are earned by the customers. The portion allocated to the award
credits is deferred and recognised as revenue when the award credits
are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have been fulfilled. The
amount of revenue recognised is based on the number of award credits
that have been redeemed in exchange for awards, relative to the total

number of award credits expected to be redeemed.

The Group reviews the total number of award credits expected to
be redeemed at the end of the year, taking into accounts various
factors including the number of award credits not redeemed by the
customers upon expiration. The directors of the Company estimate that
customers will redeem the award credits under its customer loyalty
program in the valid period of the award credits in a manner consistent
with historical redemption pattern. The amount of deferred revenue
recognised in accordance with IFRIC Interpretation 13 “Customer
Loyalty Programmes” is classified as deferred revenue under current
liability at the end of the reporting period. As at 31 December 2017,
the carrying amount of deferred revenue arising from customer loyalty
programme was RMB30,563,000 (2016: RMB16,912,000).

This estimate will be reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revision to the
expected number of award credits to be redeemed will be made if there
is significant difference between the actual number of award credits

redeemed and the expected number redeemed in the future.
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4 5 & B R W o
4 For the year ended 31 December 2017
‘ BE20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

S. REVENUE AND SEGMENT S.
INFORMATION

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are based on

W g K o3 5B R

AR AR [ 2 K8 I W] i 4R DA 1) T E
RN ([ FEEERRN] > &AAH
WA R KRR R AR D
VEE IR T S R BUREAN A 8 o AN 3
Lo = AR AR ER > (1) §h RELIRE v A B 2 45 Tt
(R ERMEERE]D - QHESHE
B ([ AREERHE]) & QG)IEERE - %
S5 43 B T AR A AR B T R 2 G R
M #153 o

information prepared and reported to the chief operating decision
makers (“CODM?”), the board of directors of the Company, for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. The
Group is organised into three segments, (1) retail and wholesale of
branded fashion footwear (“Retail and wholesale of shoes”), (2)
contract manufacturing of footwear (“Contract manufacturing of
shoes”) and (3) retail of toys. These segments are the basis on which
the Group reports its segment information.

ASAE B4 R [ AR K AT R AR

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

operating and reportable segments for the year: ta MES TN -
: 2017 2016
% 2017 ¢ 2016 4F
[~/ RMB’000 RMB’000
: AR¥T I NS
é" Segment revenue 43 FB W A
Retail and wholesale of shoes A T B R
P — external sales AN F iR 2,290,276 2,332,464
Contract manufacturing of shoes BRI EERE
— external sales AN 138,506 249,312
— inter-segment sales — o ER S 33,104 15,521
Retail of toys AR E
— external sales — AR 634,742 624,786
Segment revenue P e 3,096,628 3,222,083
| Eliminations E (33,104) (15,521)
Group revenue £ H it 3,063,524 3,206,562
Segment results 43 HR K 4
Retail and wholesale of shoes RSV EiR 13 333,501 298,435
Contract manufacturing of shoes HHEERE (26,407) (9,966)
Retail of toys AEEE (176,673) 30,047
130,421 318,516
Investment income from FrEFMBEEAE
held-to-maturity investments ZHEIA - 107
Finance costs 5 A (65,905) (37,436)
Share of profit (loss) of associates S B N A A (548 14,615 (3,626)
Share of profit of joint ventures G ) i A 1,775 1,168
Profit before income tax 5 JT A5 3 i v ) 80,906 278,729
Income tax expense T A58 B 52 (64,215) (73,296)
Net profit for the year A TR AR 16,691 205,433
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment results represent the profits earned by each segment and
excluding finance costs, share of profit (loss) of associates, share of
profit of joint ventures and income tax expense. This is the measure
reported to CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and

performance assessment.
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

operating and reportable segment:

5.

fo T A M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
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W i S o R B R cst)

RO T m] ik 4y o 2w R B SR T
G RTBOR — 8 o S ARERTE %40 H T iR
W2z i Fl o ASELAE B AR ~ A
NEE A (B R) ~ Al &8 A wl A &
T A58 B 5T o WM T 1) 5 A 0 PR R R
AR > DA B U O) B B R B R A

3 HI T 9 65 T 4 BT T 5 T A AT o

A % A T T ik o B 0 2 B
KAESHATE

2017 2016

2017 4 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

A R¥ET 0 INL S o

Segment assets 7 Eh A B

Retail and wholesale of shoes B8 Y\Eiinidsd i) 3,244,405 3,129,963

Contract manufacturing of shoes BHEERR 437,726 449,383

Retail of toys HZFE 1,436,346 1,416,812

Total segment assets O3 E ARME 5,118,477 4,996,158
Eliminations Eog (1,833,758) (1,710,772)

Unallocated AL 675,111 108,399

Total consolidated assets AR A B E A 3,959,830 3,393,785

Segment liabilities 43 b L1

Retail and wholesale of shoes TAE R ft ot bR 341,064 249,460

Contract manufacturing of shoes GRIEEHE 259,049 251,756

Retail of toys LA ZE 1,780,310 1,186,065

Total segment liabilities Sy A AR 2,380,423 1,687,281
Eliminations Eak (691,660) (562,090)

Unallocated R i 184,674 193,051

Total consolidated liabilities e AEAE 1,873,437 1,318,242

For the purposes of monitory segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, segment assets are allocated to operating
segments other than interest in an associate, deferred tax assets,
interests in joint ventures and assets classified as held for sale, while
all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than deferred

tax liabilities and income tax liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
#2017 4F 12 71 31 H L4

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. Wotis o dE R )
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Other segment information Ho At 4y 5B & B
Retail and Contract

wholesale manufacturing

of shoes of shoes  Retail of toys Total
ZERMBRE ARLERR ZEIH At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1 NN ST NR¥ET 7 ARHT 5 NN BT
N For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE20174F 12431 HILFERE
\ Depreciation expense b 27,833 1,790 33,809 63,432
s Amortisation of intangible assets T B S 3,366 86 15,963 19415
£ Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TS S 397 - - 397
”‘ = (Reversal) provision for inventory BRESAEE5 (BE ) B4l
52 obsolescence (27,877) 1,471 16,934 9,472)
ﬂ} Purchase of property, plant and equipment  FEEIZE - & MM 15,131 501 54,943 70,575
/ Purchase of intangible assets B B 615 - 7,112 1,127
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill TR T BB 1R = = 1,558 1,558
Impairment loss recognise in respect of TR ~ HES Rty
propetty, plant and equipment AR = - 13,444 13,444
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate BUESRE— MBE A R 2 ks 3,551 - - 3,551
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEE - B Nkt
and equipment i 3E 1,331 111 - 1442
Interest income on bank deposits AT FRB A (9,135) (32) (413) (9,580)
Interest income on other financial assets HiSREER BRI (63) - - (63)
i For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE2016%F 12 731 HILFE
k24 Depreciation expense HiY-{ib3 37,931 1,941 20,033 59,905
4 Amortisation of intangible assets LA 2,936 151 11,393 14,480
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments ik 397 = = 397
(Reversal) provision for inventory BREETE & () 8t
obsolescence (12,077) 497 1,617 (9,963)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment TEE W - WS Bkt 24,134 2,930 50,278 71342
Purchase of intangible assets B G 9,093 - 15,121 24214
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYZE - B skl
and equipment Fr 508 3218 310 = 3,528
Interest income on bank deposits AT B A (4,102) (18) (135) (4,255)
Interest income on other financial assets HibamEEHBRA (52) - - (52)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern
Ireland (“UK”).

The Group’s revenue from external customers, based on location of the
domiciles of its group entities and information about its non-current

assets by geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

We %5 B 0 5B E BF ()

b i B

A R B SE B A0 A 2 N R AL A
(M H ) B R AN 51 B e L5 T8 T i
B ([ 3£ ) -

ARLEBAE [ AR R (4 R e A
PR AE W 73 ) 2 Wi > DA R % B AE
W) 73 2 IR BN EE B AT

Revenue from

external customers

2 H A% P AR
2017 2016 B
2017 4¢ 2016 4F | s
RMB’000 RMB’000 é
ARWTRE  ARETE gﬁ
The PRC rh 2,351,982 2,349,782
UK B 5 420,915 470,179
The United States of America B3| 139,384 247,205
Other countries Hofh B 5% 151,243 139,396
Total Fi 3,063,524 3,206,562
Non-current assets
I B B
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET 0 AR¥FIt
The PRC rh 271,599 268,674
UK 5 599,251 614,228
Other countries HoAh B 5% 503,316 473,795

Note: Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets.

There is no single customer contributing over 10% of the total sales of

the Group during both years.

BERE « JE LB & A A AR IR E

A TR A 4 8 A0 Sl 4 B — 6 5 B A 4 [ 8
B L ZEA A 10% 2 BB

TFHRRBRARAT % — G 117
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Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE 20174F 12 A 31 HILFE

6. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES AND 6. H e A B BA 3% DA B LAt Wi
g OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES i M s 18
2017 2016
2017 4¢ 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt ARFETIC

Other income H Al g A
;b A Government grants (note) B B (B GE) 51,102 47,377
\ Interest income on bank deposits SRATAERR B A 9,580 4,255
AN Interest income on other financial assets oAt 4 fill & 7 1| S U A 63 52
N Others HAth 7,240 6,563
= 67,985 58,247
ﬁ""“ Other gains and losses HAth g 2 K% e 48
ég Net foreign exchange gain iR e RE 10,816 66,666
=~ o e ) S Ty
/’/ Gain on deemed disposal of an associate i 1F 43— i 28 7] 2 Ui s 3,551 -
s Investment income from FrRFBEIHH 2 B E A
held-to-maturity investments - 107
Impairment loss recognized in respect R ~ W B B i 1R
of property, plant and equipment (13,444) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect i@ i 22k (E 5
of goodwill (1,558) -
(635) 66,773
67,350 125,020
Note: The amount mainly represented the subsidies received from the local PR = % 4 A = T AU 4 ) BT 6 T 7E v B
governments in the PRC where the Group entities were located for b TBCRT 77 S5 i i [ e SE TS A 1 B
encouragement of business development activities in the local areas. Higha -
z 7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BB UK
B 2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREETI0 AR#T T

I

s

Interest on borrowings SRAT R R 65,905 37,436

\

1 1 8 C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017 r
A 20174 12 7 31 HAR4FSE i
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. PrfGBibd =
2017 2016
20174 20164F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET 5t NS
Current tax: RBLIE -
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) Hh A TR ([ ZETRL) 69,108 62,933
UK profits tax e B FITRH 656 9,346
Under (over) provision of EIT WA EF BB E AL/ \
in prior years () N
EIT 4 S T 1,323 (2,166)
UK BB A B (5,751) -
65,336 70,113
Deferred tax (credit) charge (Note 22) IRAERE B S (FE4) (Bt 22) 1,121) 3,183 Z
64,215 73,296 [/
The tax charge for the year ended 31 December 2017 can be reconciled BAE2017F12 H 31 H 1L 4FEE 2 BiIEBH ﬁ
to the profit before tax as follows: BRI A 2 AR - y
/‘l’/{
2017 2016 T
2017 4 2016 4F :
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ANRWET T
Profit before tax 7ol i v A1) 80,906 278,729
Tax at the income tax rate of 25% TS BIBLR 25% w2 BiIH 4
(2016: 25%) (Note) (2016 4F = 25%) (Fftak) 20,227 69,682
Tax effect of share of (profit) loss AGEE AT G F) iRz
of associates TS s 2 (3,654) 907
Tax effect of share of profit of oA BB A A T R 2 B 5
a joint venture (444) (292)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  HLBLHG H B A AT F1380 2 B 52
for tax purpose 2 BT 5 15,392 9,311
Tax effect of income not taxable BBLES B 1 IHEBLZ A
for tax purpose Z RS 5 B a7 (2,265)
Decrease in opening deferred tax AFA) 0 S0 o TH 2 £ R
liability resulting from a decrease T R D
in applicable tax rate - (3,365)
Over provision in respect of prior year  #8#:4F B4 B 5 5 (4,428) (2,166)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised A< filé i B JE s 15 = Bl 5 o 22 25,391 1,180
Effect of different tax rates of group A DAAR ) R [
entities operating in jurisdictions BB AR B R
other than the PRC 9,781 (1,292)
Tax effect on withholding tax on R B R 0 i s B TR OB 2
undistributed profits in the PRC B R 2 1,967 1,596
Income tax expense for the year AR IR AR B 5 64,215 73,296
THERBRRARAT % LA 119
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f A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Note: Pursuant to the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% during the two years.

The Company incorporated in Bermuda is not subject to any income
tax in that jurisdiction during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
nil).

Best Invent Holdings Limited (“Best Invent”) and Best Value Profits
Limited (“Best Value”), two subsidiaries of the Company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), are not subject to any income
tax in that jurisdiction during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:

nil) as both of them have no assessable income in the current year.

Allied Great International Holdings Limited (“Allied Great”), and
China Ease Enterprise Limited (“China Ease”), which are both
subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong, are subject
to Hong Kong profits tax at 16.5% during the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: 16.5%). None of group entities have any assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax during the year ended 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

Hamleys Global Holdings Limited (“Hamleys Global”) incorporated
in UK is subject to UK profits tax at 19% during the year ended 31
December 2017 (year ended 31 December 2016: 20%).

At the summer budget 2015, the government of UK announced
legislation setting the profits tax rate at 19% for the years started/
starting the 1 April 2017, 2018 and 2019 and at 18% for the year
starting 1 April 2020. At budget 2016, the government of UK
announced a further reduction to the profits tax rate (for all profits

except ring fence profits) for the year starting 1 April 2020, at 17%.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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ARON TR A SR R R > R EE 2017
AE12 A 31 H IR4EFE BB SN 2% 7 1A
HIAE AR BFAS L (2016 4F ¢ 4IE) o

%2 ) T [H] Ff 8 2 W Best Invent Holdings
Limited ([ Best Invent]) M Best Value
Profits Limited ([ Best Value|) 5% & i
LRES ([ S0 bR LR ) sE bR - 4
BE20174F 12 H 31 H IE4F B B RSN %
AR [ 04 A o] BT A B (2016 4F © %) >
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1R A BEZEHE 16.5% SN A s RIS BL (2016
1 16.5%) o A E 2017412 H31H
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B A AT B B i R T 2 0 A 7 v ) 15
Bl o

Hamleys Global Holdings Limited
([Hamleys Global) 3% B 53 fiff i 57 2
#WAE20174F 12 431 H (#% 2016412
31 H ISR : 20%) IE4FBEHE 19% Bl
BT B A ASHL o

2015 R =TSR A > 5 BB E A
SCERLE > H20174F ~ 20184F X 20194F
4 71 B BALG I AF BE RIS BL 35T £ 19% >
T 202044 A 1 H B4R AAF BRI 158 %
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Under the relevant tax law and implementation regulations of the
PRC, withholding income tax is applicable to dividends payable to
investors that are “non-PRC tax resident enterprises”, which do not
have an establishment or place of business in the PRC, or which have
such establishment or place of business but the relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or place of business, to
the extent such dividends have their sources within the PRC. Under
such circumstances, dividends distributed from the PRC subsidiaries
to non-PRC tax resident group entities in Hong Kong shall be subject
to the withholding tax at 5%. Dividend distributed from a PRC
subsidiary to a non-PRC tax resident group entity in the BVI shall
be subject to the withholding tax at 10%. As at 31 December 2017,
except for those provided for as detailed in Note 22, no deferred
tax has been provided in relation to withholding income tax for the
remaining undistributed profits of RMB967,292,000 (31 December
2016: RMB781,363,000) retained by PRC entities, as the directors of
the Company did not anticipate to distribute such profits from its PRC

subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

fo T A M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 20174 12 7 31 HAR4FSE

Fh 45 B B 32 )
AELAEE v A 2 B M 91 > AT

[ I h BB o A 2 | & & IR /8
DAV [ HR 35 1N 9 15 2 BR 46 4% 78 41 T
B > R%AF B G v 0 NI e 5 ST A
B ZES T O R B A R ST A T
SE 55 BT (EAH BR BT 15 BT B b B AE v B 3%
ST A A B 2T T B B o R L
R [ B 2 D 1) A 9 B A A FE HR B RS
e BRI 2 B B B A P e S, - ZEH% 5% Bt
SR TEANBL o o B e A Al IR AT
& B L T S 11 FF v B B S R A SR A
BB Y I8 28 39 10% B9 FE 30 B A5 BB R
Ak o 2017412 A 31 H 5 Brst
HHEEANH AR 967,292,000 7T (2016
H12H31 0« AR 781,363,000 7C) )
R A 43 B v A VE T8 0 45 B 10 4
(FENE FLBRFRE 22) 41 > RS AR /N 7] 88 5 7
1 2 N I T T S E B
JBE 5w i ) > OISR A H A BH AR A B
TE 3 o

A A i Al
A i ) ELATIR LA 4% 08

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ANRHTIT
Depreciation of property, L E S Y&
plant and equipment 63,432 59,905
Amortisation (included in HEEH (L5 7EAT B R — MR BH )
administrative and general expenses)
— prepaid lease payment — A4 397 397
— intangible assets — T 19,415 14,480
Total depreciation and amortisation e R i 6 40 AR 83,244 74,782
Capitalised in inventories FERERL (5,402) (7,992)
77,842 66,790
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BRI 1,750 1,650
Employee benefits expense A 5 4 A BH S 636,719 594,115
Reversals of inventories BEEER (9,472) (9,963)
Cost of inventories recognised ELHfERR 5 BH S 2 A7 B A
as an expense 1,200,317 1,270,890
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
#2017 4F 12 71 31 H L4

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company were

10. EFH - FRITBANEKER
LE
B R T4 I 2 e T

122

as follows:

2017 2016
2017 4% 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
UNEH & ANR¥ET I
Directors’ emoluments: HER 4
— Directors’ fee —HEHE 1,191 1,253
— Salaries and other benefits — L& S HoAh A A 5,206 3,312
— Contributions to retirement — BAORAE AT A
benefits scheme 65 61
Total = 6,462 4,626
Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefits
Directors’ fee  other benefits scheme Total
TER R
RS JefgaAl it 3 sk At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N BT NRHF 0 N BT N BT
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE20174F 12431 HILERE
Executive directors: WS
Chen Yixi BRER 59 1,914 9 1,982
Zhao Wei k3 - 1,215 20 1,235
Huo Li EN - 1,001 20 1,021
Yuan Zhenhua (Note 2) R (fH3k2) - 634 16 650
Ngan Wing Ho (Notes 2 and 3) BKE (M7E2 &3) = 442 = 442
Non-executive directors: Tt ES
Miao Bingwen 23 172 - - 172
Wu Guangze SR 172 - - 172
Ngan Wing Ho (Notes 2 and 3) BAKE (M7E2 R 3) 100 = = 100
Independent non-executive directors: Bk
Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (s 172 = = 172
Li Xindan Z0 4 172 = = 172
Zhang Zhiyong i 172 — — 172
Zheng Hongliang L5167 172 - - 172
1,191 5,206 65 6,462

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

ll‘/\ﬁ/ﬂj’%%ﬁ%lﬂ' Jﬁi
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE 20174F 12 A 31 H ILFJE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. #H - FEFBABRIEES
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) P 4 () E .
Contributions - 3
to retirement
Salaries and benefits
Directors’ fee other benefits scheme Total
TER IRIRHRA
HHEHE HAt A A B B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 )
ARETE  AREFE  AREFE  ARETL &
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE2016412 A 31 HIFEE \\ j\:
Executive directors: WiES :
Chen Yixi g 179 - - 179
Zhao Wei il - 1,284 20 1,304
Huo Li EN - 1,025 20 1,045
Xu Tingyu (Note 1) TREERS (HH3E1) = 945 20 965
Yuan Zhenhua (Note 2) TR (f7E2) - 58 1 59
Non-executive directors: TS
Miao Bingwen E D 179 = = 179
Wu Guangze SR 179 = - 179
Independent non-executive directors: Bk #Es
Kwong Wai Sun Wilson b fE 179 = - 179
Li Xindan Z0ft 179 - - 179
Zhang Zhiyong iR 179 = = 179
Zheng Hongliang WA 179 = = 179
1,253 3312 6l 4,626

The executive director’s emoluments shown above were for their

services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and the Group. The non-executive directors’ emoluments

shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

There is no arrangement of waive the remuneration.

Notes:

1. The director resigned on 12 December 2016.

2. The directors were appointed on 12 December 2016.

3. Mr. Ngan Wing Ho was re-designated from an executive director to non-

executive director on 2 June 2017.

T H BB B A PR A R

RSN AT A I < A S
7R ) S 74 S 16 2L 5 A R R 1 sk
B o JF AT T PN 2 T R 2R S AR
FEA S W AR AR TS (Y e

Bt
L AR 201648 12 H 12 FRHE - B
2. W 2016 4F 12 H 12 HALR

3. BHAK SRR 2017456 A 2 H LA T # 3
AR R R ATE S o

=GR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
#2017 4F 12 71 31 H L4

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group two

(2016: two) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are

included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining

three (2016: three) individual were as follows:

10. EF - FRITBABLER

T 4 (a0
AL H AL R N W4 (2016

A A B AR FEE > R A A S
P L B R o RN =44 (2016 4F ¢

=) N T ¢
2017 2016
2017 4¢ 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ATt AR¥T T

Salaries and other benefits
Contributions to retirement

benefits scheme

Total

¥ S At 45 A
R PRAR A Mk

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals (including

directors) were within the following bands:

5,520 5,939
405 578
5,925 6,517

AR H AL (BAEE ) 105 2 4
FTAIGEE

2017 2016

2017 4 2016 4E
No. of No. of

employees employees

EE%H fE B % H

Nil to HKD1,000,000 0# T2 1,000,000 # 7T - =
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 # 7C 2 1,500,000 # 7T 2 1
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 # 7T % 2,000,000 7 7T 1 1
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 #5 76 £ 2,500,000 #5 7T 2 2
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 #5 JC £ 3,000,000 #5 7T = 1
5 5

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five

highest paid individuals (including directors and employees) as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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11.

12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T A M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 20174 12 7 31 HAR4FSE

DIVIDENDS 11. BB
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the RS 2017 4 YR A B AR RIS,
Company during 2017, nor has any dividend been proposed since the WA N > H B R
end of the reporting period (2016: nil). R ERATATIEE (2016 4F A HIRES. « 4]) -
EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. HB& A
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable ERARS BIHEA AL B LA K
to owners of the Company for the year is based on the following data: B THAR S DA B 58
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F

Earnings (RMB’000) A (NR¥ET )
Earnings for the purposes of FERH R AL AR T

calculating basic and diluted B A 2 B (A2 ]

earnings per share (profit for EA N JREA AF 4 3 A1)

the year attributable to owners

of the Company) 20,492 206,253
Number of shares (000) R 8H (%)
Weighted average number of AT R AR AS T

ordinary shares in issue less B B 84T AE iR

shares held under the share TIRET- 25 SO AR B2 A 1y

award scheme during the year & T E A AR N R

for the purpose of calculating Z Jetry

basic and dilutive earnings per share 2,057,400 2,061,346
Earnings per share (RMB cents) A (N R 4))

— Basic — A 1.00 10.01

~ Diluted — fi 1.00 10.01
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose T LR A B 2 R A o R ST 24 i BORD
of calculating basic and dilutive earnings per share were the same. T e 2 A B N RE S 25 B Bk ] o ALt
Accordingly, the dilutive earnings per share was the same as the basic REZE2017F12 H31 HIFFEE » AR
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2017. I R R 8 v A 1 2 R A T o

THEBEBREBRARARE - BREE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 20174F 12 A 31 H IE4FRE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% - MR R

Property, plant
Fixtures and equipment
and Motor Leasehold  Construction under
Buildings Machinery equipment vehicles  Improvements inprogress finance leases Total
HEHE
b BT
’ By LG T RE AEWEEE  ERIE B &it
RVBY0OO  RMB'0O0  RMB'0OO  RMB0OD  RMB'0OO  RMBU0O0  RMB'0OD  RMB'000
AREFE  ARBTE  AR®TE  ARETE  AR¥TR  AR®TR  ARETE  AR®TR
() IS
At 1 Jamuary 2016 201651 ] 1A 149,198 54,979 12491 29423 81,542 127 7,541 447101
Exchange adjustment i - - (14,071) - (457) - (1512) (16,040)
Additions FE 607 4708 13,154 4340 48,845 - 5,668 71,342
Acquired on acquisition UM — IR A AL B
of a subsidiary (note 37) (&£ 37) - - 1,116 - - - - 1,116
Disposals hE - (7,344) (1,649) G,170) (9.918) (1) - (24208)
At31 December 2016 F20164- 12931 H 149,805 52,363 122,842 28,592 12012 - 11,697 485311
Exchange adjustment PS8 A% - - 4551 - 111 - 478 5,140
Additions e - 1492 11,039 730 55,697 - 1,617 70,575
Disposals il - (763) (3,664) (3410) (801) - - (8,638)
At31 December2017 2017412131 B 149,805 53,002 134,768 25912 175,019 - 13,792 552,388
DEPRECIATION it
At 1 Jamuary 2016 R20165 1A 1H 34,978 31,088 EPAV 18,098 59,001 - 160 175,702
Exchange adjustment P SEAEE - - (5,027) - (69) - (317) (5413)
Provided for theyear AR 6,801 4790 20,601 4,568 21,635 - 1,510 59,905
Eliminated on disposals &R - (5.201) (1421) (4,140) (9.918) - - (20,680)
At31 December 2016 2016512131 H 41,779 30877 46,330 18,526 70,649 - 1353 209,514
Exchange adjustment i - - 2,594 - 24 = 183 2,801
Provided forthe year ~ AFUR 6,823 4014 27,935 293 18017 - 3,707 63,432
Eliminated on disposals RS - (382) (3.224) (2,789) (801) - - (7,19)
At31 December2017 201741231 H 48,602 34,509 73,633 18,673 §7.889 - 5043 268351
IMPAIRMENT Wil
At 31 December 2016 R2016% 1231 H - - - - - - - -
= Exchange adjustment VSt = - 208 - - - - 208
Provided for the year (i - - 13 444 - - - - 13,444
At31 December 2017 F20174F 12 /131 B - - 13,652 - - - - 13,65
CARRYING VALUES  BRifd
At31 December2017 201741231 H 101,203 18,583 47481 7039 87,130 - 8,549 270,185
At31 December 2016 2016512131 A 108,026 21,486 76,512 10,066 49,363 - 10344 275797

126
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13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.

(CONTINUED)
The above items of property, plant and equipment other than

construction in progress are depreciated, after considering their

residual values, on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:
Buildings 4.5%
Machinery 9%
Fixtures and equipment 5%-33%

Motor vehicles 18%
Leasehold improvements useful life or over the term of the lease,

whichever is shorter

In addition, the Group’s obligations under finance leases (see note
32) are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets, which
have a carrying amount of RMB8,549,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB10,344,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group closed certain
toy stores operated by Hamleys Nordics ApS (“Hamleys Nordics”,
formerly known as “HScan Holding ApS”). In the near future, the
Group had made plans to close more stores. As a result, the directors
of the Company reviewed the conditions of property, plant and
equipment in these stores and identified that certain fixtures and
equipment were fully impaired due to no future usage expected.
Accordingly, an impairment loss of RMB13,444,000 was recorded.

These assets were used in the Group’s retail of toys segment.

THERBERARARE =%

fo T A M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 20174 12 7 31 HAR4FSE

W3 - AN Bt ()

AR B RAEMIRH (e TR
B 51 ) 7 % 1 HL TR BR MR 0 7+ LA 0
2 4 A R BRI (L s )
HET A7 -

M 4.5%

i 9%

He B A 5% %= 33%

1R 18%

GERELYE ST AT A 4 A R A
(DA 2 )

BeAh 5 A< 4 B A IR N AR E (2
G EE32) DU A S EEEN A
HEFEHCHT > HLHR T (H A A R 8,549,000
JC(20164E12 31 H : ANEH10,344,000
Jo) °

AEE 20174 12 H 31 H ILARRE » A 4L
% PA% T Hamleys Nordics ApS ([ Hamleys
Nordics | > Fiif# [HScan Holding ApS.) £
BB G & o AR B 2R B AR A
A B PHBE 2 i o A SRR L > AN R
FE AL G TR Y - RS B
RIL - TR RR A T %€ B M s K TE A IR
A R T ZBOBE - L > 845 WUE S
BN E 13,444,000 G © AR B 2 A A
L FIR Be AR TR o

#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T s S M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017

A 20174F12 A 31 HIE4EE

14. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

14. WfFH 4

2017 2016
20174 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T8 ANRMTIT
Cost A
At beginning and end of the year SR SRR 21,037 21,037
Accumulated amortisation R
At beginning of the year 4] 7,224 6,827
Amortisation it 61 397 397
At end of the year FER 7,621 7,224
Carrying amount Wi T {E
At end of the year AER 13,416 13,813
Analysed for reporting purposes as: S B o
Current asset (note 25) TLEEE (K5E25) 397 397
Non-current asset IE T H G 13,019 13,416
13,416 13,813

The amount represents the lease premium payment for land use rights
which is situated in the PRC. It is amortised over 50 years and the

amortisation periods is in line with the period of land use rights.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R H

e ik

For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 2017 4F 12 7 31 HARAFSE

15. HAth S & B

Concession
Trademark Brand Software  agreements Others Total
(il il gt i Hity A5t
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB’000
AR¥FE  AR¥FE AR®Fr  AR¥Fr AR¥TFL AR¥ETx
Cost A
At 1 January 2016 2016417 1H 3,954 844,677 13,284 33,924 2,127 897,966
Exchange adjustment e S 7% (760) (39,194) (1,185) (671) (534) (42,344)
Additions WE 2,503 14,556 5,666 - 1,489 24,214
At 31 December 2016 20164 12431 H 5,697 820,039 17,765 33,253 3,082 879,836
Exchange adjustment HE 3t 0 8 243 9,601 387 920 158 11,311
Additions WE 1,452 2,511 3,406 = 358 7,721
At 31 December 2017 20174128 31 A 7,394 832,151 21,558 34,173 3,598 898,874
Amortisation #aH
At 1 January 2016 1201641 7 1H 79 15 5831 131 57 6,113
Exchange adjustment S (189) (425) (713) (129) (257) (1,713)
Charge for the year R 441 2483 4027 6,681 848 14,480
At 31 December 2016 20164 12 A 31 A 331 2073 9,145 6,683 648 18,880
Exchange adjustment HE i o 92 198 248 820 99 1457
Charge for the year R 2,561 6,817 3,962 4,563 1,512 19415
At31 December 2017 #20174 12 A 31 A 2,984 9,088 13,355 12,066 2,259 39,752
Carrying values JR (A
At 31 December 2016 2016412 A 31 H 5,366 817,966 8,620 26,570 2,434 860,956
At31 December 2017 20174 12 H31H 4410 823,063 8,203 22,107 1,339 859,122

The above intangible assets other than the brand of Hamleys Global
have finite useful lives. These intangible assets are amortised on a

straight-line basis over the following periods:

Other brands
Trademarks

Software

Concession agreements

Others

2~10 years

5 years
3~5 years
6 years
3~5 years

sl ) LA AT R A R

R B E (AN 4E [ Hamleys Global |

%5 Y &

FEE T AT S0 ] L A0 i e f

Al it 2 & 104
PIA 5 4%
LgEs 3% 54F
R o 6 4F
HoAth 3 & 54

THERBEERAERARE =%

#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f I B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

15.

16.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The brand of Hamleys Global, which arose from the acquisition of
Hamleys Global Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Hamleys
Global Group”) in November 2015, is stated at RMB811,996,000
(2016: RMB805,182,000) and has an indefinite useful life. This
indefinite useful life is supported by Hamleys Global being a well-
established and reputable brand and is the world’s oldest toy store.
There are no known legal or contractual provisions that would limit
the useful life of the brand and it is protected by trademarks that can

be renewed indefinitely.

5. At S8 & A ()

Hamleys Global Z f i (J572 20154 11
H i Hamleys Global Holdings Limited
KL E A 7] ([Hamleys Global £ 1)
FrEEA) > FIBR A5 A R 811,996,000 TG
(20164F : A R ¥ 805,182,000 7C ) » &
HEA BRI o B A7 M pRAE 1 2 g 5
1A Hamleys Global /£ &A1 37 2L 52 1 i
JE > SIS A BREE S AR AR BLELJE o Nlf
A B A7 1) T R T A0 468 S R A o L Y 4
B o RS2 T AR O B T AR T T DA A
FRAEHA

GOODWILL 16. 7ot
Amount
B
RMB’000
NS
COST A
At 1 January 2016 #R20164F1 H 1 H 182,946
Arising on acquisition of subsidiary (note) WA Mg — o o o A ) JUT /2 A 3 (B RE) 1,558
Exchange adjustment (e 5, e e (18,046)
At 31 December 2016 R20164E12 A 31 H 166,458
Exchange adjustment [FE 52, 5% (2,463)
At 31 December 2017 R20174E12 H31 H 163,995
IMPAIRMENT WAE
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 201641 A 1 H % 2016412 A 31 H =
Impairment loss recognised in the year (note) 4 N R I E R () (1,558)
At 31 December 2017 A20174E12 H31 H (1,558)
CARRYING VALUES HRTEI(E
At 31 December 2016 R20164-12 A 31 H 166,458
At 31 December 2017 R20174F 12 A 31 H 162,437

Note:

On 14 January 2016, the Group acquired 80% of the issued share capital of Hamleys
Nordics for a cash consideration of RMB4,514,000, resulting in a goodwill of
RMB1,558,000, details of which are set out in Note 37. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the Group closed certain toy stores operated by Hamleys Nordics.
In the near future, the Group had made plans to close more stores. As a result, the
goodwill arising from the acquisition of Hamleys Nordics was accordingly fully
impaired. Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in

note 17.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON INTANGIBLE
ASSET WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIFE
AND GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing, brand with indefinite useful
life and goodwill set out in notes 15 and 16 have been allocated to three
individual cash-generating units (CGUs). The carrying amounts of

brand with indefinite useful life and goodwill as at 31 December 2017

allocated to these units are as follows:

fo A s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 2017 4F 12 7 31 HARAFSE

17. H AR W] i A A B ey S T

e T A - AP B A PR

FEBE BRI > BEaE 15 K 16 Tk i
T ELA e B3 A {05 A B 1 R A T
—H BB 4 LAY o RS
BV R S A 2017 4E 12 H 31 H Y
HREEANT -

Brand with
indefinite
Goodwill useful lives
HA Je R w] £

[ A 151 ik
2017 2016 2017 2016
2017 4 20164 20174 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFE AR® T AR¥TRE AR¥TT
Hamleys Global (Unit A) Hamleys Global ({7 A) 156,712 159,175 811,996 805,182

Mega Brilliant International F 7 B A PR

Limited (Unit B) (%47 B) 5,725 - -
Hamleys Nordics (Unit C) Hamleys Nordics (¥4 C) 1,558 - =
162,437 166,458 811,996 805,182

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and their

major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

Unit A

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by directors of the Company covering a
ten-year period, and discount rate of 15%. Unit A’s cash flow beyond
the four-year period are extrapolated using an average 5% per annum
growth rate. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the
unit’s past performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. The management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of Unit A to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount
of Unit A.

T H BB B A PR A F

ol 3 A B T o ] < A ) K
Be Ape 4 T BOAA B B st 0

HLAL A

7% A 2 T i ] 4 %8 ) DAL B AE
FEE > A B RO AR = P o
250 AR A 2 B TS K 15% 2 3T B A5
2 B R A o A O AR R 2
AL A BB AR AR 5% 2 3G R 2
HEEAF ) o FhE 0 F 8 (2 HoAh £ 2R
A BLAGEBL & AU AR B o BLRETE
BB R BAR o sZ MR
I 2 #8 R R B LA I A B g 3 T 3 R 1
THAME ) o B FR 8 MR M5 AR AT % S5 st 2
] & 3R AT RESET) - A% A EEBH AL A
2 I T A48 {8 0 B A7 A 2 T i ] R R o

B AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE 20174F 12 A 31 HILFE

17.

18.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON INTANGIBLE
ASSET WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIFE

AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
Unit B

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by directors of the Company
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 10%. Unit B’s cash
flow beyond the two-year period are extrapolated using an average
5% per annum growth rate. Other key assumptions for the value in
use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is
based on the unit’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. The management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of Unit B to exceed the aggregate

recoverable amount of Unit B.

Unit C

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group closed certain
toy stores operated by Hamleys Nordics. The Group has planned to
close more stores in near future. The recoverable amount of Unit C
became nil then. An impairment loss of RMB1,558,000 (2016: nil) in

relation to Unit C was recognised accordingly.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

17. H A SRR w] 5 A4 B ey S T &

e R AR B A IR (a0

HALB

% B0 2 AT 4 R S AR (EAE
fiE S o A B RO AR 4 T A T
2R 2 BAHS FUAE B 10% 2 F1 B R AR
2 BT EEE & - R AR 2
B BB A ARG AT 5% 2 R R
HEBAR ) o 518 (8 (2 HoAh = 2R
BB & AT AR B o BLETE
B ERE M ERE - ZE MR IR
P2 W F B DL e A5 B R BT 3 B R 1)
TAHAVE o 5 308 AR M5 AT (T s% S5 Rk 2
L] &3 n RESE B > i RSB
2 HE TR AR (R AR PR B 2 T Wi [ 4 4 % o

¥i.HLC

R E2017F 12 H31 H L > A&
[% B PA 2 T Hamleys Nordics &8 1) 5t
B & - A% B R R AR B
PR Z 5§l o UG > B0 C 2 Al [a] i 4
B E o BT C MERR B (B A RN B
1,558,000 7 (2016 4F : &) -

18. i Wi 4> ] A i

2017 2016

2017 4 2016 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHTI5 ANR¥ETF T

Cost of unlisted investment in an associate S =N LU P TE S S %N 26,924 26,924
Share of post-acquisition total 31k WA A% 4 T s 4 A

comprehensive loss (6,682) (7,714)
20,242 19,210
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18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting

period are as follow:

fo A s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 2017 4F 12 7 31 HARAFSE

18. JR M 2\ BIRE £ (1)

SR > B AR Z R

Principal Proportion of nominal value
Place and date of place of of issued/paid up capital and
Name of associate incorporation operation voting power held by the Group  Principal activity
GRL DN BA R M 2 CBIT/ THRAR
Wi A vl A LY FEAENS SRR 2 P T
2016
2016
United Nude international The BVI Hong Kong 26%  Branded shoes supplier and trading
Limited (“UN”) 28 April 2008
United Nude International RERORS His AR I L TE A K 5

Limited ([UNJ) 20084F4 H 28 H

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s interests in UN
was reduced from 26% to 20% due to the capital injection of a new
shareholder of UN. The reduction of the Group’s equity interests from
26% to 20% was treated as a deemed disposal. The gain on deemed
disposal amounted to RMB3,551,000 is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The changes in the Group’s equity
interests in UN did not result in the Group losing significant influence
over UN.

The summarised consolidated financial information in respect of the
Group’s associate which is accounted for using the equity method is

set out below:

A E20174F 12 H31 H I > & 4E
B 1A UNHE 25 FH 26% 3 2 20% > % B iR
UNI — 44 58 AR Tk o AR S [ 2
%t F 26% Ik 2 20% #E A A R AE B ER - 45
YRR 2 dieas N R ¥ 3,551,000 TGRT A
22017412 H 31 H IL4FE 42 A8 &
HoAt A2 TR R o AN A UNRY #E £
55 1) 7 0 2B AR 4 T AR U 5 288 00 K i
Wb

A Bl A 2 68 M 25 35 AR LI I B
BRI A R AR R R
T

2017 2016

2017 4¢ 2016 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tou NE¥T e

Current assets T B & 56,053 41,709
Non-current assets JE B A 820 2,704
Current liabilities i B=Ki 39,124 34,695

T H BB B A PR A F

| s
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w
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fo B T s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 2017 4F 12 71 31 H L4

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 18. e A vl R HE 45 ()

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: bl B E R BB SR NS E
2017 2016

2017 4 2016 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ Tt ARBETIC

Cash and cash equivalents Bl R B4 S8 24,168 9,713
\ Revenue A 79,287 57,510
N Loss and total comprehensive AF N s 48 % 4 THT B S AR
\ expense for the year (12,489) (14,850)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to ol TS A R T BRLA A A R AR
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the L HERR 1 A SERE £ 19 HIR TR (L 11 S IR

consolidated financial statements:

2017 2016
2017 4E 2016 4%
RMB’000 RMB’000

NG T AR¥T

Net assets FEE 17,749 9,718

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest AR E A HERE 25 LA 20% 26%

Goodwill [k 7,418 7,418

Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition NSSERTE S lid o 2 9,244 9,244

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest 7 AL [ 4 2 AR THIE 20,242 19,210

19. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 19. A5 E AR LR

| 2017 2016
< 2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T NEHT T

Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures A BRI BT AR 42,944 26,251
Share of post-acquisition loss 3 ik i HEE A N 1R (21,020) (20,238)
21,924 6,013
Shown under current asset G A B & E (5,231) (6,013)
Non-current portion FE B R 16,693 =

1 3 4 C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

As at

the end of the reporting period, the Group had interest in the

following joint ventures:

fo A s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 2017 4F 12 7 31 HAR4FSE

19. REELEMRELS @)

R IR > AR R 5 & 8 S B
i

Principal Proportion of nominal value
Place and date of place of of issued/paid up capital and
Name of joint venture incorporation operation voting power held by the Group  Principal activity
GOV SA EYAE KW 2 CHAT/ RRRA
ARERARE W& HH o T S {2 bl FEREH
2017 2016
20174 2016
B&H Footwear Company Hong Kong Hong Kong 49% 49%  Trading
Company Limited 29 May 2007
(“Hong Kong B&H”)* (note 1)
FHREEARA i i U]
([ RHE D) * (ED) 200745 H29 H
SM (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. Jiangsu the PRC The PRC N/A  Trading
(“SM”)* (note i) 27 June 2017
BB (LH) HIRAT oI L Gilei TER "
(TESRHE ) * (W) 2017627

Notes:

Dongguan B&H Footwear Industries Limited %5 3% H #E 3E4 FRA w
(“Dongguan B&H?) is a 100% subsidiary held by Hong Kong B&H. The
principal activity of Dongguan B&H is manufacture and retail of branded
fashion footwear. The joint venture agreement of Dongguan B&H expired
in 2017. The Group and respective joint venture partners decided to close
the operation of Dongguan B&H and the liquidation procedures were still in
process as of 31 December 2017. The carrying amount of the interest in the

joint venture will be collected back by cash payment from Dongguan B&H.

Xuzhou C.banner (as defined in Note 46), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with Madden Asia
International Limited (“Madden Asia”) for the establishment of SM (Jiangsu)
Co., Ltd (“SM”). SM is owned as to 50% by Xuzhou C.banner, and as to 50%
by Madden Asia.

e

T H BB B A PR A F

REEE A RAF ([RFEXERE D 5
TR EHEA Z B AT o RIEHE
2 BRI A i S TR R R o
REEE 2 A B EMHRT R 20174 E
o AR & BB R M E SRR
SEREAEME > 120174 12 A 31 HE&
FIFABFEEAT R o A B EZ MR IIR
T (L9 91 R 55 R A B4 Ao ol e o

AR ] [H e 42 P B A RV AR N T BE (8
¢ Wb 55 46) B2 Madden Asia International
Limited ([ Madden Asial) #57 ik » B
HEEE (LR ARAR (T£2]) - £
2T H EHEA 50% M B Madden Asia #E
50% °

— LA B

/
(
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

19. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)
The summarised consolidated financial information in respect of the

19. NEELEMRELR @)

A A A S T i FHYHE 2 5 A IR 5 7 A 2K

Group’s joint ventures which is accounted for using the equity method 45 & ERMEZ RS T
is set out below:
Dongguan B&H 2017 2016
WHEE R 2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTE  ARMTE
|
N Current assets TLE) G 11,455 13,817
Non-current assets FE T B A 204 465
|~ Current liabilities B A 984 2,011
%
= The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: bl E N BRI A AL T S &I
<
; 2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW¥ Tt ANRHET T
Cash and cash equivalents Bl R Bl 58 11,450 13,786
Revenue I %5 = 35,576
(1,596) 1,347
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive N (548 6 A &
(expenses) income for the year AT (B S2) W s 4% (1,596) 1,347

A AR ORI LA A A R
i R 8 A S At ) R T (P IR

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

2017 2016

2017 4 2016 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ANR¥EFIC

Net assets T 10,675 12,271
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest A B2 [ A RERE 4 LE £51 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest 7 48 B 4 2 R THI(E 5,231 6,013

1 3 6 C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017




fo A s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 2017 4F 12 7 31 HARAFSE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %

19. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 19. RAEENENRESE @)
(CONTINUED)
SM 2017 2016
g 2017 4¢ 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt ARHFETIC

Current assets B EE 40,789 -
Non-current assets FE M E G 70 = \;
Current liabilities pi UN=i 7,473 = N
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: bl R R AR RS T B A5 I
=~
2017 2016 / 77
2017 48 2016 4F =

RMB’000 RMB’000 }(;’(

AR Tt ARFETIT &

Cash and cash equivalents B4 M B S E Y 30,962 =
Revenue W 4 3,711 =
Loss and total comprehensive expense A TN 4R S 2 THT B S AR AR

for the year (55) -
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the DL B T U B v A ) R A R T (B
carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture recognised in the EHHRIA SR G B R MR

consolidated financial statements:

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T8 AR T

Net assets FEE 33,386 =
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest AR A A RERE 45 LU 50% -
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest A AR B A 2 R T 16,693 -

THRMBRRARAT  —% LR 137
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

20.

21.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

20. "]t EEIE

2017 2016

20174 2016 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T I UNGSL: o T

Unlisted equity securities I b AR 5 10,765 =

The unlisted equity securities represent an insignificant portion of the
equity interest in AMTU Inc., an independent automatic teller machine
(“ATM”) deployer in the PRC, which is principally engaged in
deployment, operation, maintenance, sales of ATM and development
of relative software. It is measured at cost less impairment at the end
of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that its

fair values cannot be reliably measured.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
On 11 August 2017, the Company acquired 6,319,820 ordinary

shares of US$0.001 each of Etonkids Educational Group Limited
(“Etonkids™) (“Sale Shares”) from independent third parties,
representing 45.78% of the issued share capital of Etonkids for a
cash consideration of US$79,408,705 (equivalent to approximately
RMB529,195,000), which was accounted for an interest in an
associate at acquisition because the Company can exercise significant
influence over Etonkids. Etonkids is a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and, together with its subsidiaries and controlled
companies, is an education group operating kindergartens under the
brand “EtonKids” in the PRC.

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 December 2017,
the Company conditionally agreed to sell 3,175,095 Sale Shares for
a cash consideration of US$44,965,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB295,964,000) and 3,144,725 Sale Shares for a cash consideration
of US$44,534,900 (equivalent to approximately RMB293,133,000)
to independent third parties, representing approximately 23.00%
and 22.78% of the issued share capital of the Etonkids respectively.
Etonkids had been accounted for using the equity accounting up to
the date of this report, when it is reclassified to as assets held for
sale, and the Group’s share of Etonkids’ results of RMB17,105,000
was included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Upon the completion of the above transaction,

the Company will cease to be a shareholder of the Etonkids.

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s interest in Etonkids has been
included under assets classified as held for sale in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

21.

I T R A A 2 B e B 4 S ) B AT B R
([ EEiE 4% |) %% AMTU Inc. 2 B
HRIEE RHR Sy o A% A A B
EHAERE - A A BB I
WA B EE o JE b T AR RS R A Ak R
DUSAS B 25 BB R TR - R A A A
(ELAh T 0 B K > W3R A A T fE

LA SRR -

o3 F8 25 ¥ VR 1 B 1 B e
201748 H 11 H » A/ ) [0 48 57 56 =
7 VAt i AP U ] R B A I A BR A ([
1 |) 2 6,319,820 B 3 B T {0.001 3 G2
W ([ R D) > AG0HEE BT
A K9 45.78% » B4 fCAE £ 79,408,705
JG (FHE ) N R 8 529,195,000 7C) > A
R A WO AR TR Bt s ml 2 M 4 > R AR
N EI TR IR AR ) o e —
FAE B 2 BE Sk M B i A A BEEC
JBE N ) B R ) 2 A v B 4 7 ) LR
MAEEHE -

AN A 2 " OA OB £20174E12 29 A
B 4 i > AR A A A TR
#3.175,095 B & B 4y ( Bl & A0 E
544,965,000 % T ( A H R AN R
295,964,000 7C ) ) K 3,144,725 I 15 5 A
U5 (B 4 {08 544,534,900 35 JC (K
R # N R #293,133,000 7C) T SR =
T3 o 43 Al Ak B B AT I AR 4 23.00% K
22.78% ° AAHE H Y > HiEE B
e B RE AR > B H IR A R R
B N o AN AR B AL R 2 A N R
17,105,000 JG £ 5 A &5 & 48 25 & Hofth 47
Al s o LG SE AR - AR R
N PP A IR T o

H20174E12 A 31 H - ASE [ iAMPHE 1
R E R SR A IAFIR LR LA S A R
ERESHE o



22. DEFERRED TAXATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE 20174F 12 H 31 H ILFJE

22. EREPEIH

The following are the deferred tax balances recognised by the Group DA 2 7 45 B e 1) 4 S o TE 455 8k o L
and movements thereon during the year: AER ST ¢

Fair value

adjustment on

intangible

Withholding  assets arising

Unrealised Write tax on from

profit in down of Tax Deferred  undistributed  acquisition of
inventories  inventories losses income profits ~ a subsidiary Others Total

i

AR

HRRER RERE  EVEEN
WA FEHG BEER BERA BR ATEAE Al it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
AE#FE  AREFE AREFr AREFC AR®FC AREFE AREFo ARETI
At 1 January 2016 R0I6FTH1H 58,039 23,516 1,203 4213 - (168,051) 4,693 (76,387)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (BRI FARS (7,995) (2.308) 6,548 15 (1,596) 5,080 (3,129) (3,183)
Exchange differences A ER - - - - - 7454 (353) 7,101
At31 December 2016 20164 12 431 50,044 21,08 7,751 4208 (1,59)  (155315) 1,211 (72,469)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (BHEGR) AR (2,700 (7,076) 3983 3413 (1,967) 1,140 4308 1,121
Exchange differences 3 - - 145 - - (1,758) 110 (1,503)
At31 December 2017 ROITE1AIH 47344 14132 11,879 7,641 (3,563)  (155933) 5,649 (12,851)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

DUR 25 7 BB 30 H IR SE B JH A% B 2

reporting purposes: Vi

2017 2016

2017 4 2016 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AN R¥T 0 ANRHET T

Deferred tax assets R SIE B TE 86,645 83,176
Deferred tax liabilities R FE R TH A (159,496) (155,645)
(72,851) (72,469)
THEBEBERGRAE T CeEaEEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

22.

23.

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 22, JEFEBIH (40)
Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared HRAE A SE T AR BE vk > wf o B A Jo 4 R 4
in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries that are received 20084 1 7 1 H i 8 I R B A SE T e
by non-PRC resident entities from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred R Vi A1) IR I S B AT B o R BT
tax liability has been provided for distributable profits which were TH A E O3 n] 43 IR vk FIAE 434 > ml 43
determined according to the dividend policies of the PRC subsidiaries. TR Vs A1) AR 4 v R I8 2 ) 2 B8 BUR
fEEE o
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has unused tax losses of 2017412 H31 H > A4 BRI A Bl
RMB58,695,000 (2016: RMB29,302,000),which will expire due JE 518 B N\ R #5 58,695,000 7T (2016 4F :
after five years since the tax loss making year Deferred tax asset of N EH529,302,000) > [ B JE 5 1H 4R B
RMB11,879,000 has been recognised in respect of such tax losses as FAEMR JE T o A20174F12 H31H » B
at 31December 2017 (2016: RMB7,751,000). % JE G 18N R 11,879,000 T fifé 58 108
HEBLIE B E (2016 4F AR #7,751,000
JG) °
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has unused tax loss BAE20174F12 H 31 H IL4FBE » ARSEE K
of approximately RMB115,032,000 (2016: RMB4,764,000) available B FH A TE R 49 N R B 115,032,000 7€
to offset against future profits, in respect of which no deferred tax (2016 4F : N5 4,764,000 7C) AI{EHEEH
assets have been recognised, due to the unpredictability of future profit H & A2 H o i B AR i A5 5 45 1k
streams. Such unrecognised losses will expire at 2022. TE o Sl 4 Al A T R AR A T
%S5 AR AR M AR IS 2022 4F e
INVENTORIES 23. #K
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T o ANR#FIC
Raw materials JEAA R 28,596 25,527
Work in progress TE R 20,358 17,822
Finished goods R 858,145 826,523
907,099 869,872
Allowance of inventories obsolescence PR 17 L H A (76,968) (86,366)
830,131 783,506
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 2017 4F 12 7 31 HARAFSE

TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. ¥ 5 WA
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T8 UNGSL: o T
Amounts receivable from sales of goods R H 5 & 5 I R IE 384,467 351,686
Amounts receivable from royalty revenue A& B R R AR i A 1 R AR I 7,806 32,778
Total = 392,273 384,464

The Group allows a credit period of 15-60 days for collection of the
trade receivables. Certain trade receivables which are past due are
interest bearing. The Group would also allow longer credit period for

certain customers with long term relationship.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, presented based

on the revenue recognition dates at the end of the reporting period.

AR EE R 5 ME MG AR 15 5 60 K
5810 o 0005 B 5 ME G B ZE 5T
B AEENR ST RNEGHER
FETRRAESEN -

VAR 7% B2 5 R WO TR R % A5 S AR Hc Wi 4
TR H 39 2 51 iR EE AT

2017 2016
2017 4¢ 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T NERHET T

0 to 60 days 0% 60 K
61 to 180 days 61 K5 180 K
181 days to 1 year 181 K| 14
Over 1 year A 1 4F

Pursuant to the contracts with department store operators, the Group
will issue invoices upon the receipt of the regular statements from the
department store operators and therefore invoices may be dated later

than the revenue recognition dates.

At 31 December 2017, 81% (2016: 77%) of the trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired. No impairment loss is provided for
these receivables because they are within the credit period granted
to the respective customer and the management considers the default
rate is low for such receivables based on historical information and

experience.

319,516 296,660
41,598 59,001
10,657 8,460
20,502 20,343

392,273 384,464

R BUFT £ AV T A9 - A SEH
1 M T 024 B 0 R A
BELTE » OB S O A T
R -

R20174 12 A 31 H > & 5 K 5 E /Y
81% (2016 4F : 77%) WE 4 % ] IR 48E Jf
(B o 790 A% A5 R AT K T R 4 4 Ul A 4R
Bl > 5B R AR 1 S E PR G
B A R R R R A o AR A R K
REBE > %5 T SR TE Y 78 R AT R AR
ik »

THEBRBEEBRARARE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 2017 4F 12 7 31 H L4

24.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors with a
carrying amount of RMB72,757,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB87,804,000), which were past due for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality of respective debtors and the amounts are still

considered recoverable.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

24.

B 2 BEW sk I (1)

7 48 B 5 ) JE WK TR A B 8 iR 2017 4R
12 H 31 HBETm (8 £ A K% 72,757,000 7
(20164F + AR 87,804,000 JC) 11 E Ui
SH > FLEEHE > T AS 4R [T A R Uk
(B SR B > T ER A 45 {18 I WA JE O S
BT 2RI 4 K AR ) R % S R A AR
ALY ]

20 301 1L AR TR g S0 5 G Sk JE 1 B i

2017 2016

2017 4 2016 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥ET6 ANR¥ETF T

61 to 180 days 61 K% 180 K 41,598 59,001
181 days to 1 year 181 RZE 14F 10,657 8,460
Over 1 year A 14 20,502 20,343
Amounts receivable from sales of goods B B A R R E 72,757 87,804

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. In
determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group
monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables since
the credit was granted and up to the reporting date. After reassessment,

the directors believe that no allowance is required.

Details of the Group’s trade receivables denominated in foreign

currency of the relevant group entities are as follows:

A G2 1 B 5% 4 A R Ol S R A AT AT R
fh o TE B RE B 5 M WK TELI AT i Je] A
RF - A< 4R [ B B0 0 ME WG O B 4%
B & B 2 0k H O SR R AR
SEE) o fEEHREAGR > EHR A IALE
A -

A 5 A 4 2 L 0 5 R 0 5
S REVGHIR R T -

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T o PNRL o T
Denominated in: I3 WS -
The United States Dollar (“USD”) B 63,044 68,882
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25.

26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 2

PREPAYMENTS

Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE 20174F 12 H 31 H ILFJE

5. Hfth JE Wic K JE K PR A 3k
2017 2016
2017 4¢ 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt ARFETIC

Advance payments to suppliers T 44 R P A S 96,729 93,202

Value-added tax receivable JRE i 184 (B ol 8,574 5,035

Deferred expenses TEAEBA 45,324 35,528

Prepaid lease payments (note 14) FEATAL BRI (5T 14) 397 397

Others HoAth 24,001 16,468

Total B 175,025 150,630
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. At 5 A Es

2017 2016

2017 4% 2016 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt ANR¥ET I

Other financial assets under current assets LT TE A At 4l 10,000 -

As at 31 December 2017, other financial assets represent interest
rate linked other financial assets (“OFAs”) placed by the Group to
a number of banks or the Group’s investments in other restricted
low risk debt instruments arranged by banks for terms less than one
year. Pursuant to the relevant underlying agreements, the OFAs carry
interest at rate of 3.9% per annum during the investment period and the
principal sums are denominated in RMB fixed and guaranteed by those
banks.

2017412 A 31 H > HiAth £ @l & E 45
AR AR B AR O 22 28R AT H B 3248 61 1)
oAt 4 il ([ HoAth il 2 ) SiAs g
[FH] 7 BR AT 2 P 1 L A 52 R il A1 JE o 25 55
THZE > BRI 14 - iREH R
Tih ek > JHLth 4 Rl T 7 A 450 B [ e A 48
3.9% 1 A] BB A R GHE > T AR 4 3 CE A
ANEHEEHE » Bl ZSmRATIHSR -

THEBRBEEBRARARE R
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27.

28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE 20174F 12 A 31 HILFE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term bank deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less which carried interest
at market rates from 0.01% to 0.35% per annum at 31 December 2017
(2016: from 0.01% to 0.35% per annum).

The Group’s bank balances and cash that were denominated in foreign
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group

entities are set out below:

27. RETRER R B2
SRAT 4 0 S B 6 45 3 62 TR A 58

=8 A S AR 2 A HISRAT AR 3K - %K
JHHA 2017 4E 12 A 31 H I E4ENTF0.01%
%0.35% (2016 4F : & F A F0.01% %
0.35%) TG FIRELE

52 B DL AT I 4 T EC B S e R W DALMY
SMEEHE R SRAT A B B ERWIInT

2017 2016
2017 4E 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

UNEML S AR¥T T

Bank balances and cash denominated in: FHEFEAL
UsD e
European Monetary Unit (“EUR”) o

Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) PN
Norwegian Krona (“NOK”) 8 J28 5. B
Swedish Krona (“SEK”) Fitg . 5, B
Danish Krone (“DKK”) FHE 5

TRADE PAYABLES

15,377 24,853
5,386 11,424
3,713 2,819

- 1,645
- 3,466
- 996

28. ¥ 5 MEAT kA

2017 2016
2017 4¢ 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt ARFETIE

Trade payables for purchases of M E = EE RN

goods from third parties B o AT A

1 44 C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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28. TRADE PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 2017 4F 12 7 31 HARAFSE

Trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases.

Payment terms with suppliers are mainly on credit within 90 days from

the invoice date. The aging of trade payables presented based on the

invoice dates at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

28. B 5 MEA K ()

B o BEAT SRR 1 R ST B 5 B R
FIH o HERERT N 2 AR B R A B
55 H HEE F1 90 P Ak K o A R IR 2
BRI 2 51 10 5 5 M ARl sk LY MR %

T

2017 2016
2017 4¢ 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T NGl T

Age MR
0 to 90 days 0%]90 K 166,402 160,124
91 to 180 days 91 K180 K 16,079 10,878
181 to 1 year 181 K| 14F 643 5,026
Over | year R 1 4F 139 1,698
183,263 177,726

The Group’s trade payables that were denominated in other currencies,

foreign currency of the relevant group entities, were re-translated into

SR [ LLFC At B W (R 4 1R 9 A
W) B R s AR

RMB and stated for reporting purposes as: B
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET 70 NG S T
Denominated in: PAR 51 & W51
USD ESSTn 34,796 21,743
OTHER PAYABLES 29. - fth BE £ 3K JH
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T I NS T
Accruals JE=T 70,286 39,486
Advance from customers &P K 12,747 12,271
Payroll payable JEAS 3 & 53,677 54,470
Other tax liabilities oA B IE A R 57,708 60,206
Deposit from wholesale customers HEEEF k4 12,560 13,517
Payable for decoration of outlets 5 B 2K R A T 10,636 9,442
Interest payable JEATFILE 26,440 2,518
Others HoAth 45,621 17,997
289,675 209,907

T H BB B A PR A F

B AR

\\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

30. BORROWINGS

(O3]
=
=

IF

3

2017 2016
20174 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T8 NRHET T
Bank overdrafts HRATIE L 29,001 35,470
Bank borrowings SRAT R 463,677 667,748
Other borrowings HoAh £ 3K 653,420 -
1,146,098 703,218
Unsecured A 29,001 35,470
Secured B A 1,117,097 667,748
1,146,098 703,218
The carrying amounts of the above 0 R O T2
borrowings are repayable* TR
Within one year R—4E N 682,421 176,620
Within a period of more than one year A T A — A E AN e A
but not exceeding two years FAF B[R] A - 133,289
Within a period of more than two years A TR AR A LA i
but not exceeding five years AR HATH A 71,876 393,309
754,297 703,218
The carrying amount of bank loans that R 7 S K A e B SR AR R
are repayable on demand due to breach OERAT SRR R T
of loan covenants (shown under current (AR s & TR) (B5E D)
liabilities) (Note i) 391,801 -
1,146,098 703,218
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B B A AE TR R
under current liabilities: — 4 A Y FOH
Bank borrowings SRITEX (1,045,221) (141,150)
Bank overdrafts RT3 (29,001) (35,470)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities FE V) B REIE T F1R 1 E 71,876 526,598

o The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the bank overdrafts

were unsecured and interest free.

During the year, the Company raised other borrowings from CCB
International Asset Management Limited with principal amount of
US$100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB671,320,000).
As at 31 December 2017, the other borrowings are guaranteed by Mr.
Chen Yixi.

At 31 December 2017, the Company’s bank borrowings of
RMB463,677,000 (2016: RMB667,748,000) carried interest at
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus variable rate from
1.4% to 5% per annum (at 31 December 2016: at LIBOR plus variable

rate from 1.5% to 5% per annum). Interest is reset every three months.

Details of assets pledged by the Group at the end of the reporting
period are set out in note 41. As at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016, the bank borrowings were also guaranteed by Mr
Chen Yixi, the Chairman of the Group, Ms Yuan Yanan, spouse of Mr
Chen Yixi and other third parties.

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Company’s borrowings are

as follows:

fo T A M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 20174 12 7 31 HAR4FSE

5B ()
20174612 H 31 H }%20164E12 H31H >

SRAT 5 S AR B S . o

RN > AR Al R 1B R O e A P PR
5 ) A8 BUAS 42 %8 %5 100,000,000 3 G (4H
S N R 671,320,000 7C) 9 A £
Koo A20174E12 A 31 H > Hifth &3 B

R20174F12 H31H > AN A AR ¥
463,677,000 7G (2016 4F : AR 667,748,000
JG ) 19 R AT B 3K A A 3R] 3£ 4R AT 4R B
([ ] 2ERATHR S 1) Inv2 B AR A 7
1.4% % 5% (it 2016 4 12 A 31 3% ffiy % [F]
SESRATHR B INE B R A 1.5% & 5%)
FEEIE RS - RS =M A E -

% 45 B A T 5 AR B HE VA E 2 R E I
AR EE41 » A 20174F 12 A 31 H %2016
F12 H 31 H > RATEFKIN b A ] F R
o 28 8 41 Ak I B2 R ST A Y T (B 5= BE R
L J HABES = ISR

AR AN SRR R ARG A

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F

Effective interest rate: EHAIR
Fixed-rate borrowings B E 8.00% 4.35%
Variable-rate borrowings TR 2.02%~5.52%  1.87%~5.37%

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies other the

functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

7% S T DA AH B 4 1B T e R M DAAIMEY
BT

USD GBP

%t Wk

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TE AR¥TE

As at 31 December 2017 (Note ii) 2017412 A 31 H (Kt5Eii) 1,117,097 =
As at 31 December 2016 *20164F12 H31H 35,470 667,748

T H BB B A PR A R

4
£
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
#2017 4F 12 71 31 H L4

30. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

31.

Notes:

During the year, in respect of the bank borrowings with carrying amount
of RMB391,801,000 as at 31 December 2017, the Group breached certain
of the terms of the bank borrowing, which are primarily related to the new
issuance of the other borrowings of the Group. On discovery of the breach, the
directors of the Company informed the lender and commenced a renegotiation
of the terms of the loan with the relevant banker. As at 31 December 2017,
those negotiations had not been concluded. Since the lender has not agreed to
waive its right to demand immediate payment as at the end of the reporting
period, the loan has been classified as a current liability as at 31 December
2017. At 13 February 2018, a supplementary agreement was signed between
the Group and the bank, according to which certain bank borrowings need to

be repaid within 2018.

On 26 July 2017, the Group signed an agreement with a bank to redenominate
currency of bank borrowings brought from 2015 from Great Britain Pounds

(“GBP”) to USD. The interest rate and maturity remain unchanged.

DEFERRED REVENUE

30. o8 (0

Wi &E

RN #E20174F 12 A 31 A IR (E 75 AR
391,801,000 7C F $RAT B KM 5 » ALk
[ S A5 T SRAT SRR ek > HL R Bk
B F R B AL B R B o EREIE L
R R ) 2 29 A AT BELA R SR A T
R AR HGEATRERS o 22017 4F 12 A 31
H > A BRRERS 0 ARA i o BR B ATR
Ak SR AR 7] 2 e HL SR B
HEF - A BIEH2017F 12 H31 HE T
AT AAT o R20184F2 A 13 H > A&
42 [ BRERATRT SL A AR h Rk o BRI > A TR
ATEEFEIN 2018 4F R 3% -

201747 H 26 H » A [ B — [ 4RA 77T
S o DA 2015 4F A B 2 SR AT K
BB EHE A LA TERHE o FIREE]H A
KR AR5 o

31. BEREW 4

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW¥ Tt UNELS T
Deferred revenue arising from LSRR E A
customer loyalty programme (Note i) MRAE Y A (P 5E ) 30,563 16,912
Deferred revenue arising from FRERTAE T sk S AR 1Y
franchise agreements (Note ii) PEIE 2 (BT id) 11,579 6,408
Deferred revenue TR A 2 42,142 23,320
Less: deferred revenue under current portion U E A0 TE R AR A A A (30,563) (16,912)
Deferred revenue under non-current portion FE VB B4 BT R R E U 7 11,579 6,408

Notes:

At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the amount arising from
customer loyalty programme represents deferred revenue arising in respect
of the Group’s customer loyalty programme recognised in accordance with

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes.

At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the amount arising from
franchise agreements represents non-refundable exclusivity fee received from
franchisees, which guarantees the franchisee the exclusive right to operate
Hamleys’ stores in certain territories and will be recognised as revenue over

the contract term.
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R20174512H31 H %20164E12H31H » &
J5 S ) 7 A ) < AR AL I
B UE ISR 13 5847t e 1)
AR 2 S B A A R A i A

2017412 H 31 H % 2016412 H31 H >
R R R W R A 1 < S A R AR
ISR AS BT 2B 7 1 2 A HE R T > (R E
RERT RS N HEAT B AT HER P AE 2 T i [ A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for B B 25 i M e 7
For the year ended 31 December 2017 t’
HE 20174F 12 A 31 H ILFJE 3
A

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 32. phigfl &R~

2017 2016
2017 4¢ 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt NGB

Analysed for reporting purposes as: S 2R E AR L Z AT
Current liabilities it B £ i 6,444 6,164
Non-current liabilities IE i £ R 3,872 4,856
10,316 11,020
\\
Certain group entities entered into finance lease arrangements to A7 TS5 T E B AT 7 RO AR A R DA
acquire equipment. The average lease term is 3 years (31 December st o I E IR /5 345 (2016 4F 12 7
2016: average lease term is 3 years). Interest rates underlying all 310 : PITHEIAR A 34F) o Frf g
obligations under finance lease are fixed at respective contract dates TR R I 0 A B S 24 46 40 H A ,:, ]
ranging from 8% to 12% (31 December 2016: 8.52 % to 12.69%) per E > AT 8% % 12% (2016 4F 12 A 31 A
annum. Leased assets are pledged as security for the related finance H : 8.52% % 12.69%) ° Fl& & B K47 F
lease liability. YEH 6 B RE A & B B IR -
Minimum Present value of ﬁ
Lease payments minimum lease payments ﬂ,{
SRR % 4 SR B % 4 i = B0 =

31/12/2017 31/12/2016  31/12/2017 31/12/2016
2017 4 2016 4F 2017 4E 2016 4F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETIE AR¥TI L ARBTFI ARWTL

Obligations under finance JREASS Pl L B R : ‘2
lease payable:
Within one year —4ER 7,011 6,960 6,612 6,164
Within a period of more R — AR RN A
than one year but not 5 A HA T
more than 5 years 4,033 5,062 3,704 4,856
11,044 12,022 10,316 11,020
Less: future finance charges W AR RNE B 2 (728) (1,002) N/JARBH N/AAEH
Present value of lease TG R 2 BUE
obligations 10,316 11,020 10,316 11,020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

33. PROVISIONS

33. B

2017 2016
2017 4¢ 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt NGB

At 1 January 2017 R201741H1H
Provision in the year GRNE ]
At 31 December 2017 A20174E12 H31 H

The provision relates to an exit fee that Hamleys Global need to pay
to terminate an lease agreement which has been reached between
Hamleys Global and the landlord in Ireland. The estimated current cost
of exiting the lease is RMB17,269,000. Anticipated expenditure will
be settled in the year of 2018. These amounts have not been discounted
for the purposes of measuring the provision for the leases, because the
effect is not material.

17,269 -

17,269 -

A & Hamleys Global 75 2 S fF9:R
12 > DL E Hamleys Global S5
Th 2E £ 2 AT O 19 FH S ok o AT
1EFH B A AL s A R 17,269,000
G o TEFHE SR 2018 4FAEE o ARME
P B AHBA S M R A > Y
A E AR o

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. JRAR
Number
of shares Amount
e 2
USD’000
T
Ordinary shares of USD0.015 each HIETEE 0.015 T
Authorised: E
At 1 January 2016 & 31 December 2016 201641 A 1 H K% 2016412 A 31 H
& 31 December 2017 K20174E12 A 31 H 20,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BT
At 1 January 2016 20164E 1 H 1 H 2,082,000,000 31,230
Shares repurchased and cancelled I % Y M £ (5,000,000) (75)
At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 22016412 H 31 H ) 20174F 12 A 31 H 2,077,000,000 31,155
Shown in the consolidated statement REFE B IR I RI7R
of financial position
At 1 January 2016 H20164E1H 1 H 209,615
At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017~ 22016412 J§ 31 H % 20174£ 12 /1 31 H 209,097

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company did not

repurchase any shares through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, pursuant to the general
mandate granted to the directors of the Company, the Company
repurchased its own shares through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange as

follows:

No. of ordinary
shares of USD0.015 each

fo T A M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 20174 12 7 31 HAR4FSE

34, A ()

REE 20174512 H31 B IR > &RAH
S 4 575 308 A s W <2 O [ AT AT 1 o

MR 20164F12 A 31 H IL4EFE - WRIER
FA A A — MR RE - AN FER
T 22 JUT i [ ELAS B 1) PR A T

Price per share

5 3 (A% Aggregate

Month of repurchase of the Company Highest Lowest consideration paid
Wi 51 H 43 A2 m BB 0.015 3£ 0 535 AR E A Fa A
Z Wk HKD HKD HKD’000
T o THETT
For the year ended
31 December 2016
#E 2016412 A 31 H
1F4E
20 October 2016 2,160,000 2.19 2.07 4,582
20164F 10 H20 H
24 October 2016 840,000 2.17 2.09 1,789
20164F10 H 24 H
8 November 2016 1,014,000 2.01 1.99 2,028
20164F11 H 8 H
9 November 2016 586,000 2.00 1.94 1,148
2016411 H9H
11 November 2016 400,000 2.00 1.99 799
20164F11 H 11 H
5,000,000 10,346

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a total of 5,000,000
shares were repurchased and cancelled, accordingly, the nominal
value of approximately USD75,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMBS518,000) of the shares, and the premium paid and the related
costs incurred for the repurchase of approximately HKD10,346,000
(equivalent to approximately RMBS8,435,000) was charged against the

share capital and share premium account of the Company.

PRC STATUTORY RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC applicable
to foreign investment enterprises and the Articles of Association of
the PRC subsidiaries, the PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain
a statutory surplus reserve fund. Appropriations to this fund are
made out of net profit after taxation as reported in the PRC statutory
financial statements of the subsidiaries (the “PRC Accounting
Profit”).

W

T H BB B A PR A R

B, E20164F12H31H 1k F B, It
5,000,000 A% 17 ek 1] K2 sk > PRIOtE - B
13 #)75,000 35 J6 2 T H (4755 7% N R ¥
518,000 7C) » Kt i o] 32 A5 22 ik 48 K B
JE 2B B AR 47 10,346,000 #5 7T (K155 78 A
[ 5 8,435,000 7T ) A A8 2 A A K Ay
T FE HRATIER

H B8 325 ok

R0 o B 5 S T 5 B
WAL o AR 25 )RR O T B
e o o B ARG 25 ) 75 A B
e st SR IO BE SR (1 o st s )
] A e R HUEK o

— =
—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

36.

PRC STATUTORY RESERVES (CONTINUED)
Nanjing Mayflower, Dongguan Mayflower, Nanjing Soft, VL&

% (as defined in note 46) are required to transfer 10% of their PRC
Accounting Profit to the statutory surplus reserve fund in each profit
making year until the balances reach 50% of the registered capital of
each of the company respectively. The statutory surplus reserve fund
may be used to make up prior year losses incurred and, with approval

from relevant government authority, to increase capital.

Xuzhou C.banner (as defined in note 46) is not required to maintain
this statutory surplus reserve fund according to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC applicable to Sino-foreign joint investment
enterprises. However, as at 31 December 2017, the directors of
Xuzhou C.banner approved on a discretionary basis to transfer 10%
(2016: 10%) of the PRC Accounting Profit to the statutory surplus

reserve fund.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to written resolution passed on 26 August 2011, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Hongguo Hong Kong
Share Option Scheme”), details of which are set out in “Report of
the Directors-Share Option Scheme” to the annual report. No share
option has been granted under the Hongguo Hong Kong Share Option

Scheme since its adoption.

On 31 August 2015, the Company adopted a share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) under which shares of the Company may be
awarded to selected employees (including executive directors) of the
Group (the “Selected Employees”) pursuant to the terms of the scheme
rules and trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. The Share Award
Scheme became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise
terminated or amended, will remain in force for a term of 10 years

commencing on the adoption date.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares which
will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded by the Board
under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum number of
the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a selected employee
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from

time to time.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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R - R E M - AR
B VTR CE 7 M 46) 20 45
T4 B 66 G o 0 3 R 19 10% s
EHERGEEES  HESROTIE
2 TSR AR B 50% o W5 5E L BRBE A
4 T A VTR b 40 B 85 2 0 s 4
76 B 75 A7 B BT 4 B 10 H o T 3
z'go

AR F B A1 A S0 I A B
R > BT H B GE 2% R 46) 48
JRAERR S TE S E R AR i 2 A o SR >
2017412 H31 H » BN T A EEH
Y 5 At A ] S A Y 10% (2016
B 10%) TIEE B AR R4 -

VL 1y % 2L BRE 1 2 A5F

45 A 2011 4F 8 H 26 H %8 i 19 2 1 ik
TR o AN T B AN — TERT 1 B IR RE S )
(175 B A s P R RE S T30 ) > LRI o
AR [ G s — R o AR
A LAZIE > AU e AR 1 106 0 v T R AR T
2 IR o

201548 A31 H » A 48 & $7 A i 4y
AEBhETE ([ SEmhat3 1) > 8k > W)
AR 415 1 A7 25 JBh - 38 P T S A B % {5 HE 32
P2 AR EERERITESEN
B e (R B ([0 5 ) 332 th A =] i
B3 o J A B =H 3 A BR AN B AR AR R
B AT WA R SAERT A > 1% B B A B 1A
HEEF104FEAL -

i — 25 452t 5 i % 0 4 B0 = G AR
T R A3 58 B w52 L 1) PR 073 T (L A AR
S EIRKRE BB AT AR 10% - Bl EH &
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PFEIANRE C AT IAS 1 1% ©



36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which
might include service and/or performance conditions specified by the
board of directors of the Company at the time of making the award and
become entitled to the shares of the Company forming the subject of
the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant awarded shares to that
employee at no consideration. The Selected Employee however is not
entitled to receive any income or distribution, such as dividend derived

from the unvested Awarded Shares allocated to him/her.

Movement of the Company’s shares held by the trustee under the

Share Award Scheme during the year is as follows:

fo T A M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 20174 12 7 31 HAR4FSE

36. VI Ay 2 B BEAY S A ()

MR BT S A AR EE G RIE A
IR 5 i 51 B 1 4 0 i 0 1 (L o T
AR AR K SRR B R
BRI HROAT R S B B AR 8 mD L - AT
AL AR 1 5% 44 IR B S A o] 22 D
Jetiy o SR HE I 4R B S HEE WS IBUAT: T Wi
AR AN 43 BT R B 4%
JEn R B PR

32 FE N T4 TR AR L 14 5 b - 2] P 455 A
NEIBA BT

Number of shares

Jepy s H (%)
Held by the Held by the
trustee yet trustee for Total held by
to be awarded the grantee the trustee
iH) A5 T 17 H ZAENT ZFEA
ZeE NPTt HRIZ NI JIT R AR
Balance at 1 January 2016 20164 1 H 1 H WA 19,799,000 = 19,799,000
Granted to grantees during FENETETA
the year (400,000) 400,000 —
Transfer to grantee upon BB R TR T A
vesting - (400,000) (400,000)
Number of the Company’s Z R NARR I > 5% i 1 1)
shares acquired by TS AR A A e B
the trustee under
the Share Award Scheme 201,000 - 201,000
Balance at 1 January 2017 201741 H 1 H K&
and at 31 December 2017 20174F 12 71 31 H B9 #5685 19,600,000 - 19,600,000

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no ordinary shares were

acquired by trustee or granted by the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, based on the Company’s
instruction, the trustee acquired 201,000 ordinary shares of USD0.015
each in the Company for the Share Award Scheme through purchases
in the open market at a total cost, including related transaction costs,
of approximately RMB591,000.

A E20174F12 A 31 B IR4EFE - i fEsz
FEN B A 2 s LA ] Sl 0 5 T i
i

A 20164F12 H31 H IL4ERE » #7184
ATFIHE R > 32 5T AARDE B 38 By 5T 51
TE > BT 45 1 B A28 7] 201,000 A A THT
{E0.015 0% > A8RLAS 4540 B
25 AR #) N B 591,000 7€ ©
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fo T s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
#2017 4F 12 71 31 H L4

36.

37.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company granted

400,000 ordinary shares of USD0.015 each to Selected Employees,

details are set out below.

36. DL 25 B 0BG AT ()

REE 2016412 H31 H IR4ERE > ARAH]
5 4 400,000 [ 45 1% T 1B 0.015 38 76 1
TR E B > FEIFES R -

Number of awarded shares

#ERHEA

Outstanding

Number of At Granted Vested as at

awarded 31 December during the during the 31 December

Date of grant shares granted Fairvalue ~ Vesting period 2015 year year 2016

1220164

REm 20154 12A31H

it B iz ] RFHE SRR 1271310 FREE  EREE  MRGH
HK$’000
T

15 June 2016 2016464 15H 400,000 1,160 6 days K - 400,000 (400,000) -

The closing price of the Company’s shares on 15 June 2016, the
date of grant of the awarded shares, was HK$2.90 (equivalent to
approximately RMB2.45). The Group recognised a total expense of
RMB971,000 in relation to share award granted by the Company
during the year.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
At 31 December 2016

On 14 January 2016, the Group acquired 80% of the issued share
capital of Hamleys Nordics for a cash consideration of approximately
GBP506,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB4,514,000) from
an independent third party. At the meantime, certain amount of
outstanding debt due from Hamleys Nordics was waived. The
contractual value of the debt was approximately GBP1,936,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB17,298,000). The fair value and
carrying amount of the debt at the acquisition date was nil. This
acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition method.
The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
RMBI1,558,000. Hamleys Nordics is engaged in retail of toys in
Nordic market. Hamleys Nordics was acquired so as to continue the

expansion of the Group’s retail network of toys.
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37. WK a2 W

2016412 31 H

R20164FE1 A 14 H » A 45 [3 4 1 57 58
=Y Hamleys Nordics 80% £ ¥17
A > RUAE 2547 506,000 9588 (X9 % i A
R #4,514,00070) © [A] K » 2 TR EE
Hamleys Nordics [ & 554 # fo B o fi
W1 A #) B 1 401,936,000 5 £ (£ % i
AN RH 17,298,000 70) o i Ui B =5 15 H A
BTSN T(E S IR TH (B 3 % o %=
THE PR B R AR o B R T A
H 2 2 N R 51,558,000 7C © Hamleys
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37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 37. WUk B A 2 W )
(CONTINUED)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition 7 W i 2 T O WA B ) O % T R AL
fid
14 January
2016
20164
1H14H ’
RMB’000
AR¥T 7
Current assets it B
Inventories & 3,386
Trade and other receivables B Ty F Ho A s IA 3,666
Bank balances and cash BRATHE R KB4 7,495
Non-current assets I i B
Property, plant and equipment W ~ W dn Nkt 1,116
Deferred tax assets R S o T e 8
Current liabilities b BER
Trade and other payables BZ 5 Je FAh AT I (8,725)
Other current liabilities A ) A & (3,251)
3,695
The fair value and the gross contractual amounts of those trade and AU RE R T A > 5255 B ) A R
other receivables acquired amounted to RMB3,666,000 at the date of A A I A # B SR B N R
acquisition. All contractual cash flows were expected to be collected. 3,666,000 7T © FE I iU A & 49 BL
U ©
Goodwill arising on acquisition WS Vi = I A A Y VR
14 January
2016
2016 4
1H14H
RMB’000 :
AR¥F 5 =
Consideration transferred TR () AR A 4,514
Plus: non-controlling interests s JEEEAE LS (20% Hamleys Nordics)
(20% in Hamleys Nordics) 739
Less: fair value of identifiable W S I Rk R VR 2 AT
net assets acquired (3,695)
Goodwill arising on acquisition IS i T A Y 1,558
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 20174F 12 A 31 H IE4FRE

37.

38.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

(CONTINUED)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

(continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Hamleys Nordics because the
cost of the combination included a control premium, together with the
combination in relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue
growth, future market development and the assembled workforce
of Hamleys Nordics. These benefits are not recognised separately
from goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria for

identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is expected to be

deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiary

37.

W B RS 2 ] (a0)

i W N = T OO i Y M e R R B
i (41)

R WA T A A 8 2 RV A - DA TR
Wit Rl s~ i B ~ R AR TH By 9k i
& Hamleys Nordics At & i 1& %55
fEH > Ui Hamleys Nordics /& Af i 2 o
p A 317 A 72 SO i Al AT T 2 A AR A
ELS e A B I N el

TR W5 B = T A 8 AR TR IR
Y T o
B i B 2 vl B < A R R

RMB’000
PN

DA & S A i AUE

Consideration paid in cash

Less: cash and cash equivalent balance acquired ¥ : WA Bl 4 M B4 S W 45 Bk

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 is a loss
of approximately RMB10,875,000 attributable to Hamleys Nordics.
Revenue for the year includes approximately RMB35,344,000 in

respect of Hamleys Nordics.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Part of the consideration for the purchase of property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets that occurred during the year
comprised finance lease arrangements. Further details are set out in
note 13 and note 15.

Part of the consideration for the purchase of a subsidiary that occurred
during the year ended 31 December 2016 comprised waiving of
outstanding debt. Further details of the acquisition are set out in note
37 above.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

38.

4,514
(7,495)

(2,981)

WS i = T S AN A [ 3 A6 1 5

FRA B ZE 20164512 H 31 H 11 4F FF i 7
F3E H £ Hamleys Nordics R4 E T A
10,875,000 7T © 45 A Wit 45 6 45 A7 B
Hamleys Nordics i ) A B 35,344,000
S

FEIEH SR 5

TA GBS 36~ R B e B A
T 0 1R U8 L L T
B o 7B B 18— 2 S
13 K5t 15 »

R 2016412 H 31 H 1-4EFE U i — ]
W6 Jogg 2 0 1 R 40 A R AR AR S 1Y
o o A7 BIE— LR E R b
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OPERATING LEASE

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 2017 4F 12 7 31 HARAFSE

39. BEME

The Group as lessee AR [ A 2 AR AL
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFI ANRWETIE
Minimum lease payments paid under AN AR IR RS TR B S AT
operating leases in the year AR A 3K 109,941 102,680

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has outstanding

A AR > A S T 2 1 0K A 25 19 A AT

commitment in respect of non-cancellable operating leases which fall e RE T ERSEUT
due as follows:

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4E
RMB’000 RMB’000
A R¥E T8 AR¥FIt
Within one year —4ER 115,525 93,989
In the second to fifth years inclusive BB R (U EREWE) 403,791 298,148
After five years TAFEAR 2,337,346 2,225,167
Total EF 2,856,662 2,617,304

Operating lease payments represented rentals payable by the Group
for its rental of factory premises and retail outlets. Leases and rentals
for the factory premises and retail outlets are negotiated and fixed
for terms ranging from ten to twenty years and one to two years

respectively.

Pursuant to the lease agreement signed by Hamleys Nanjing and
Hamleys Xuzhou (defined in note 46), the lease expenses of Hamleys
Nanjing and Hamleys Xuzhou is calculated based on a percentage of

its revenue from toys retailing on a monthly basis.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

40.

T H BB B A PR A F

K AR R A B R S M
TEM MBS - RESRTREE
A T 4 LA B AL T AR B 2 Tl 4
I P 2 AR B 2 AR Y AR B

=

JE ©

R e o S0 e B e A AR O (R
7 LMk 46) B A AL 1 ek > R A
J07 T A B e 0 T R M AR B B S G 4%
B H PR A s 1A 20 BERES -

¥ A Dl B 2 P e b TR

AR [ A AT D (R A5 R AN
P Rp AR R VE AL - [ A5 A B AL
B B A A i 1) P SRCAR 3t A [ o AR
AF% [ RE R SR I BEL A J3E T A o

— LA B
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. B AR B B K e kT H ()
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes A B [ AN 8 R AR S VR R (B4 F
bank borrowings and other borrowings as disclosed in note 30, net T 30 94 &5 7Y SRAT 15 B S HiAl A ) ~ 4R
of bank deposits and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the TTAF 3 S 3 4 1 3 S AR Jl A N REAG
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated MESS (ELEE O34T A ~ il I 2 5k
profits. F) o
The management of the Company review the capital structure on an AR N T 3R R A R UE 7 B AR 48
on-going basis. As part of this review, the management consider the M o VB2 M TE 5 B 1 — 3B 0y > B ELE R
cost of capital and the risks associate with each class of capital. Based By A BLAS K B I A A B 1 R
on recommendations of the management, the Group will balance its fgr o LA BLRE O e 2 W ANEEE
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share B ST S, T R B AT B i Ay B
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the W] A K 3545 0 75wk o] 50 A 5 1~
redemption of existing debt. M A 1S AR A o
40A. Categories of financial instruments 40A. il T H 3R
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
NS B NS T
Financial assets ARl e
Loans and receivables (including BB
cash and cash equivalents) (G 4 KB &% EY) 966,333 1,030,231
Available-for-sale investments AT R 10,765 -
Financial liabilities Sl £
Amortised cost 6 i A 1,451,855 978,888
Obligations under finance leases AL m TR 10,316 11,020
40B. Financial risk management objectives and policies 40B. 4l B4 B H AR K BR

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, other financial assets, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, borrowings, obligations under
finance leases and bank overdrafts. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.
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?

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. & AR B S PR R &l T H ()
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

40B. Financial risk management objectives and policies 40B. <5l JE\ b 4 BE H A7 R BUR (4])
(continued)

40B.1 Market risk 40B.1 177 55 i b

Foreign currency risk

The primary economic environment in which the
principal subsidiaries of the Company operate is PRC
and their functional currency is RMB while a subsidiary
of the Company operates in the UK and its functional
currency is GBP. The Group also has certain sales and
purchases denominated in USD, EUR, DKK, NOK and
SEK, which are currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities and expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. Transactions in HKD are
limited.

The carrying amount of the Group’s major foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary

liabilities, at the reporting date are as follows:

SH I B

AN A T m AR
R ER T I P B R LT
REE W A AR > A7)
T B S 2 A B B
HHEIRE R W R oegs - A%
B IR T R B LASEIT
BiTC ~ JRAE SO~ R v B
Be T i v s - Kook A
B 22 B TR S RE R LA S
B W I o A 2 P 41 L
B o LA¥ETT ([T ) RHER)
Lo BERAR -

R H A A A
WRtEREWEEXERAR
(1 Feft < Rl T/ ) R

Liabilities Assets
£ 1% &
2017 2016 2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F 2017 4¢ 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRE AR¥WTT AR¥®TRE ARWTT

USD e 1,151,998 21,737 78,421 58,265
EUR o 206 22,462 5,386 12,078
HKD oo - 789 3,713 2,819
GBP HgE = 662,748 1,628 12,360
DKK PR 352 5,348 = 2,348
NOK R e B = 2,700 = 3,245
SEK Fif B4 55 B = 1,736 = 3,847

ER A% 52 0l e 41 e e e
B (0 e e e ST
B K2t & 7% B8 AE 7 22 i By
ERUIE W N i

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy but the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

40B. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
40B.1 Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% change in RMB against GBP, USD and HKD 5%
(2016: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currencies denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% (2016: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax
profit for the year where the relevant foreign currencies
strengthen 5% (2016: 5%) against RMB. For a 5% (2016:
5%) weakening of the relevant foreign currency against
RMB, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
before-tax profit for the year.

40. AR B B R <k T HL ()
<o LG L A BORE (A0

40B.1 17 B3 il i (4F)

TR E 7T

T RFEH AL BN R
B gE - o0 RS TR 5%
5 Ih o [ R OB © 5%
(2016 4F = 5%) Ji ] 3= B4
N B AR 2 Rk N s TR g Iy
R MR HiEE
LI i 47 R [ 2% ) 45 33 ]
R ENIR o MU /AT 1
G R BRI SN SHE &
T H % AE ot B0 45 RIREHe A1
e [ 2R 5% (2016 4F © 5%) i
W o WA B AN
N B FHE 5% (2016 4F
5%) > DA IE{E B BUR A
A % Tl £ 85 R 3 B o AT
B A1 50 N R R (L 5%
(2016 4F : 5%) - i & H 4F
TR B B T T AR 4 45 R I
IS 2E o

2017 2016
2017 4F 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AT AR¥T T

(Decrease) increase in
before-tax profit where
the foreign currency
strengthen 5% (2016:
5%) against RMB:

USD impact
HKD impact
GBP impact

AN R THE 5%
(2016 4F : 5%) >
Bl i ias A1) () s

B (53,336) 3,683
oPI & 174 134
375 2 81 (32,519)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE 2017 4F 12 H 31 H IL4FJE

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. E AR B P S 4 b T H ()
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) *
40B. Financial risk management objectives and policies 40B. <5l JE\ b 4 BE H A7 R BUR (4])
(continued)

40B.1 Market risk (continued) 40B.1 17 5 J@ B (%)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

In addition, the following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% change in GBP against USD, EUR,
DDK and SEK (2016: 5%).

BRI (45)

WEAh o N Rl A A [
B85 AR ETE > WOT > FHETE
BA B i 3 5 BA S ) 5% (2016
£ 5%) M BURE -

2017 2016
2017 4E 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

NGNS AR¥T T

Increase (decrease) in A SR BEHE 5%
before-tax profit where (2016 4F : &) >
the foreign currency
strengthen 5% (2016:

5%) against GBP:
USD impact EILHE
EUR impact R T 5 2
DKK impact PR S B
SEK impact Fiy . 5 B 5 288

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk for
its interest bearing financial assets, including the liability
component of the convertible bonds and other financial
assets which carried interest at fixed rates. The Group is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
bank balances and variable-rate borrowings (see note 30
for details of these borrowings). It is the Group’s policy
to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to

minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate risk exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arises.

WRSE I 3 A48 I (92

(1,793) (1,857)
259 (488)
(18) (150)
- 106
VOBVl
AL H HH R A S E (T

] B R B B AR S
b <5 P S (4% T RE R R
) THIBR AT E ) B -
A4 T GRAT 45 B O B AR
B (5 LI 5 30 A B o% 56 £
FERENE ) 71 1 i B 4 0
=R Ja By o A4 1 9 BOR
Heid SRR AR 18
T 65 S () 36 e e 22
& -

A ) T LG 0 ) 2 36 e i
oo BRI - 5 B JRE B 42 A1) %
SR B A5 A 7 2 HH BN
36 EE R R i
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
#2017 4F 12 71 31 H L4

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

40B. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

40B.1 Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments
(including bank balances and borrowings) at the end
of the period and the stipulated changes taking place at
the beginning of the financial year and held constant
throughout the reporting period in the case of bank

balances and borrowings.

A 5 basis points (2016: 5 basis points) increase or
decrease in interest rates on variable bank balances,
and a 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points) increase
or decrease in interest rates on variable-rate borrowings
represent the managements’ assessment of the reasonably

possible changes in interest rates.

If the interest rates on variable-rate bank balances had
been 5 basis points (2016: 5 basis points) higher and all
other variables were held constant, a positive number

below indicates an increase in post-tax profit.

40. WAL B A B R ik T B (o)
AT B B2 SR (A0

40B.1 17 5 & i (%)

N OUBURE AT R I R &
il T L T 4 7 By B
Fb A A JBE ) B AR ) 95 E 52 )
FLTESRAT 45 5 I S B 4
SR 0[] AR AR AN B T T 7

=3

JE ©

TREDERAT &S BRI A R L T ek
T RS AL E (20164 ¢ 51A
FLEE) o HE B R R
b FHER R 50 16 5L 2 (2016
A SOfE LR o RN E
J& WA I 2 8 T B A HE A
@J o

7 BERITAS BRI AR E |
Tt 5 A8 L2 (2016 4F + 51 %
o) HRT A A S AR R R
%> BN CEEERRBRBLA
T FIHEN o

2017 2016
2017 4¢ 2016 4%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ Tt ARBETIT

Increase in post-tax AN R B
profit for the year e 3G 0

The post-tax profit for the year would be decreased by
the same amount as mentioned above if interest rates
on variable-rate bank balances had been 5 basis points
(2016: 5 basis points) lower and all other variables were

held constant.

If the interest rate on variable-rate borrowings had been
50 basis points (2016: 50 basic points) higher and all
other variables were held constant, a positive number

below indicates a decrease in post-tax profit for the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE 20174F 12 A 31 H ILFJE

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. & AR B PR R &l T H ()
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) ¥

40B. Financial risk management objectives and policies 40B. 4l R BG4 PR E B K BOSR (%)
(continued)
40B.1 Market risk (continued) 40B.1 77 5 J b (#F)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BT (38
2017 2016 p
20174 2016 4F '
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARHTIT
Decrease in post-tax SENERBLAR
profit for the year Yo Aok D 6,039 3,314

The post-tax profit for the year would be increased by the
same amount as mentioned above if the interest rate on
variable-rate borrowings had been 50 basis points lower

and all other variables were held constant.

40B.2 Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products on credit terms are made to customers with
an appropriate credit history and the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The Group’s
concessionaire sales through department stores are
generally collectible within 60 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit terms within
60 days. The Group’s royalty revenue are generally
collectible within 15~30 days from the recognition date.
The Group’s retail revenue are mostly settled by cash. So
the directors are of the opinion that the credit risk in retail

revenue is remote.

T H BB B A PR A R

i i B A5 B AL 2 TR 50
A 2 B LT A7 G At 5 B OR A
B > BRI BRI AR i LA
B _E AR TR B s o

40B.2 {5 Bl b

R20174E12 A31 H » A 4
[ R 22 5 ¥ F R BEJE AT T AT
7 T 65 1140 ] 3 A 4 B 2 ik
TS s 48 ) 5 K A B2 IR B AR
B A % A BTSSR 0 2 T 471 45
Ll RR 45 il 7 2 R THI (.

A 42 [ 5T A BORBER {5 &
FUEK B AT 10 5 i B AR A Y
BERE T o HLRSE 6 e
1% P 15 BRI - AL E
A E B 7 45 00—
AR B H 60 H Al [E] >
{5 SR8 4 F i 60 H Y
580 o AR 42 [ ) R A 4
— & B HERR B IR 15 % 30
H A ATl o AR5 [ Y 28
Wi g Ko LABR 40 - I
I BWEGRL  BEYE 1
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BE 20174F 12 A 31 HILFE

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

40B. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
40B.2 Credit risk (continued)
Normally the Group does not require collaterals from
trade debtors. The existing debtors have no significant
defaults in the past and directors are of the opinion that

no provision for uncollectible receivables is required.

The Group’s credit risk on trade receivables is
concentrated in the PRC and UK. However, the exposure
spreads over a large number of counterparties and

customers.

There is significant concentration of credit risk as the
deposits placed in top five banks for approximately
70.4% (2016: 56%) of the carrying amounts of bank
balances as at 31 December 2017. The credit risk on
bank balances is limited because these banks are with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.

40B.3 Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of

fluctuations in cash flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date in which the Group can be required to
pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash

flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE 20174F 12 A 31 H ILFJE

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. A b B A PE % ik TR ()
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) =
40B. Financial risk management objectives and policies 40B. 4 Fl R B 4 PR E A R BOR (7))

(continued) - S
40B.3 Liquidity risk (continued) 40B.3 7 By & & M B (#7)
Liquidity and interest risk table ) B R BT 7
Weighted \
average  On demand Total »
effective  or less than undiscounted Carrying 5 y A
interest rate 1 year 1-5years  cash flows amount N
METH  BERR RSB AN
BBRAR  SRA 1E58 REMH T \
%  RMB000  RMB000  RMB’000  RMB’000 %
ARETE ARETT ARETT AR®TE =
At 31 December 2017 2017412431 H ég
Trade and other payables BHREMENFE  NARER 305,757 - 305,757 305,757 f‘
Bank overdrafts BITIEL NARER 29,001 - 29,001 29,001 =
Bank borrowings RITHE 7.03% 422,353 79845 502,198 463,677 7
Other borrowings Hibfh & 8.00% 705,693 = 705,693 653,420 f’f 4
Obligation under finance leases BB ERT 11.80% 7,010 4,033 11,043 10,316 ;
1,469,814 83,878 1,553,692 1462171 ﬂ!
At 31 December 2016 *2016%F 12 431 H
Trade and other payables HHRIMENTE  NAREH 275,670 = 275,670 275,670
Bank overdrafts AT NAREH 35,470 = 35,470 35,470
Borrowings fHEE 4.55 141,150 544,602 685,752 667,748
Obligation under finance leases REHEET 11.80 6,960 5,062 12,022 11,020

459,250 549,664 1,008,914 989,908
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40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

40B. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

40B.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity and interest risk table (continued)
During the year, in respect of the bank borrowings with
carrying amount of RMB391,801,000 as at 31 December
2017, the Group breached certain of the terms of the
bank borrowing, which are primarily related to the
new issuance of the other borrowings of the Group. On
discovery of the breach, the directors of the Company
informed the lender and commenced a renegotiation
of the terms of the loan with the relevant banker. As
at 31 December 2017, those negotiations had not been
concluded. Since the lender has not agreed to waive its
right to demand immediate payment as at the end of the
reporting period, the loan has been classified as a current
liability as at 31 December 2017. At 13 February 2018,
a supplementary agreement was signed between the
Group and the bank, according to which certain bank

borrowings need to be repaid within 2018.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates

determined at the end of the reporting period.

40C. Fair value measurement of financial instruments
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow

analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised
in the consolidated financial statements approximate to their

fair values at the end of reporting period.

41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At 31 December 2017, the Company’s equity interest in Nanjing

Mayflower, Dongguan Mayflower, Nanjing Soft and Xuzhou
C.banner (as defined in note 46) have been pledged to secure the bank

borrowings of the Group.
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HiE T {8 45 A R #5391,801,000
TCRISATERIN S - A%EHE
AT AT BRI
HC o T B AR AR (8] A L A
TR B - TEREBUEAIT
AR/ ) 25 BRI B
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43.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T A M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

= 2017

12 A 31 HIEFERE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. EAKYE
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F L
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T8 ANRMTIT
Capital expenditure in respect of the B RTAE M R IR AR S BT R p
acquisition of non-current assets T 1 I T ) A '
contracted for but not provided in G AR A 3 ’ A
the consolidated financial statements - 806 ks \\
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 43. MEGHELEMAED) N
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Z Bk ~
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TN R A AR I RO T ) T AR Y L =N
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. B (RSB 4 I B EE) o fETE ;
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash o T 2 A= Y B 1 B RS K A A 4R B 45 —é‘é
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s A B 4 Ui e 2R TN 2 I U ) B 4 U ?

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.

o

feim

Obligations under

Borrowings finance leases Total
(note 30) (note 32)
il AH
B H T HE Fiob

(Ff5E30) (f5E32)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NGRL S T PN S T NGl o T
At 1 January 2017 R20174E1 H 1 H 667,748 11,020 678,768
Financing cash flows Al B A 452,465 (3,316) 449,149
New finance leases RS = 1,975 1,975
Amortisation of unsettled SR A R 2 R A 9,120 = 9,120

financial charges
Foreign exchange A1 BEE 5 ) (12,236) 637 (11,599)

At 31 December 2017 2017412 H31 H 1,117,097 10,316 1,127,413

T H BB B A PR A R

B AR R 1 67



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ay BB R B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE 20174F 12 A 31 HILFE

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 44. [ 5 A2 5
] (1) Related party transactions QO BT RS
During the year, in addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the N BR ARG A R R A A 2
| consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following Bl 75 B R AL 5 A 4R 1Y B 5 52
related party transactions: S
Relationship with related parties Nature of transactions 2017 2016
b B B W6 05 A 1% 2o 2017 4 2016 4F
' RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR®TE  ARETL
An associate Purchase of goods
— [ A F Wi 12,012 31,425
A joint venture Sales of goods
—H&EMR¥E B B - 2,828
Purchase of goods
T E B = 25,062
A related company, in which Rental expense

certain directors of the Company THEBH X
have controlling interest

— MBI AT > ARFETHESER

Horh A e R 1,120 1,120
(2) Compensation of key management personnel Q) FEEHABHW
The remuneration of directors, who are also the key S5 EEE A B 3501 35
management, are disclosed in note 10. TABEEE 10 R4 7% o

1 68 C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC government, the
PRC subsidiaries have participated in a central pension scheme (the
“Scheme”) operated by local municipal government whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute 18% of basic salaries of the
employees to the Scheme to fund their retirement benefits. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the PRC
subsidiaries. The only obligation of the PRC subsidiaries with respect
to the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions under
the Scheme mentioned above. Contributions under the Scheme are

charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Pursuant to the legal requirement of UK, the UK subsidiaries have
participated in an auto-enrolment pension scheme (the “Auto-
enrolment”) operated by UK government whereby the UK subsidiaries
are required to contribute 1% of qualifying earnings of the employees
to the Auto-enrolment to fund their retirement benefits. The only
obligation of the UK subsidiaries with respect to the Auto-enrolment
is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the Auto-enrolment

mentioned above.

During the reporting period, the total amounts contributed by the
Group to the Scheme and the Auto-enrolment which were charged
to profit or loss representing contribution payable to the Scheme and
auto-enrolment by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the

Scheme are as follows:

45.

fo T A M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 20174 12 7 31 HAR4FSE

3B g At

AR B U B A B > o R
2 b T U R AR A P R PR
FH# (TR st# ) > SRt S
FZE R B A T Y 18% Bk T %t
# > DA RRE AR E & o HHT
BT AR R I P I B SR s R B
RAGEIR I B 1R AR A A o
WY 8 2 0 2 o ) ) — ST 2 AR S
A5 bt w BTN AR o ARR R B
H A BT 28 A R AR 2 IR

ML EE > KA BARC 2
S 3% 1 UM 2 AR A9 B B 2 B At B
(TEBYZ ) - M2 B B 2 72
1% 1 B & S8 2R 2 A B 2 8LLL A
BRAE R ot 1 B 2 B I 5 1
& 2 ) HE— BEAT A AR L 1 ) 2 B
FREBA BT K o

TR A S ] > A SR I o o R ) 4R
BRE B AR 4 TR AT R B AR A SR T 4R
% w HIKE I E 1 B 2 M A R AT A 1k
RSN U

2017 2016
2017 4% 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T8 NS
Amount contributed and charged PR K B A8 1 AR Y 4 5
to profit or loss 71,787 43,161

As at 31 December 2017, there was no outstanding contributions
payable to the Scheme (2016: nil).

THERBERARARE =%

R20174E12 A 31 H > MMM R 8 A0
2T SRR (2016 4F © 1) o

4
£
-
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f A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 46. P& 2 W)W 1
Place/Country
of incorporation/ Attributable
establishment equity interest
Name of subsidiary and operations of the Company Principal activities
it o 2 ) 44 7 Rk, S, K Aoy H AN
B BR JBE A HE £ FEERE
2017 2016
, 2017 4 2016 4F
| 4
\; Held directly by the Company:
: AAFFA :
8 Best Invent The BVI 100% 100%  Investment holding
o Ji B RIS g
B Best Value The BVI 100% 100%  Investment holding
- S PR LR S FEFER
g Allied Great Hong Kong 100% 100% Investment holding
% S ) AR T A BR A 7 i &
/4
~
= China Ease Hong Kong 100% 100%  Investment holding
: e AR EA FRA i BE R
Hamleys Global UK 100% 100%  Investment holding
B P&
“ Hamleys Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100% 100%  Investment holding
= Fit G
Held by subsidiaries of the Company:
A w B A wl A
Mayflower (Nanjing) Enterprise Limited The PRC 100% 100%  Retail sale of
(“Nanjing Mayflower”) (note 1) R branded fashion
FBHEAE (M ) A BRA T footwear
([ Rt |) (FHGEL) LA il WAL i
Dongguan Mayflower Footwear The PRC 100% 100%  Contract manufacture
Corporation Limited Gt and sale of branded
(“Dongguan Mayflower”) (note 1) fashion footwear
SRESE R IR A PR 7] FIHILEE B
([RZEX B |) (EE1) vt A
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fo T A M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 20174 12 7 31 HAR4FSE

46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 46. BB 2 Wl wEAE (s

(CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary

Place/Country
of incorporation/ Attributable
establishment equity interest

and operations

of the Company

Principal activities

PRt J&§ 2 ] 44 1 GRU WA R A 23 ) A
BB Jie 7 fi i TR
2017 2016 f
0174 20164 N,
\\
Held by subsidiaries of the Company: (continued) \
A2 v R A A ()
Nanjing Soft Garment & Footwear Co., Ltd. The PRC 100% 100%  Manufacture and <
(“Nanjing Soft”) (note 1) i sale of branded .e’. A
T A T R R A A A PR ) fashion footwear f
(I'F &P Re ) (R 1) and related materials £
AR T i R 1
IR B AT B R /@
Xuzhou C.banner Shoes Co., Ltd. The PRC 100% 100% Manufacture and J’A
(“Xuzhou C.banner”) (note 2) H sale of branded =
BN T HEHERRAF fashion footwear ‘
(TR TAEBED (MEE2) and related materials
Az T B B i LR
EEJE N A B R
Mega Brilliant International Limited Hong Kong 51% 51%  Investment holding : x,‘
522 B g AT LA Fils VTR = |
Jiangsu Mega Shoes Co., Ltd (note 1) The PRC 51% 51%  Manufacture and
VLR E TR EEZEA R AT H sale of branded
(MI#sEz D (MsE1) fashion footwear
and related materials
A B i IR 1
HEJE N A B R
Xuzhou Mayflower Footwear Co., Ltd The PRC 100% 100%  Manufacture and
(note 1) i sale of branded
RN 2 B B2 IR ] fashion footwear
(B5E1) and related materials
Az T B B AL
EEJE N A B R

T H BB B A PR A R
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f A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE20174F 12 A 31 H IR4FE

46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Place/Country
of incorporation/
establishment

Name of subsidiary and operations

46. FitJE 2 v EERE ()

Attributable
equity interest
of the Company

Principal activities

PRt J&§ 2 ] 44 1 GRU WA R A 23 ) A
BB Jie 7 fi i TR
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
Held by subsidiaries of the Company: (continued)
A2 v R A A ()
Beijing Mei Hao Future Internet The PRC 70% 70%  Internet service
Business Co., Ltd (“Mei Hao Future”) i and sales
et S b R A T B A B ) A R R 4
([ SRhFARA])
Hamleys Group Limited UK 100% 100%  Investment holding
] £ gidlie
Hamleys of London Limited UK 100% 100%  Toys retailing
Y TR ZE
Hamleys (Franchise) Limited UK 100% 100%  Franchise company
e RERTARRE A )
Hamleys Asia Limited Hong Kong 100% 100%  Import company
R LA
Hamleys Toys (Ireland) Limited Ireland 100% 100%  Toys retailing
E W LA
Hamleys BV The Netherlands 100% 100%  Investment holding
iy B BE B
Scrumpalicious Limited UK 100% 100%  Toys retailing
E HEE
Luvley Limited UK 100% 100%  Toys retailing
e FLAEE
Hamleys Toys (China) Co., Ltd The PRC 100% N/A  Toys retailing
(“Hamleys China”) H N IREE
W A L () A BRA
([ e ey 7 A0 v 1 )
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fo T A M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
A 20174 12 7 31 HAR4FSE

46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 46. FiHJE 2 vl w1 (w0
(CONTINUED)
Place/Country
of incorporation/ Attributable
establishment equity interest
Name of subsidiary and operations of the Company Principal activities
PRt J&§ 2 ] 44 1 GRU WA R A 23 ) A
BB Jie 7 fi i TR
2017 2016 £
20174 20164F Ny
\\
Held by subsidiaries of the Company: (continued) \
A2 v R A A ()
Hamleys Toys (Nanjing) Co., Ltd The PRC 100% 100%  Toys retailing &
(“Hamleys Najing”) i IHZE =
WU BEEL (H ) AR )
(T W8 W3 37 3 )
Xuzhou Hamleys Toys Co., Ltd The PRC 100% N/A  Toys retailing g
A 01 e e 7 0 B B A BR A ) R AEH AZE 4
/4
~
Hamleys Nordics Denmark 80% 80%  Investment holding g
P BE R
Hamleys Finland Oy Finland 80% 80%  Toys retailing
25 HEE
Hamleys Denmark ApS Denmark 80% 80%  Toys retailing - “
PRES HEE = |
Hamleys Norway AS Norway 80% 80%  Toys retailing
E719:1 HEE
Hamleys Swenden AB Sweden 80% 80%  Toys retailing
Fi TR
Notes: BT
(€3] wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC 0 A FR R S A1 B A A 2
2) sino-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC ) A H B L Z NG B A
None of the Company’s subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at TAASAEFEAR > AR 5] Y B 2 ) AR A
the end of the year. FTAEAT (5 725 -
At 31 December 2017, out of the total 30 subsidiaries (2016: JR20174E12H31H » £330/ (20164F :
28), 22 subsidiaries (2016: 20) are wholly-owned by the Group. 28 [H]) BiH g A mleh > 4722 [H] (2016 4F - 20
The remaining 8 subsidiaries (2016: 8) do not have material non- ) B A Fl th AL A o BT 8
controlling interests. ] (2016 4F : 8 [H]) B J& 2 ) Sif7 fie 8 K

PEPERESR o

THRERBERARA T =% AR 173
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2017
#2017 4F 12 71 31 H L4

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

47. Aoy w5 IR D e K it

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW Tt ARM¥T T
Assets HE
Non-current assets s &
Investment in subsidiaries B A ) 2 1,274,245 1,274,245
Property, plant and equipment W - R Bkl 5 9
Other intangible asset HAbJe & 11,352 12,784
Amount due from a subsidiary JRE i — [ g 2 ) 301,190 277,270
1,586,792 1,564,308
Current assets & E
Dividends receivables from subsidiaries RE M o /A ) S 127,786 127,786
Other receivables and prepayments L BRSO R TR SR 20,704 21,983
Amount due from subsidiaries JRE 5 o 4 ) k0 95,686 130,615
Bank balances and cash SRATRE R LB A 13,646 20,018
257,822 300,402
Assets classified as held for sale AR B E 546,300 -
804,122 300,402
Liabilities fafi
Current liabilities T E
Other payables oA AT FE 194,266 5,110
Amount due to subsidiaries JREASH B i /A ) kI 239,192 319,714
Borrowings & 1,045,221 136,150
1,478,679 460,974
Net current liabilities Tl (B fR) G FHE (674,557) (160,572)
Non-current liabilities e ) A
Borrowings — due after one year —AER B (5 71,876 526,598
71,876 526,598
Net assets G R E 840,359 877,138
Capital and reserves AR ik
Share capital AR 209,097 209,097
Reserves fiti i 631,262 668,041
Total equity M g7 840,359 877,138

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

fo A 5 A M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE 20174F 12 A 31 H ILFJE

47. A2 ) SRR DL B ki i (o)

el
(CONTINUED) 2
Movement in Company’s reserves: A8 ) 2 il i 5 ) =
Sharesheld ~ Share-based
Share under the share ~ compensation ~ Accumulated
premium  award scheme reserve profits Total
ik
TRIHERT ] DU Pttt
RiiEE  FAGRG  REERE ERhEA Gl
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFE  AREFL  ARBFE  AREFL AR
At | January 2016 20164 1A 1H 654,477 (50,345) - 58,303 662,435
Profit and total comprehensive A e A X 2 T i A
income for the year - - - 13,661 13,661
Shares repurchased and cancelled B I 8 1 e (8,435) - - - (8,435)
Share purchased for the share AR B E 1 R
award scheme - (591) - - (591)
Equity-settled share award scheme DATERR 4551 e 5 3 - - 971 = 971
Transfer of awarded shares upon vesting 50 O A R = 950 (971) 21 -
At 31 December 2016 R20164F 124 31 H 646,042 (49,986) - 71,985 668,041
Loss and total comprehensive AN e b
expense for the year it - - - (36,779) (36,779)
At 31 December 2017 20174124310 646,042 (49,986) - 35,206 631,262
==
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Financial Summary

RLp s

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
2013 4F 2014 4F 2015 4F 2016 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F1t AR¥FT AR¥Tr AR¥Tr AR¥TT
Financial results HS £ 4
Revenue lh& 2,430,007 2,820,738 3,045,805 3,206,562 3,063,524
Net profit attributable to RN AR REA A
equity holders of the JRE A 1A
Company 231,338 242,224 257,492 206,253 20,492
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
2013 4F 2014 4F 2015 4F 2016 4F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARM¥T T AR¥T LT AR®T T AR¥TTt AR¥TR
Balance sheet summary B E A R
Total assets B AR 2,371,857 2,302,078 3,407,717 3,393,785 3,959,830
Total liabilities B EREE 524,989 753,334 1,498,552 1,318,242 1,873,437
Total equity W 25 AR 1,846,868 1,548,744 1,909,165 2,075,543 2,086,393
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